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NOTICE TO MEMBERS 

 
 
SHORTER NOTICE is hereby given that 10th Annual General Meeting of the 
Members of the Aptus Finance India Private Limited (“the Company”) will be held on 
Wednesday 20th August, 2025 at the registered office of the Company situated at No. 
8B, Doshi Towers, 8th Floor, No. 205, Poonamallee High Road, Kilpauk, Chennai  
600 010 at 11:00 A.M to transact the following businesses: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESSES: 
 

1.  Adoption of financial statements 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 

  
RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2025 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors 
thereon, as circulated to the Members, be and are hereby considered and adopted. 
 

2. Appointment of Mr. M Anandan as Director, liable to retire by rotation 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 

 
RESOLVED THAT Mr. M. Anandan (DIN: 00033633), who retires by rotation at this 
10th  Annual General Meeting and who has offered himself for re-appointment, be and 
is hereby re-appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company, liable to retire by 
rotation. 
 
SPECIAL BUSINESSES: 
 

3. To approve the increase in borrowing powers in excess of the paid-up share capital, 
free reserves and securities premium of the Company pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 

 
RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the resolution passed by the shareholders at the 
Annual General Meeting held on August 13, 2024, pursuant to the provisions of Section 
180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions if any, or any other 
law for the time being in force (including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) 
thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and in terms of the 
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, the Company hereby accords 
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its consent to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term 
shall be deemed to include the Resourcing and Business Committee or any such 
Committee which the Board may constitute / authorize for this purpose) of the Company 
to borrow such sum or sums of moneys and for availing all kinds and types of loans, 
advances, debt facilities and credit facilities including issuance of debentures and other 
debt instruments, (apart from temporary loans from the Company’s bankers), from time 
to time, upto a sum of ₹ 4,000 crores (Rupees Four Thousand Crores only) outstanding at 
any point of time on account of principal, for and on behalf of the Company, from its 
bankers, other banks, Non-Banking Financial Companies, Financial Institutions, 
Companies, Firms, Bodies Corporate, Co-Operative Banks, Investment Institutions and 
their Subsidiaries, Mutual Funds, Trusts, other Body Corporate or from any other person 
as may be permitted under applicable laws, whether unsecured or secured 
notwithstanding that moneys to be borrowed together with the moneys already borrowed 
by the Company (apart from temporary loans (including working capital facilities) 
obtained from the Company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business) shall exceed the 
aggregate of the paid-up capital of the Company ,free reserves and securities premium. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company may issue from time to time, 
Debenture/Bonds and other debt instruments, aggregating up to ₹ 1,000 Crores (Rupees 
One Thousand Crores only) within the overall borrowing limits of ₹ 4,000 crores (Rupees 
Four Thousand Crores only). 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including the 
Resourcing & Business Committee or any such Committee which the Board may 
constitute/ authorize for this purpose) be and is hereby authorized to take all such steps 
as may be necessary to give effect to this resolution. 
 

4. To approve creation of charges on the assets of the Company under Section 180(1)(a) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 to secure the borrowings made/to be made under section 
180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 

 
RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the resolution passed by the shareholders at the 
Annual General Meeting held on August 13, 2024, pursuant to the provisions of section 
180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and all other applicable provisions if any, or any 
other law for the time being in force (including any statutory modification or 
amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and in terms 
of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, consent be and is 
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (which term shall be deemed 
to include the Resourcing & Business Committee and any such committee which the 
Board may constitute / authorize for this purpose) for mortgaging / charging / 
hypothecating all or any of the immovable and movable properties and assets of the 
Company, both present and future and the whole or substantially the whole of the 
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undertaking or the undertakings of the Company, on such terms and conditions, as may 
be agreed to between the Board and Lender(s), Debenture holders and providers of credit 
and debt facilities to secure the loans / borrowings / credit / debt facilities obtained or as 
may be obtained, or Debentures/Bonds and other instruments issued or to be issued by 
the Company to or in favour of the Financial Institutions, Non-Banking Financial 
Companies, Co-operative Banks, Investment Institutions and their Subsidiaries, from its 
Bankers and other Banks, Mutual Funds, Trusts and other Bodies Corporate or Trustees 
for the holders of debentures/bonds and/ or other instruments, or any other person, 
which may exceed the paid-up capital, free reserves and securities premium provided that 
the total amount of monies borrowed / credit facilities obtained or as may be obtained, or 
Debentures/Bonds and other instruments issued or to be issued by the Company (apart 
from temporary loans from the Company’s bankers) shall not at any time exceed a sum of 
₹ 4,000 crores (Rupees Four Thousand Crores only) outstanding at any point of time on 
account of principal. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including the 
Resourcing & Business Committee or any such Committee which the Board may 
constitute/ authorize for this purpose) be and is hereby authorized to take all such steps 
as may be necessary to give effect to this resolution. 
 

5. To approve issue of Non-Convertible Debentures, in one or more tranches on private 
placement basis 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 
 
RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 42, 71, 179 and all other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Prospectus 
and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof, for the time being in force), Master Direction – Reserve Bank of India 
(Non-Banking Financial Company – Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 and other 
regulations, rules and guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India, the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 
2021, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (as amended from time to time) and in accordance with 
the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Company, consent of 
the members be and is hereby given to issue, offer or invite subscriptions for all kinds and 
types of Non – Convertible Debentures (“NCDs”) including NCDs which are Listed, 
Unlisted, Secured, Unsecured, Rated, Redeemable, in one or more series / tranches, 
aggregating up to ₹ 1,000 Crores (Rupees One Thousand  Crores only) to any Institution, 
Body Corporate, Mutual Fund, entity, any other person or persons, domestic or foreign, as 
permitted under applicable laws, on private placement basis on such terms and conditions 
as the Board of Directors (which term shall be deemed to include Resourcing and Business 
Committee of the Board or any other committee which may be constituted/authorized for 
this purpose) may, from time to time, determine and consider proper and most beneficial 
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to the Company including as to when the said NCDs be offered, the consideration for the 
offer, utilization of the proceeds and all matters connected with or incidental thereto.  

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby instructed to act 
upon the resolution within a period of 12 months. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to any issue or allotment 
of Debentures of the Company, the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized on 
behalf of the Company to take all such actions and do all such deeds, matters, and things 
as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary, desirable or expedient and to settle 
any question, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard including but not limited 
to the offering, issue and allotment of debentures of the Company as it may in its absolute 
discretion deem fit and proper. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized to 
delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred by this resolution to the Resourcing and 
Business Committee or any Director or Directors or to any member the Resourcing and 
Business Committee or to any Committee of Directors or to any officer or officers of the 
Company to give effect to this resolution. 
 

6. To appoint the Secretarial Auditors of the Company. 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and the 
approval of the Board of Directors and pursuant to the provisions of section 204 and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under 
and Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015 (including any statutory modification(s) thereto or re-enactment thereof 
for the time being in force), S. Sandeep & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries, 
Chennai, (Firm Registration No: P2025TN103600) be and are hereby appointed as the 
Secretarial Auditor of the Company to hold the office for a period of five consecutive 
years commencing from the conclusion of the 10th  Annual General Meeting to be held in 
year 2025 until the conclusion of the 15th Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 
2030 on such remuneration including fees for certification and other items as may be 
mutually agreed between the Board of Directors and Secretarial Auditor. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the company (including any 
committee thereof) be and is hereby authorized to fix the remuneration payable to the 
statutory auditors of the company, from time to time including the actual travelling and 
out of pocket expenses incurred in connection with the audit, in addition to taxes as 
applicable, during the appointed period. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or the Chief Financial Officer or the 
Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, 
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deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary for the purpose of giving effect to 
this Resolution.” 
 

7. To appoint Mr. Krishna Kishore as Manager of the Company 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant provisions of Sections  196, 197, 198 and 203 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with relevant rules made thereunder and Schedule V, 
and other applicable provisions of the Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and applicable regulations of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), Mr. Krishna Kishore S be and is 
hereby appointed as Manager of the Company for a period of three years with effect from 
22nd May 2025 on such terms and conditions as per the below, 
 

(a) Remuneration (including salary, perquisites, allowances and benefits): ₹ 61.30 
lakhs per annum with such annual increments and/or performance-linked 
incentives as may be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors from time to time. 

  
FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the total remuneration payable to Mr. Krishna Kishore 
during the tenure including salary, perquisites, allowances and benefits shall not exceed 
the limits specified under Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Mr. Balaji, Director and Mr. Anto Abinash, Company 
Secretary be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to 
file necessary e‑forms or documents with the Registrar of Companies, and to submit 
required notices to stock exchanges and other statutory authorities, and to take steps as 
may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.” 
 
 
 

By Order of the Board 
For Aptus Finance India Private Limited 

 
 

 
                          sd/- 
                                                         Anto Abinash 
Chennai                Company Secretary 
May 22, 2025                        Membership No.: A73686 
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NOTES: 
 

1. A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend 
and vote on a poll instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of 
the Company. The instrument appointing the proxy should, however, be 
deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than forty-eight 
hours before the commencement of the Meeting. A person can act as proxy on 
behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not 
more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company. Provided that a 
member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company 
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person 
shall not act as proxy for any other person or shareholder. A blank proxy form 
is enclosed as Annexure A to this notice. 

 
2. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to 

attend the Annual General Meeting are requested to send to the Company a 
certified copy of the board resolution/authorization letter authorizing their 
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Annual General 
Meeting. 

 
3. A statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the 

Special Business to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto.  
 

4. Quorum of the Annual General meeting shall be in accordance with Section 
103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
5. The Member/Proxies should bring their proxy form and attendance slip, sent 

herewith, duly filled in, for attending the meeting as mentioned in Annexure A 
and Annexure B of this notice. 

 
6. Route Map for the location of the aforesaid meeting is enclosed as Annexure C 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT, 2013  

Item No. 3: Fixing of Borrowing Limits 

In terms of provisions of Section 180(1) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of 
Directors of the Company cannot, except with the consent of the Company in a 
general meeting, borrow moneys (apart from temporary loans obtained from the 
Company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business), in excess of the aggregate of 
the paid-up capital, free reserves and securities premium. 
 
At the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on August 13, 2024, the 
shareholders had passed a special resolution under Section 180(1)(c) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 empowering the Board of Directors of the Company to borrow 
upto ₹ 3,500 crores which were in excess of the paid up capital ,free reserves and 
securities premium of the Company as at March 31, 2025. 
 
In order to further expand its business and to meet the loan disbursements, the Board 
may have to resort to various borrowing options which at times is likely to exceed the 
present borrowing limit of ₹ 3,500 crores. Taking into account this and the enabling 
provisions under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, in order to enable the 
Board of Directors to raise adequate funds in a timely manner, the resolution under 
item no.3 of the notice is proposed. 
 
Since the borrowing limit of ₹ 4,000 crores (Rupees Four Thousand Crores only) as 
proposed in the special resolution appearing in item no. 3 of this notice is in excess of 
paid-up capital ,free reserves and its  securities premium, the proposal requires the 
approval of shareholders by means of a special resolution. 
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives 
is, in anyway, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set 
out at item no. 3 of the Notice. 
 
Your Directors recommend the above Special Resolution in item no. 3 for your 
approval. 
 
Item No. 4:  Charge / Mortgage on Assets 

 
Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, provides that the Board of Directors of a 
Company shall not, without the consent of members in general meeting, sell, lease or 
otherwise dispose of the whole or substantially the whole of the undertaking of the 
Company.  
 
For creation of security through mortgage or pledge/ or hypothecation or otherwise 
of the movable and immovable properties and assets of the company or through a 
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combination of the above for securing the limits/ credit/ debt facilities as may be 
sanctioned by the lenders, and / or for securing the issuance of debentures/ bonds/ 
and other instruments, the Company would be required to secure all or any of the 
movable and immovable assets and properties of the Company, present and future.  
 
Considering the requirement under Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 in 
order to enable the Board to mortgage/ charge/ hypothecate or otherwise create 
security against the properties and/or the whole or substantially the whole of the 
undertaking of the Company create charge/encumbrance on the assets of the 
Company, approval of the Members is sought by way of a special resolution.  
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives 
are, in anyway, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set 
out at item no. 4 of the Notice. 
 
The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at item no. 4 of the Notice for 
approval by the shareholders. 
 
Item No.5: Offer / invitation to subscribe to Non-Convertible Debentures on private 
placement basis 
 
Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Prospectus and 
Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 prescribed under and Master Direction – Reserve 
Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company – Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 
2023 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 deals with private placement of securities by 
a company deals with private placement of securities by a company. Third proviso of 
Sub-rule (1) of the Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) 
Rules, 2014, provides that in case of an offer or invitation to subscribe for non-
convertible debentures on private placement basis, it is sufficient if the company 
obtains previous approval of its shareholders by means of a special resolution only 
once in a year for all the offers or invitations for such debentures during the year. 

As part of its fund raising plans for the next 12 months of the Company, your 
Company proposes to issue Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) on a private 
placement basis to institutions, mutual funds, bodies corporate, and other persons, 
both domestic and non-domestic. The Company may offer or invite subscription for 
all kinds of NCDs, in one or more series / tranches on private placement basis. The 
proceeds of the issue would be utilized for working capital to finance the growth of 
the lending portfolio of the company. 

In this context, approval of the shareholders is being sought for issuance / offer of 
NCDs aggregating upto ₹ 1,000 crores (Rupees One Thousand Crores only) by way of 
a special resolution as set out at item no. 5 of the Notice. The said limit of ₹ 1,000 
crores (Rupees One Thousand Crores only) for issuance of NCDs shall be within the 
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overall borrowing limits of ₹ 4,000 crores (Rupees Four Thousand Crores only) as 
proposed in the special resolution appearing in item no. 3 of the notice. 

This resolution enables the Company to offer or invite subscription for non-
convertible debentures, as may be required by the Company, from time to time for a 
year from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting.  

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives 
are, in anyway, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set 
out at item no. 5 of the Notice. 
 
The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at item no. 5 of the Notice for 
approval by the shareholders. 
 
Item no. 6: Appointment of Secretarial Auditor 
 
Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 mandates listed entities to annex with their annual report, a Secretarial 
Audit Report issued by a Practicing Company Secretary in respect of the company and its 
material unlisted subsidiaries. 
 
In accordance with Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, read with the SEBI notification dated December 12, 
2024, and other applicable provisions, a listed company may appoint a peer-reviewed firm 
of practising company secretaries as Secretarial Auditors for not more than two terms of 
five consecutive years each. 
 
The Company proposes to appoint M/s S. Sandeep & Associates, a peer-reviewed and 
eligible firm, as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a term of five consecutive 
financial years commencing from FY 2025–26 and ending with FY 2029–30. M/s S. 
Sandeep & Associates has been recommended by the Audit Committee for this 
appointment. Based on the Committee’s recommendation, the Board of Directors, at its 
meeting held on May 05, 2025, approved the said appointment, which is subject to the 
approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
 
Brief profile of M/s. S. Sandeep & Associates: 
  
M/s. S. Sandeep & Associates (“SSA”), established in 2006, is spearheaded by  
CS S. Sandeep who has two decades of professional excellence in corporate and securities 
laws. Under his leadership, the firm has built a strong and diverse clientele comprising 
prominent public sector undertakings like State Industries Promotion Corporation of 
Tamil Nadu (SIPCOT), Tamil Nadu Industrial Investment Corporation Limited (TIIC), 
and Chennai Metro Rail Limited, as well as reputed private and listed companies such as 
Hindustan Oil Exploration Company Limited, Five Star Business Finance Limited, and 
Radiant Cash Management Services Limited. The firm has earned a reputation for 
delivering trusted and comprehensive advisory services across a wide array of sectors. 
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The firm offers a comprehensive range of professional services, including Company law 
advisory and secretarial services, Mergers & acquisitions advisory, Valuation services, 
Foreign exchange law advisory, Risk assurance and due diligence and Foreign investment 
and approval services. 
 

Furthermore, in terms of the amended regulations, SSA has provided a confirmation that 
they have subjected themselves to the peer review process of the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India and hold a valid peer review certificate. It has confirmed that they are 
not disqualified from being appointed as Secretarial Auditors and that they have no 
conflict of interest as provided under regulation 24A of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. It 
has further furnished a declaration that they have not taken up any prohibited non-
secretarial audit assignments for the Company and its holding company. 
 

The terms and conditions of SSA’s appointment include tenure of five financial years, 
commencing from April 1, 2025, and ending on March 31, 2030. The fixed remuneration 
for the Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2025-26 is set at  
₹ 1,50,000/- (Rupees One  Lakhs and Fifty Thousand only), plus applicable taxes and 
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with the audit. 
Remuneration for subsequent years shall be determined by the Board of Directors in 
consultation with the Audit Committee. The proposed fees have been determined based 
on the scope of work, required team size, industry experience, and the time and expertise 
necessary for SSA to conduct the audit effectively. 
 

In addition to the Secretarial Audit services, the Company may, from time to time, engage 
SSA for issuing certifications under various statutory regulations, certifications required 
by banks and regulatory authorities, audit-related services, and other permissible non-
secretarial audit services. Such services will be undertaken for separate remuneration, to 
be mutually agreed upon and approved by the Board of Directors in consultation with the 
Audit Committee.  
 

The Board of Directors, based on the recommendations of the Audit Committee, shall 
approve revisions to the remuneration of SSA for the remaining part of the tenure. 
 

Based on the recommendations of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors has 
approved and recommended the aforesaid proposal for the approval of the shareholders, 
after considering the firm's eligibility, professional qualifications, experience, independent 
assessment, and the expertise of its partners in delivering secretarial audit services. The 
Board also took into account the competency of the firm’s staff and the Company’s past 
experience with the firm, including the quality of audit work previously undertaken. 
 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is, in 
anyway, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item 
no. 6 of the notice. 
 

The Board of Directors recommends the resolution set forth in item no. 6 of the notice for 
the approval of shareholders. 
 
 
 



 
 

  Aptus Finance India Private Limited 
8B, Doshi Towers, 205, Poonamallee High Road, Kilpauk, Chennai – 600 010. 

Tel: 044 – 4565 0000, Fax: 044 – 4555 4170 
CIN: U74900TN2015PTC102252 

www.aptusfinance.com 
 

Item No.7: To appoint Mr. Krishna Kishore as Manager of the Company: 
 
In terms of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 providing for the appointment of 
whole time key managerial personnel and based on the recommendation of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors subject to the 
approval of the members, appointed Mr. Krishna Kishore S as the Manager and Key 
Managerial Personnel of the Company under Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 
for a period of 3 years with effect from 22nd May 2025 on the terms and conditions as 
per below, 
 

(a) Remuneration (including salary, perquisites, allowances and benefits): Rs. ₹ 61.30 
lakhs per annum with such annual increments and/or performance-linked 
incentives as may be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors from time to time. 

 
In addition to the above, he is further entitled for the stock options granted by the holding 
Company, Aptus Value Housing Finance India Limited. 
 
Mr. S Krishna Kishore has more than 17 years of experience in the financial services 
sector. He was previously associated with IIFL Home Finance, ICICI Bank, Adithya 
Birla Housing Finance and PNB Housing Finance. Krishna Kishore holds an MBA in 
Finance from Kakatiya University and is also a member of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. He has rich experience in underwriting, portfolio & Risk 
Management of Mortgage products. He is currently associated with Aptus Value 
Housing Finance India Limited as Associate VP- Credit. 
 
The terms and conditions of his appointment, including remuneration, are in 
accordance with the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198 and 203 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Schedule V and the applicable rules made thereunder. 
Accordingly, the approval of the shareholders is being sought for the aforesaid 
appointment. 
 
Except Mr. Krishna Kishore S, being an appointee, none of the Directors or their 
relatives or key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is concerned 
or interested, financially or otherwise in the resolution set out under item No.7. 
 
The Board of Directors recommends the resolution set forth in item no. 7 of the notice 
for the approval of shareholders. 
 

By Order of the Board 
For Aptus Finance India Private Limited 

                          Sd/- 
                                                       Anto Abinash 
Chennai                Company Secretary 
May 22, 2025                        Membership No.: A73686 
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ANNEXURE A 
 

FORM No. MGT – 11 
 

Proxy Form 
 

(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)    
 
CIN: U74900TN2015PTC102252 
 
Name of the Company:   APTUS FINANCE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED  
 
Registered Office:  No. 8B, Doshi Towers, 8th Floor, No. 205, Poonamallee High Road, 
Kilpauk, Chennai, Tamilnadu – 600010. 
 
Website: www.aptusindia.com 
 
Name of the Member (s)  :   
Registered address : 
E-mail id : 
Folio No. / Client Id : 
DP ID :  
 
I / We, being the member(s) of  
, hereby appoint : 
 
1. Name :   
Address : 
 
E-mail Id :    
Signature :                                                                                     , or failing him / her 
 
2. Name :   
Address :                           
 
E-mail Id :  
Signature :                                                                                    , or failing him /her 
 
3. Name :   
Address : 
 
E-mail Id :  
Signature :                                                                                     , or failing him /her 
 
as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at 

http://www.aptusindia.com/
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the Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Wednesday,  
August 20, 2025 at 11:00 AM at No.8B, Doshi Towers, 8th Floor, No. 205, Poonamallee 
High Road, Kilpauk, Chennai – 600010 and at any adjournment thereof, in respect of 
such resolutions set out in the notice convening the meeting, as are indicated below: 
 
 

S. No Resolutions For  Against 

1.  To consider and adopt the audited financial 
statements for the financial year ended 31st March 
2025 

  

2.  To appoint Mr. M. Anandan (DIN: 00033633) who 
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself 
for re-appointment as Non-Executive Director liable 
to retire by rotation. 

  

3.  Fixing of Borrowing Limits   

4.  Charge / Mortgage on Assets   

5.  Offer / invitation to subscribe to Non-Convertible 
Debentures on private placement basis 

  
 

6.  Appointment of Secretarial Auditors of the 
Company 

  

7.  Appointment Mr. Krishna Kishore as Manager of 
the Company 

  

 
 
 
Signed this ……. day of …..…………….…, 2025    
 
 
Signature of Shareholder 
 
 
 
Signature of Proxy Holder (s) 
 
 
Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and 
deposited at the registered office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the 
commencement of the Meeting. 

Affix Revenue Stamp 
here 
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ANNEXURE B 
 

 
Attendance Slip 

 
(Please complete this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Hall) 
 
I hereby record my presence at the 10th Annual General Meeting of the Company, Aptus 
Finance India Private Limited held on August 20, 2025 at 11:00 AM at No. 8B, Doshi 
Towers, 8th Floor, No. 205, Poonamallee High Road, Kilpauk, Chennai, Tamil Nadu – 
600010. 
 
Regd. Folio No: 
 
DP Id / Client Id:  
 
Full Name of the Shareholder in Block Letters:  
 
No. of Share held: 
 
Name of the representative or proxy (if any) in Block Letters: 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Signature of the Shareholder/Proxy/Representative 
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APTUS FINANCE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
Regd. Office: No. 8B, Doshi Towers, 8

th
 Floor, No.205, 

Poonamallee High Road, Kilpauk, Chennai, 

Tamil Nadu 600 010. 

CIN: U74900TN2015PTC102252 

E-mail: companysecretary@aptusfinance.com

Phone: 044 45650000, Website: www.aptusfinance.com 

Director’s Report 

Dear Members, 

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the Tenth Annual Report of the Company together with the 

audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. Marking a 

decade of operations, this report highlights the Company’s journey of growth, resilience, and continued 

commitment to creating long-term value for all stakeholders. 

1. Financial Results

(₹ in crores) 

Particulars For the Financial Year 

ended March 31, 2025 

 For the Financial Year 

ended March 31, 2024 

Operating Income 487 307 

Other Income 13 17 

Less: Expenditure including 

depreciation 

262 149 

Profit before taxation 238 175 

Tax expense 62 45 

Profit after taxation 176 130 

Asset under Management 2,952 1,963 

2. Operational Highlights

2.1 Sanctions and Disbursements 

During the year under review, the Company sanctioned loans amounting to ₹1,437 crore, reflecting a 

16% increase over the ₹1,240 crore sanctioned in the previous financial year. Loan disbursements for 

the year stood at ₹1,334 crore, reflecting a 11% growth over the ₹1,200 crore disbursed in the 

preceding financial year. This significant uptick in both sanctions and disbursements underscores the 

Company’s sound credit appraisal processes, operational efficiency, and the sustained demand for its 

financial offerings in a competitive market environment. 

2.2 Loan Assets 

The Company demonstrated remarkable momentum in its loan asset management, culminating in 

robust 50% year-on-year growth by the end of financial year. This upward trajectory underscores our 

commitment to serving diverse customer needs while fostering sustainable financial growth. As of 

March 31, 2025, our total Assets under Management stood at ₹ 2,952 crores reflecting a significant 

increase from ₹ 1,963 crores in the previous financial year. 

mailto:companysecretary@aptusfinance.com
http://www.aptusfinance.com/


  

 

2.3 Branch Expansion 

 

The Company has a strong network of 300 branches across 6 Indian states and 1 Union Territory. 

During the year under review, the Company further expanded its distribution network in the states of  

Tamil Nadu, Andhra Pradesh, Telangana, Karnataka, Maharashtra and Odisha.  

 

As on March 31, 2025, the distribution network had expanded to 300 branches, marking an increase 

from 262 branches in the previous financial year. 

 

The Company currently uses the 300-branch network of its holding company, Aptus Value Housing 

Finance India Limited, to carry out its business operations. While this shared infrastructure has 

provided a strong foundation for growth, the Company plans to establish its own independent branch 

network going forward. This strategic move is aimed at enhancing service focus, operational 

efficiency, and strengthening the Company’s direct customer engagement. 

 

2.4 Income, Profits and Net worth 

 

During the year under review, the Company’s financial metrics had grown as follows: 

 

Financial Metrics March 31, 2025 

(₹ in Crores) 

March 31, 2024 

(₹ in Crores) 

Growth 

 

Gross Income 499 324 54% 

Profit before tax 238 175 36% 

Profit after tax 176 130 35% 

Net worth 692 516 34% 

Return on Equity (ROE) 29.03 28.87    +16 bps 

 

2.5 Asset Quality 

 

The Company concluded the financial year 2024–25 with a Gross NPA of 1.22%, compared to 1.04% 

in the previous year. Despite a marginal increase, the Company maintained a healthy Net NPA of 

0.92%, reflecting its strong credit management practices, effective recovery mechanisms, and 

commitment to maintaining asset quality. 

 

As a prudent measure to ensure adequate provisioning for potential loan losses, the Company 

maintained a Provision Coverage Ratio (provisions on NPAs to total NPAs) of 25.31% as of  

March 31, 2025. 

 

2.6 Resource Mobilization 

 

During FY 2024–25, the Company maintained a well-diversified and strategically structured borrowing 

profile, aimed at balancing cost efficiency and financial resilience. Approximately 48% of borrowings 

were sourced from banks, 8% through the issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) to reputed 

mutual funds and financial institutions, 30% via securitisation transactions, and the remaining through 

inter-corporate loans. The NCD issuance, totalling ₹200 crores, comprised ₹75 crores each from 

Nippon Mutual Fund and Axis Mutual Fund, and ₹50 crores from DCB Bank. 

 

A significant portion of the Company’s borrowings comprises long-term credit facilities from leading 

financial institutions, including Axis Bank, HDFC Bank, and Yes Bank, with tenors ranging between 3 

to 7 years. In addition, the Company successfully secured a refinance facility of ₹100 crore from 

SIDBI, further strengthening its liquidity position.  

 

This diversified borrowing mix enables the Company to optimise funding costs, mitigate concentration 

risk, and maintain operational agility and financial stability in a dynamic market environment.  

    

 



  

 

 

 2.7  Capital Adequacy Ratio 

 

As on March 31, 2025, the Company’s Capital Adequacy Ratio stood at a strong 28.46%, as against the 

minimum requirement of 15% stipulated by the Reserve Bank of India. This reflects the Company’s 

strong financial position, ensuring stability and resilience against market uncertainties, while 

supporting future growth and long-term value creation for all stakeholders 

 

3. Credit Rating 

 

The credit rating details of the Company as at March 31, 2025 are as follows: 

 

Instrument Rating Agency  Rating Outlook 

Bank Facilities ICRA [ICRA]AA- Stable 

Non-convertible Debentures ICRA [ICRA]AA- Stable 

Bank Facilities CARE CARE AA- Positive 

Non-convertible Debentures CARE CARE AA- Positive 

 

4. Deposits 
 

The Company is registered as a non-deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company with Reserve 

Bank of India and hence does not accept any deposits. The Company has not accepted any deposits 

from the public within the meaning of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 

(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 during the financial year ended March 31, 2025. No amount on 

account of principal or interest on deposits from the public was outstanding as on March 31, 2025. 

 

5. Transfer to Special Reserves 

 

The Company has transferred ₹35.16 crores to Statutory Reserve representing the Reserve fund created 

under Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

 

In terms of the requirement as per RBI notification no. RBl/2019-20/170 DOR 

(NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020 on implementation of Indian 

Accounting Standards, Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) are required to create an 

impairment reserve for any shortfall in impairment allowances under Ind AS 109 and Income 

Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) norms (including provision on standard 

assets). During the year, there was no shortfall in impairment allowances and accordingly, the 

Company is not required to transfer any amount to Impairment Reserve. 

 

6. Dividend 

 

In view of the Company’s long-term growth objectives and the need to conserve funds for future 

expansion, the Board of Directors has decided to retain the profit for the year by transferring it to 

reserves. This strategic decision will further strengthen the Company’s financial position and asset 

base. Accordingly, the Board has not recommended any dividend for the financial year ended  

March 31, 2025. 

 

7. Share Capital 

 

There has been no change in the authorized, issued and paid-up share capital of the Company during 

the financial year ended March 31, 2025. The authorized share capital of the Company remains at  

₹110 crore, while the issued and paid-up share capital stands at ₹100.80 crore.  

 

 

 

 



  

 

 

8. Directors  

 

As of March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors of the Company consisted of six members, including 

four Independent Directors, one Whole-time Director, and one Non-Executive Director. 

 

The composition of the Board of Directors as on March 31, 2025, is given below: 

 

Sl. No. Name of the Director  DIN Designation 

1.  Mr. M. Anandan  00033633 Chairman (Non-executive) 

2.  Mr. S. Krishnamurthy 00066044 Independent Director 

3.  Mr. K. M. Mohandass 00707839 Independent Director 

4.  Mr. R. Umasuthan 08962500 Independent Director 

5.  Mr. Subba Rao N.V 05153667 Independent Director 

6.  Mr. P. Balaji 07904681 Whole-time Director 

 

During the financial year 2024-25, following changes took place in the composition of the Board of 

Directors. 

 Mr. Subba Rao N.V (DIN: 05153667), was appointed as the Non-executive Independent 

Director of the Company with effect from March 26, 2025. 

 

Further, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. M. Anandan,  

Chairman is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing 10th Annual General Meeting of the Company 

and being eligible has offered himself for reappointment. 

 

9. Key Managerial Personnel 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of section 203 of the Companies Act read with the rules made there under, 

the following employees are the whole-time key managerial personnel of the Company as on March 

31, 2025: 

 

(i) Mr. P Balaji, Whole-time Director  

(ii) Mr. Anto Abinash, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

 

During the financial year 2024-25, following changes took place in the composition of the Key 

Managerial Personnel. 

 

 Mr. Harshavardn T resigned from the post of Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

with effect from August 09, 2024. 

 

 Mr. Anto Abinash E, appointed as the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer with 

effect from November 04, 2024. 

 

 Mr. Uday Venkata Kiran, resigned from the post of Manager & Chief Financial Officer 

with effect from December 13, 2024. 

 

10. Declaration from Independent Directors 
 

Independent Directors are appointed for a specific term by the shareholders of the Company based on 

the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors at 

their respective meetings. 

 

The Independent Directors have submitted declaration of independence, as required pursuant to sub-

section (7) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, stating that they meet the criteria of 

independence as provided in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the 

declarations received from the Independent Directors, the Board of Directors has confirmed that they 

http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do


  

meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and that 

they are independent of the management. 

 

The Independent Directors have also given declaration to the effect that they are fit & proper, to be 

appointed as a Director, as per the criteria prescribed in the Master Direction – Reserve Bank of India 

(Non – Banking Financial Company – Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023. 

 

11. Board Evaluation 

 

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board 

committees, and individual Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The 

performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking input from all the Directors based 

on criteria such as Board composition and structure, meetings, strategy, governance & compliance, risk 

management, internal controls and financial reporting. 

 

The performance of each committee was evaluated by the Board of Directors after obtaining inputs 

from the respective committee members, taking into consideration factors such as the committee’s 

structure, functioning, effectiveness in discharging its responsibilities, and the contributions of 

individual members. 

 

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of Non-Independent Directors, the Board 

as a whole and Chairman of the Company was evaluated. 

 

The policy on appointment, remuneration and evaluation of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 

and Senior Management is available on the website of the Company (weblink:  Appointment, 

Remuneration & Evaluation Policy) 

 

12. Details of subsidiary/joint ventures/associate companies 

 

The Company does not have any subsidiary or joint ventures or associate Company. However, Aptus 

Finance India Private Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Aptus Value Housing Finance India 

Limited, a housing finance company registered with the National Housing Bank. 

 

13. Board and Committee meetings held during the year 

 

The Board met 5 times during the year under review. Details regarding composition of the Board and 

various Committees of the Board and number of meetings of the Board and Committees during the 

year under review are given in the Corporate Governance Report enclosed as Annexure D to this 

Annual Report. 

 

14. Compliance with secretarial standards on Board and General meetings 

 

The Company has complied with all the provisions of secretarial standards issued by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India in respect of meetings of the Board of Directors and general meetings 

held during the year. 

 

15. Compliance Management 

 

The Company has adopted a compliance management tool which comprehensively covers all 

compliances under various regulatory frameworks applicable to the Company and provides system-

driven alerts to the respective owners. 

 

16. Management Discussion and Analysis  

 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report, prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 

Master Direction – Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company – Scale Based 

Regulations) Directions, 2021, is enclosed and forms part of this Annual Report as Annexure C. This 

report provides a comprehensive overview of the Company’s financial and operational performance, 

https://www.aptusfinance.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/Aptus-NBFC-Appointment-Remuneration-Evalaution-Policy.pdf
https://www.aptusfinance.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/Aptus-NBFC-Appointment-Remuneration-Evalaution-Policy.pdf


  

industry trends, business outlook, key risks and mitigation strategies, and internal control systems for 

the year under review. 

 

17. Auditors & Auditor's Report 

 

(a) Statutory Auditors 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139 and 141 of the Companies Act, 2013, and guidelines for 

appointment of Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs)/Statutory Auditors (SAs) of Commercial Banks 

(excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs (including HFCs) dated April 27, 2021 issued by the Reserve 

Bank of India, M/s. Suri & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number :004283S) was 

appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 3 years at the 9
th
 Annual General 

Meeting held on August 13, 2024 till the date of conclusion of the 12
th
 Annual General Meeting.  

  

The Statutory Auditor’s Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, is annexed to and forms 

part of the financial statements and the same does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse 

remark on the financial statements prepared as per Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 and notes on 

accounts annexed thereto. There were no frauds detected or reported by the Auditors under sub-section 

(12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review. 

 

(b) Secretarial Auditor 
 
M/s. S. Sandeep & Associates, Company Secretaries were appointed to conduct the secretarial audit of 

the Company for the financial year 2024-25, as required under section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 

and rules made thereunder. 

 

Further, in compliance with the provisions of Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company being a material subsidiary of a listed 

entity, the Board of Directors has approved the appointment of M/s. S. Sandeep & Associates, 

Practicing Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a term of five 

consecutive financial years commencing from FY 2025–26, subject to the approval of the shareholders 

at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a consent letter and eligibility 

certificate from M/s. S. Sandeep & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, confirming that they 

meet the criteria prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules thereunder. They have 

also affirmed that they are not disqualified in any manner and are eligible to be appointed as the 

Secretarial Auditors of the Company, if approved by the shareholders. 
 
The secretarial audit report for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, is enclosed and forms 

part of this Annual Report as Annexure E and it is self-explanatory, and has no observations, 

qualification, reservations, adverse remarks and disclaimers.  

 

18. Maintenance of cost records and cost audit 

 

Maintenance of cost records and requirements of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions of 

section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable for the business activities carried out by 

the Company. 

  

19. Internal Financial Controls 

 

The Company has established a comprehensive internal control framework designed to ensure 

operational efficiency, accuracy in financial reporting, and compliance with applicable laws and 

regulations. This robust system is supported by periodic internal audits, regular management reviews, 

and well-defined policies and procedures, providing adequate checks and balances across all levels of 

the organization. 

 

In line with our commitment to strong corporate governance, the Company has implemented a risk-

based internal audit mechanism aimed at proactively identifying, managing, and mitigating operational 

and financial risks. The internal audit function is structured to provide independent assurance on the 



  

adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls, particularly with regard to fraud prevention, detection, 

reporting, and remediation. 

 

Internal audit activities are carried out in accordance with an annual audit plan, which is developed 

based on a detailed risk assessment and is reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee. This 

approach ensures comprehensive coverage of all key business functions and alignment with the 

Company’s strategic objectives and regulatory obligations. Internal audit reports, along with key 

findings and recommendations, are presented to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis for their 

review and guidance. 

 

As part of the year-end process, the Management evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s internal 

control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2025, and has concluded that the controls are adequate 

and operating effectively. 

 

Furthermore, the Company’s Statutory Auditors, M/s. Suri & Co, have independently reviewed the 

internal control systems and, in their audit report, have issued an unmodified opinion, affirming the 

adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls in place. 

 

20. Material Changes and Commitments. 

 

There are no material changes and commitments between March 31, 2025, and the date of this report 

having an adverse bearing on the financial position of the Company. 

 

21. Annual Return 

 

As per Section 134 (3) (a) and Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(1) of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the annual return of the Company for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2025 is available on the Company’s website at www.aptusfinance.com. 

 

22. Risk Management  

 

The Company operates in a dynamic and evolving financial ecosystem and is naturally exposed to a 

wide range of risks associated with the financing sector. These include, but are not limited to, capital 

risk, credit risk, interest rate risk, market risk, operational risk, liquidity risk, information technology 

risk, and regulatory and compliance risk. Recognizing the potential implications of these risks on the 

Company’s financial stability and operational effectiveness, a comprehensive risk management 

framework has been instituted, supported by a set of Board-approved risk-related policies. 

 

This framework is designed to proactively identify, assess, monitor, and mitigate risks in a structured 

and consistent manner. It ensures that risk exposures are maintained within acceptable levels and 

aligned with the Company’s strategic objectives and risk appetite. 

 

The Risk Management Committee plays a central role in overseeing this framework. It is responsible 

for formulating and refining risk management policies, systems, and procedures in response to 

emerging threats and shifting market conditions. The Committee ensures that risk management 

practices remain relevant and robust, taking into account the Company’s organizational structure, 

evolving business model, and overall risk tolerance. 

 

Through regular monitoring and reporting, the Company strives to foster a culture of risk awareness 

and resilience, enabling informed decision-making and safeguarding stakeholder interests. 

 

23. Particulars of Employees 

 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rules 5(1), 

5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014, the disclosure regarding remuneration is to be set out in the Annual Report. However, as per 

provisions of Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with relevant proviso of the Companies 

Act, 2013, the Annual Report is being sent to members excluding the aforesaid information. The said 

http://www.aptusfinance.com/


  

information is available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company. Any member 

interested in obtaining such particulars may write to the Company and the same will be furnished 

without any fee. 

 

24. Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related parties 

 

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered into by the Company during the financial year with 

the related parties were on arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business. There were 

no materially significant related party transactions with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel or other designated persons, which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the 

Company at large.  

 

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for approval. Prior omnibus 

approval of the Audit Committee is obtained on a half yearly basis for the transactions which are of a 

foreseen and repetitive nature. The transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval so 

granted are placed on a quarterly basis before the Audit Committee and Board for their review. The 

policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is available on the website of the 

Company (weblink: Related Party Transaction Policy)  

 

The details of the related party transactions for the financial year 2024-25 in Form AOC-2 is enclosed 

as Annexure A to this Annual Report. 

 

25. Conservation of Energy, Technological Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings/Outgo 

 

During the financial year 2024–25, the Company did not engage in any activities relating to 

conservation of energy or technology absorption, as it does not own or operate any manufacturing 

facility. Accordingly, the disclosure requirements under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, read 

with the applicable Rules, are not applicable to the Company for the year under review. 

 

The Company does not have any foreign currency earnings or expenditure during the financial year 

ended March 31, 2025. 

 

26. Non-Convertible Debentures 
 

During the financial year under review, the Company has issued Non-Convertible Debentures of value 

of ₹ 200 Crores, comprising ₹75 Crores each from Nippon Mutual Fund and Axis Mutual Fund, and 

₹50 Crores from DCB Bank. These Non-convertible debentures are listed under the debt segment of 

BSE Limited. 

 

The Company has duly met all its interest and principal repayment obligations during the financial year 

ended March 31, 2025, and has complied with all applicable disclosure requirements as prescribed 

under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

Hence, there were no instances of any Non-Convertible Debentures which have not been claimed by 

the investors or not paid by the Company after the date on which the Non-Convertible Debentures 

became due for redemption during the financial year. 

 

27. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments under Section 186 of Companies Act, 2013 

During the year under review, the Company had not granted any loans or guarantees or made any 

investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

28. Details of Significant & Material Orders passed by the Regulators or court or tribunal 

 

During the financial year, the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) imposed a monetary penalty of ₹3,10,000 

(Rupees Three Lakh Ten Thousand only) on the Company for non-compliance with the RBI’s Non-

Banking Financial Company – Systemically Important Non-Deposit Taking Company and Deposit 

Taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. The penalty pertains to the Company’s failure to 

https://www.aptusfinance.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/Aptus-Finance-RPT-Policy.pdf


  

obtain prior written approval from the RBI before appointing a Director, which led to a change in more 

than 30% of its Board of Directors, excluding Independent Directors. The Company has duly paid the 

penalty and has taken steps to strengthen its compliance processes. 

 

There are no other significant and material orders passed by the regulators or Courts or Tribunals 

impacting the going concern status and the operations of the Company in future. 

 

29. Disclosure pertaining to Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code 

 

There were neither any applications filed by or against the Company nor any proceedings were pending 

under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the year under review. 

 

30. Disclosure on one-time settlement 

 

During the year, the Company has not made any one-time settlement for loans taken from the Banks or 

Financial Institutions and hence the details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the 

time of one-time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial 

Institutions along with the reasons thereof is not applicable. 

 

31. Corporate Social Responsibility 

 

In line with its commitment to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), the CSR Committee of the 

Board has formulated and recommended a comprehensive CSR Policy, outlining the activities eligible 

to be undertaken by the Company in accordance with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, and 

the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. 

 

The CSR policy of the Company is available on the website of the Company. (weblink:  Corporate 

Social Responsibility Policy). 

 

The Annual Report on CSR, as required under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 

8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is attached as Annexure B 

and forms part of this Report. 

 

32. Vigil Mechanism & Whistle Blower Policy  
 

 The Company has instituted a robust Whistle-Blower mechanism as part of its commitment to fostering 

a culture of transparency, accountability, and ethical conduct across all levels of the organization. This 

mechanism provides a safe and confidential channel for directors and employees to report concerns 

related to unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud, or violations of the Company’s Code of 

Conduct—without fear of retaliation or adverse consequences.  

 

 The Whistle-Blower Policy clearly outlines the procedure for raising concerns, the process for their 

review and resolution, and the safeguards available to whistle-blowers. To ensure independence and 

effectiveness, the policy also provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee, 

thereby reinforcing the integrity of the reporting process and the Company’s zero-tolerance approach 

toward misconduct.  

 

 The Vigil Mechanism & Whistle Blower Policy is available on the website of the Company. (weblink: 

Policy on Whistle Blower & Vigil Mechanism). 

 

33. Policy on Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition   & Redressal) 

Act, 2013 

 

 The Company is fully committed to upholding the dignity, safety, and well-being of all employees and 

recognizes its responsibility to maintain a work environment that is free from sexual harassment, 

discrimination, and bias—particularly for women employees. 

 

https://www.aptusfinance.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/Aptus-Finance-CSR-Policy.pdf
https://www.aptusfinance.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/Aptus-Finance-CSR-Policy.pdf
https://www.aptusfinance.com/policies/Aptus-NBFC_Whistle-blower-Vigil-mechanism


In line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 

and Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company has implemented a comprehensive policy on the prevention of 

sexual harassment. This policy outlines clear guidelines, preventive measures, and redressal procedures 

to ensure that every employee feels safe, respected, and heard. 

To facilitate the effective resolution of complaints, an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been 

duly constituted in accordance with the requirements of the Act. The ICC is empowered to investigate 

and address any grievances related to sexual harassment in a fair, timely, and confidential manner. 

During the financial year 2024–25, no complaints were received by the Internal Complaints 

Committee, indicating the effectiveness of the Company’s preventive measures and the respectful 

culture fostered across the organization. 

34. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, and in respect of the audited financial

statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors hereby

confirms that:

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been

followed and that there were no material departures therefrom;

(ii) the directors the Directors have, in the selection of the accounting policies, consulted the

statutory auditors and have applied their recommendations consistently and made judgments

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of

affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and the profit of the Company for the year ended

on that date;

(iii) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting

records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the

assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(v) the directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that

such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively during the year

ended March 31, 2025; and

(vi) the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively during the year

ended March 31, 2025.
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ANNEXURE A 

 

Form No. AOC - 2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related 

parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s 

length transactions under third proviso thereto.  

 

1. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Nil  

 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: Nil 

 

 

Note: There were no material contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the 

financial year ended March 31, 2025. The details of related party transactions during the financial year 

under review are disclosed in the financial statements. Please refer to note no. 28 of the audited 

financial statements for further information. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

         sd/-                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

Mr. M Anandan 

Chennai                                                                                                               Non-executive Chairman                                                                                                                                                                                  

May 05, 2025                                                                                                                (DIN: 00033633) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

ANNEXURE B 

 

 

REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 

1. Brief outline of the Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy: 

 

The Company is deeply committed to the social welfare of the common people, with a primary focus 

on serving the business needs of self-employed individuals and customers from the informal sector, 

predominantly belonging to the low and middle-income groups in semi-urban and rural markets. In 

line with its CSR policy, the Company endeavours to create a meaningful and positive impact on the 

lives of disadvantaged communities by actively supporting and participating in initiatives designed to 

enhance their overall well-being and socio-economic development. 

 

The Company shall undertake CSR activities as specified under Schedule VII and Section 135 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, along with the applicable rules framed thereunder. The CSR Committee is 

entrusted with the responsibility of overseeing the planning, implementation, and monitoring of all 

CSR projects, programmes, and activities. Periodic reports on the progress and impact of these 

initiatives will be submitted to the Board for review and guidance, ensuring transparency and 

alignment with the Company’s social responsibility objectives. 

 

2. Composition of the CSR Committee 
 

S. 

No. 

Name of Director Position Designation / Nature 

of Directorship 

No of 

meetings of 

CSR 

Committee 

held during 

the year 

No of meetings 

of CSR 

Committee 

attended 

during the year 

1 Mr. K M Mohandass Chairman Independent Director 1 1 

2 Mr. M Anandan 
Member Non-executive 

Chairman 
1 1 

3 Mr. R Umasuthan Member Independent Director 1 1 

 

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the 

board are disclosed on the website of the Company: CSR Policy  

 

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of 

the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014: Not Applicable 

 

5. (a) Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): ₹ 122.04 crores 

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per sub-section (5) of section 135:  

       ₹ 2.44 crores 

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial 

years: Nil 

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil 

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [5(b)+5(c)-5(d)]: ₹ 2.44 crores 

 

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both ongoing project and other than ongoing project):  

      ₹ 2.50 crores 

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil 

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil 

(d) Total amount spent for the financial year [6(a)+6(b)+6(c)]: ₹ 2.50 crores 

 

 

 

https://www.aptusfinance.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/Aptus-Finance-CSR-Policy.pdf


(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total 

Amount 

Spent for 

the 

Financial 

Year 

(₹ crores) 

Amount Unspent (₹ crores) 

Total Amount transferred 

to Unspent CSR Account  as 

per section 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund 

specified under Schedule VII as per second 

proviso to section 135 (5)  

 Amount 

(                 ₹ crores) 
Date of 

transfer 

Name of 

the Fund 

Amount 

(₹ crores) 
Date of 

transfer 

1.14 1.36 April 16, 2025 - - - 

(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any: Nil

SI. No. Particular Amount (in ₹) 
(1) (2) (3) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 

sub-section (5) of section 135 

2,44,08,639 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 2,50,23,778 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] 6,15,139 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 

programmes or activities of the previous Financial Years, if 

any,  

Nil 

(v) Amount available for set-off in the succeeding financial years
[(iii) - (iv)]  

6,15,139 

7. Details of unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

SL. 

No. 

Preceding 

Financial 

Year(s) 

Amount 

transferred 

to Unspent 

CSR 

Account 

under 

subsection 

(6) of

section 135

(in ₹)

Balance 

Amount in 

Unspent 

CSR 

Account 

under 

subsection 

(6) of

section 135

(in ₹)

Amount 

Spent in 

the 

Financial 

Year 

(in ₹) 

Amount transferred to a 

Fund as specified under 

Schedule VII as per 

second proviso to 

subsection (5) of section 

135, if any 

Amount 

remaining 

to be spent 

in 

succeeding 

Financial 

Years 

(in ₹) 

Deficiency, 

if any 

Amount (in 

₹) 

Date of 

Transfer 

1 FY 21-22 - - - 59,78,433 20-09-2022 - 

2 FY 22-23 - - - 1,27,26,500 29-09-2023 - 

3 FY 23-24 - - - 1,72,04,879 24-09-2024 - 

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility

amount spent in the Financial Year: Yes

Number of Capital Assets Created or Acquired: 12 



  

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility 

amount spent in the financial year: 

 

SI. No. Short particulars of 

the property or 

asset(s) 

Pincode 

of the 

propert

y or 

asset(s) 

Date of 

creation 

Amount of 

CSR 

amount 

spent 

Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary of the 

registered owner 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) 

     CSR 

Registration 

Number, if 

applicable 

Name Registered address 

1.  Three additional 

classrooms and 

renovation of the 

Science Lab 

600113 02/05/2024 51,15,444 CSR00010611 Seva 

Samajam 

Childrens 

Home 

75 & 75 Bajanai 

Koil Street, 

Pallipattu,  

Chennai – 600113,  

Tamil Nadu 

2.  Two school buses, 

CCTV cameras, and 

science lab 

equipment 

641041 27/03/2025 47,16,176 CSR00018312 Vanavasi 

Seva 

Kendram 

42, Maharani 

Avenue, 4th Phase 

Near Kannimar 

Kovil, Vadavalli 

Coimbatore – 

641041,  

Tamil Nadu 

3.  Four battery-operated 

transporting vehicles 

(stretcher type & 

chair type) and a 

60KG capacity dryer 

602001 13/02/2025 29,14,600 Not 

Applicable 

Government 

Medical 

College & 

Hospital, 

Thiruvallur 

Block 1, Master 

Plan Complex 

(Collectorate 

campus) 

Perumbakkam 

Village, Thiruvallur 

– 602001 

Tamil Nadu 

4. 1 Two new classrooms 

with Smart Board 

installation 

643217 25/03/2025 26,00,000 CSR00008247 Nilgiri 

Adivasi 

Welfare 

Association 

(NAWA) 

Fair Glen Annexe 

Kota Hall Road 

Kotagiri – 643217 

The Nilgiris District,  

Tamil Nadu 

5.  Pandur Crematorium 

infrastructure 

development 

603109 02/05/2024 24,99,718 Not Applicable Pandur 

Crematorium 

Pandur 

Crematorium 

Pandur Village, 

Tirukalukundram 

Taluka 

Kancheepuram 

District - 603109 

Tamil Nadu 

6.  Provision of Police 

Towers and 

Barricades 

602001 02/05/2024 23,79,000 Not Applicable DSP office 

Thiruvallur 

MGM Nagar, 

Thiruvallur, 

Tamil Nadu 602001 

7.  Conference Hall 

Renovation (250-seat 

capacity) 

602001 02/05/2024 22,09,778 Not Applicable Thiruvallur 

District 

Collectorate 

Master Plan 

Complex, NH 205, 

Chennai - Tiruttani 

Highway, NGGO 

Colony, 

Thiruvallur,  

Tamil Nadu 602001 

8.  Barricades and a 

Bolero Jeep 

602001 02/05/2024 16,08,194 Not Applicable Government 

Medical 

College & 

Hospital, 

Thiruvallur 

Block 1, Master 

Plan Complex 

(Collectorate 

campus) 

Perumbakkam 

Village, Thiruvallur 

Tamil Nadu 602001 



  

9. 2 Water heater 

dispenser, 

refrigerator, 

computers, CCTV, 

printer, and furniture. 

601204 28/01/2025 3,22,408 CSR00029406 Hope Vision 

India (KMC 

Hospital 

Special 

Shelter for 

Men) 

Kilpauk Medical 

College Hospital 

Campus, 

822 Poonamallee 

High Road (near Ega 

Theatre), 

New Bupathy 

Nagar, Kilpauk, 

Chennai – 600010, 

Tamil Nadu, India 

10.  Water heater 

dispenser, 

refrigerator, 

computers, CCTV, 

printer, and furniture 

 600010 25/03/2025 2,89,587 Not Applicable KMC 

Hospital 

Special 

Shelter for 

Women 

Kilpauk Medical 

College Hospital 

Campus, 

822 Poonamallee 

High Road (near Ega 

Theatre), 

New Bupathy 

Nagar, Kilpauk, 

Chennai – 600010, 

Tamil Nadu 

11. 4 Emergency 

equipments and 

desktop computers 

600053 05/03/2025 2,24,500 Not Applicable Villivakkam 

Block 

Developmen

t Office 

NH‑205 Chennai–

Tiruttani Road, 

Dobhi Colony, 

Kamarajapuram, 

Ambattur,  

Chennai – 600053, 

Tamil Nadu 

12. 6 Printer, table, chair, 

inverter, and UPS 

602001 26/03/2025 1,44,373 Not 

Applicable 

DSP office 

Thiruvallur 

MGM Nagar, 

Thiruvallur, 

Tamil Nadu 602001 

 

 

9. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as 

per subsection (5) of section 135: Not applicable 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors                 

                     
     sd/-     sd/-  

M Anandan                                                                                                         K M Mohandass 

Non-executive Chairman                          Independent Director 

(DIN: 00033633)                                                                                                 (DIN: 00707839)   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

 

 

ANNEXURE C 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

GLOBAL ECONOMY 

 

The global economic environment in 2025 remained challenging, shaped by sustained geopolitical 

tensions, evolving trade policies, and tight financial conditions. The International Monetary Fund 

(IMF) projected global GDP growth at 3.3% for 2025, lower than the pre-pandemic average of 

3.7%, as economic momentum remains uneven across regions. Advanced economies were expected 

to grow modestly at 1.9%, while Emerging Markets and Developing Economies (EMDEs) were 

projected to grow at 4.2%, led by domestic demand and improved commodity trade dynamics. India 

continues to outpace global peers with a projected GDP growth rate of 6.5%, supported by resilient 

consumption, infrastructure investments, and government-led capital expenditure. 

 

Despite easing commodity prices and stabilizing supply chains, global inflation remains elevated, 

averaging around 4.3% in 2025, with varied regional trends. Advanced economies saw quicker 

disinflation, while many emerging markets continue to manage inflation with tight monetary 

policies. Central banks have generally shifted from aggressive tightening to a more calibrated 

stance, with expectations of further easing as inflation stabilizes. However, volatile energy prices 

and wage pressures remain key risks. 

 

Amid persistent global trade disruptions and rising protectionism, global trade growth has slowed to 

1.7% in 2025 from 3.8% in 2024. These headwinds have impacted investor sentiment, capital flows, 

and foreign exchange volatility, especially in trade-dependent economies.  

 

[Source: International Monetary Fund] 

 

INDIAN ECONOMY 

 

India sustained its status as the fastest-growing major economy in FY 2024–25, achieving a real 

GDP growth of 6.5%, backed by resilient domestic demand and a robust services sector. On the 

demand side, private final consumption expenditure (PFCE) grew by 7.2%, reflecting a recovery in 

rural consumption and higher discretionary spending. On the supply side, gross value added (GVA) 

expanded by 6.4%, led by the services sector, which grew at 7.2%. Industrial growth stood at 5.9%, 

while agriculture expanded by 4.6%, supported by favourable monsoons and agri-reforms. 

 

Despite global trade moderation, India’s external sector remained resilient. Exports reached a record 

US$ 824.9 billion in FY 2024–25, up 6.3% from the previous year, while gross FDI inflows grew 

by 13.7% to US$ 81 billion. The country’s foreign exchange reserves stood at US$ 676.3 billion as 

of April 2025, providing an import cover of nearly 11 months. 

 

The Reserve Bank of India undertook a calibrated easing of monetary policy, with cumulative repo 

rate cuts of 50 basis points in 2025, reducing the rate to 6% amid easing inflation, which stood at 

3.16% in April 2025. These macroeconomic tailwinds, coupled with a strong domestic consumption 

base and digital penetration, provide a favourable backdrop for NBFCs to expand their credit 

footprint and financial inclusion efforts. 

 

[Source: Ministry of Statistics & Programme Implementation] 

 

 

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW 

India’s Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) continue to play a pivotal role in deepening 

financial inclusion by catering to the credit needs of underbanked and underserved segments—

especially microenterprises, rural populations, MSMEs, and first-time borrowers. The sector, which 



  

constitutes the third-largest NBFC ecosystem globally, has grown steadily despite evolving 

macroeconomic conditions, regulatory shifts, and funding constraints.  

While NBFC credit growth moderated to 16% in FY2024–25, down from 22.1% in the previous 

year due to base effects and tighter norms for consumer lending, the sector remains resilient. 

According to CRISIL Ratings, NBFC AUM is projected to grow by 15–17% in FY2025–26. Key 

tailwinds include robust consumption-led demand, technology-driven distribution models, and 

diversification into co-lending and capital market funding avenues. Infrastructure financing remains 

the largest segment (24% share), followed by MSME (21%) and housing (16%).  

Despite rising concerns around household leverage and delinquencies—particularly in unsecured 

and microfinance segments—NBFCs have strengthened credit appraisal, risk monitoring, and 

capital adequacy standards. As of September 2024, the sector’s Gross NPA stood at 3.4% (down 

from 4.6% a year earlier), while the Return on Assets (RoA) remained healthy at 2.9%. The shift 

towards digitisation, responsible innovation, and tighter governance is expected to support 

sustainable growth. With strong macroeconomic fundamentals and expanding financial awareness, 

NBFCs are well-positioned to remain catalysts in India’s inclusive and consumption-led economic 

expansion. 

[Source: CRISIL Ratings, The Reserve Bank of India] 

 

COMPANY OVERVIEW 

 

Aptus Finance India Private Ltd is a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) registered with the 

Reserve Bank of India, operating with a mission to provide accessible and inclusive financial 

solutions to underserved and underbanked customer segments. The Company was established with 

the primary objective of addressing the financing needs of small business entrepreneurs in semi-

urban and rural India, where access to formal credit remains limited. The Company provides SME 

loans to individuals for business enhancement purpose, wherein the customers must provide 

residential property as collateral. The Company also provides Loan against Property (LAP) for 

purchase and construction of individual houses.  

 

As of FY 2024–25, the Company has achieved robust growth in its Assets Under Management 

(AUM), supported by strong credit demand, expanding customer reach, and enhanced operational 

efficiencies. The Company remains committed to sustainable and responsible growth, underpinned 

by strong governance practices, prudent risk management, and customer-centricity. The Company’s 

strategic priorities include maintaining healthy portfolio, enhancing digital origination and servicing 

capabilities, and strengthening our presence in key growth corridors.  

 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE  

 

The total income of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, was ₹499 crores 

with a growth of 54% as compared to ₹324 crores for the previous financial year. The profit before 

tax has seen a substantial improvement, increasing from ₹175 crores in FY24 to ₹238 crores in 

FY25, representing a growth of 36% y-o-y. This growth is a testament to the Company’s enhanced 

operational efficiency and profitability. The Company has worked diligently to optimise its 

processes and capitalise on market opportunities, resulting in improved financial performance. The 

profit after tax for the year was ₹176 crores as compared to ₹130 crores in the previous financial 

year, representing a growth of 35% y-o-y. The net worth of the Company as on March 31, 2025, 

stood at ₹692 crores and the Earnings per share (EPS) was ₹17.44 as on that date. 

 

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

 

During the financial year 2024-25, the Company sanctioned loans worth ₹1,437 crores marking an 

increase from ₹1,240 crores sanctioned in the previous year. Loan disbursements for the year stood 

at ₹1,334 crore, reflecting a 11% growth over the ₹1,200 crore disbursed in the preceding financial 



  

year As of March 31, 2025, our total Assets under Management stood at ₹2,952 crores as compared 

to ₹1,963 crores in the previous financial year. 

 

The company has implemented a robust collection management system that proactively monitors 

early signs of default. This, combined with the adoption of digital collection tools, has significantly 

enhanced overall collection efficiency. 

 

Key Financial Matrix 

 

Particulars Mar’25 Mar’24 Growth  

Active Loan accounts 42,762 29,925 43% 

Disbursements (₹ Cr) 1,334 1,200 11% 

Asset under Management (₹ Cr) 2,952 1,963 50% 

Profit after Tax (₹ Cr) 176 130 35% 

Return on Equity (%) 29.03 28.87 16 bps 
 

OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS 

 

The Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) sector continues to serve as a critical pillar in 

advancing financial inclusion and meeting the diverse credit needs of underserved and unbanked 

segments across India. As the sector evolves, it is shaped by emerging growth avenues as well as 

external and internal challenges. 

 

Outlined below are the key opportunities and risks that are expected to influence the NBFC sector 

in the next financial year, based on prevailing macroeconomic trends, regulatory developments, and 

market dynamics: 

 

Opportunities 

 

 Continued Expansion in Untapped Markets 
The market potential remains vast across both rural and semi-urban geographies, driven by 

rising consumption, digital awareness, and increasing formalization of the economy. 

Government initiatives such as Digital India and PM SVANidhi continue to encourage 

credit penetration in underbanked regions. 

 

 Diversified Loan Book as a Strategic Lever for Resilience and Growth 

A diversified portfolio across consumer lending, MSME finance, vehicle finance, and 

affordable housing helps mitigate sector-specific risks while enabling scalable growth. This 

diversity supports risk-adjusted returns, particularly in a volatile interest rate environment. 

 

 MSME Sector – A Catalyst for Credit Demand 

The MSME segment remains significantly underserved by traditional banks. With the 

formalization of many small businesses and increased GST adoption, NBFCs are well-

placed to leverage alternative credit scoring models and extend customized credit solutions 

to this vital segment of the economy. 

 

 Digitization, AI, and Data Analytics Enhancing Lending Efficiency 

Increasing adoption of AI/ML-based credit models, e-KYC, and real-time risk monitoring 

has streamlined customer onboarding, reduced turnaround time, and improved loan 

collections. Digitally-enabled NBFCs are better positioned to respond to changing customer 

behaviour and emerging risks. 

 

 Strengthening Bank-NBFC Co-Lending Partnerships   

The co-lending model continues to gain momentum, with revised RBI guidelines 

supporting increased collaboration. These partnerships enable NBFCs to leverage the cost 

of capital advantage of banks while extending credit to last-mile borrowers, thus enhancing 

financial inclusion. 



  

 

 

 Technology-Led Credit Delivery and Recovery Infrastructure 

NBFCs are increasingly integrating technology for the full credit lifecycle—from 

onboarding and underwriting to disbursement and collections. Platforms leveraging UPI, 

Account Aggregators, and embedded finance are enhancing credit access, while digital 

tools are improving recovery efficiency and customer engagement. 

 

Threats 

 

 Elevated Cost of Funds Amidst Tight Liquidity Conditions 

With interest rates remaining elevated and liquidity intermittently tight, especially in the 

wake of global monetary tightening cycles, NBFCs face continued pressure on borrowing 

costs, which could impact margins, especially for smaller players. 

 

 Evolving and Stricter Regulatory Oversight 

The regulatory environment remains dynamic, with the RBI increasingly aligning NBFC 

norms with those of banks (e.g., scale-based regulation, stricter provisioning norms, and 

governance standards). Sudden regulatory shifts may require operational, capital, and 

compliance adjustments. 

 

 Inferior credit profile of borrowers 

Despite improved formalization, a significant share of borrowers—particularly in the 

MSME and informal segments—continue to display fragile credit profiles. Any external 

shock, such as monsoon failure or global demand slowdown, could increase delinquency 

levels. 

 

 Rising Competitive Intensity 

NBFCs face growing competition from fintech lenders, small finance banks, and digital 

arms of large banks. This intensifies pressure on margins, customer retention, and 

technology investment, especially for mid-size and legacy NBFCs.Impact on demand in the 

backdrop of sustained inflation. 

 

 Technological Obsolescence and Cybersecurity Threats 

The accelerating pace of digital innovation demands continual tech upgrades. Failure to 

invest in scalable and secure digital infrastructure could lead to customer attrition or 

vulnerabilities, including cyber threats and data privacy concerns. 

 

 Demand-Side Challenges from Persistent Inflationary Pressures 

While inflation has moderated compared to its peak, elevated input and service costs 

continue to affect the disposable incomes of households and profitability of small 

businesses, impacting credit demand and repayment capacity. 

 

 Geopolitical Volatility and Global Economic Uncertainty 

Ongoing geopolitical tensions (e.g. trade disruptions, conflicts, oil price volatility) pose a 

risk to financial stability and capital markets, indirectly affecting investor sentiment, 

funding access, and the macroeconomic backdrop for NBFC operations. 

 

 

 

 



  

RISK MANAGEMENT  

 

At Aptus, the process of risk identification is guided by the Company’s objectives, external 

environment, stakeholders, among others. Once the risks are identified, it devises plans outlining 

mitigation actions for the assigned risks. The major types of risk that the Company face in its 

businesses and the mitigation measures adopted are as below. 

 

Risk Description Mitigations 
Credit Risk 

 

The Company is exposed to credit 

risk primarily through potential 

defaults by customers under their 

respective loan agreements. 

We leverage a robust customer 

profiling methodology that involves 

the collection and evaluation of over 

50 critical data points across financial, 
demographic, occupational, and 

behavioural dimensions. This multi-

faceted analysis enables us to 

accurately assess a borrower’s 

creditworthiness, repayment capacity, 

and potential risk indicators, forming 

the backbone of our risk-based 

underwriting process. 
 
Loan disbursements are executed in a 

phased manner, aligned with project 
milestones and subject to validation 

through independent technical site 

visits. This approach ensures that funds 

are released only after confirming 

actual construction progress or asset 

deployment, thereby mitigating the risk 

of misuse or diversion of loan 

proceeds. 
Our underwriting framework 

incorporates multiple verification 

touchpoints including field visits, 

document authentication, tele-

verifications, and third-party data 

validation. This layered approach 

ensures thorough due diligence and 

significantly reduces the risk of fraud, 

misrepresentation, or documentation 

discrepancies during loan processing. 
Market Risk 
 

Market risk refers to the potential for 

loss in on balance sheet and off-

balance sheet positions due to 

adverse movements in market 

variables, particularly changes in 

interest rates, exchange rates, and 

equity prices. 

In accordance with regulatory 

requirements, we have implemented a 

Board approved Risk Management and 

Asset-Liability and Liquidity Risk 

Management Policy.  
This comprehensive policy establishes 

the framework for identifying, 

assessing, and managing market risk 

across the organization. It enables us to 

actively monitor and respond to 

developments in the broader economic 

and financial environment, including 

movements in interest rates, exchange 
rates, equity markets, and money 

markets, as well as changes in 

government policies and regulatory 



  

Risk Description Mitigations 
guidelines. The policy ensures a 

disciplined approach to maintaining 

financial stability and aligning our risk 

exposures with the Company’s overall 

risk appetite. 
Interest Rate 

Risk 
 

Interest Rate Risk refers to the 

potential impact on a financial 

institution’s earnings due to 

fluctuations in interest rates. 

To effectively manage interest rate 

risk, we strive to maintain an optimal 

balance between short-term and long-

term borrowings. Our financing 

strategy emphasizes diversification of 

funding sources to ensure cost 

efficiency, mitigate refinancing risk, 

and enhance the overall stability of our 

funding base.  
As part of our Asset-Liability 

Management (ALM) framework, all 

assets and liabilities are systematically 

classified into defined time buckets 

based on their contractual or expected 

maturities. This enables a detailed 

analysis of repricing mismatches and 

exposure across various interest rate 

scenarios. 
 
The Asset-Liability Management 

Committee (ALCO) plays a central 

role in interest rate risk oversight. It 

conducts regular reviews of interest 

rate sensitivity reports, which evaluates 

the potential impact of rate movements 
on both earnings and the economic 

value of equity. This proactive 

monitoring supports timely decision-

making and helps ensure alignment 

with the company’s risk appetite and 

financial objectives. 
Operational 

Risk 
Operational risk refers to the risk of 

financial loss arising from 

deficiencies or failures in internal 

processes, human errors, system 

malfunctions, or external events 

beyond the organization’s control. 

Operational risk encompasses the 

potential for loss resulting from human 
error, system failures, inadequate 

processes, or control deficiencies. It 

arises from a broad spectrum of 

sources, including technology 

breakdowns, breaches of internal 

controls, fraud, unforeseen catastrophic 

events, and other disruptions to 

business operations that may lead to 

financial losses or reputational damage. 
 
To effectively manage operational risk, 

we have established a robust control 

framework that emphasizes proactive 

risk identification, continuous 

monitoring, and timely mitigation. Key 

elements of this framework include 

clear separation of responsibilities, 

access controls and authorisation 



  

Risk Description Mitigations 
procedures, regular and systematic 

verification of transactions and records 

to ensure accuracy and integrity, 

ongoing training and performance 

assessment. Through this 

comprehensive approach, we strive to 

minimize operational disruptions, 

safeguard our assets, and maintain the 

trust of our stakeholders. 
Liquidity Risk Liquidity risk arises from the 

potential inability to meet short-term 

financial obligations due to non-

availability of funds. 

Liquidity risk is actively monitored and 

managed through a structured 

framework led by our Asset-Liability 

Management Committee (ALCO). As 

part of this process, all assets and 

liabilities are systematically 

categorized into maturity buckets to 

assess potential mismatches, with a 

particular focus on short-term 

obligations. This enables us to 

proactively identify funding gaps and 

ensure the timely availability of funds 

for operational and financial 

commitments. 
 

We maintain continuous oversight of 

our liquidity position to ensure that the 

company can meet all borrower 

disbursement needs, debt servicing 

obligations, and other financial 

liabilities without disruption. Our 

Board approved Asset-Liability and 

Liquidity Risk Management Policy 

serves as the foundation for our 

liquidity risk governance. 
This policy outlines a range of 

measures to mitigate liquidity risk, 

including diversification of funding 

sources to enhance flexibility and 

reduce dependency on any single 

channel, maintenance of adequate 

liquidity buffers to absorb short-term 

shocks and strong capital adequacy to 

support sustained business growth and 

build confidence among stakeholders. 
Information 

Technology 

Risk  

 

IT risk is the risk of operational 

disruption and financial loss resulting 

from failures in IT systems, 

infrastructure breakdowns, data 

breaches, cyber-attacks, or other 

threats to information security. 

To effectively manage IT-related risks, 

the Company has implemented a 

comprehensive and robust IT risk 

management framework incorporating 
multiple layers of controls, checks, and 

safeguards. Key measures include: 
 Automated Daily Data Backup: 

Our critical databases are backed 

up daily to secure cloud 

environments, ensuring swift 

restoration capabilities to maintain 

seamless business continuity in the 

event of data loss or system failure. 



  

Risk Description Mitigations 

 Disaster Recovery (DR) 

preparedness: A cloud-based 

disaster recovery solution is in 

place, with bi-annual mock drills 

conducted to rigorously test and 

validate the recovery process. This 

ensures readiness and minimizes 

downtime during unforeseen 

disruptions. 

 Cybersecurity Enhancements: We 

are committed to continuous 

improvement of our IT controls to 

combat emerging cyber threats. 

This includes a well-defined 

Vulnerability Management 

Program that systematically 

identifies, assesses, and mitigates 

security weaknesses. 

 Cyber Crisis Management: An 

established Cyber Crisis 

Management Plan guides our 

response to cyber incidents, 

enabling swift containment and 

recovery while minimizing 

operational impact. Cyber Crisis 

Management: An established Cyber 

Crisis Management Plan guides our 

response to cyber incidents, 

enabling swift containment and 

recovery while minimizing 

operational impact. 

 Employee awareness and Training: 

Recognizing that cybersecurity is a 

shared responsibility, we conduct 

regular awareness campaigns via 

emails and interactive sessions. 

These initiatives empower 

employees with essential 

knowledge and best practices to 

uphold stringent security standards 

and proactively defend the 

company’s digital assets against 

evolving cyber risks. 

Compliance 

Risk 

 

Compliance risk refers to the 

potential risk of legal or regulatory 

actions, financial loss, or reputational 

damage that an organization may 

face due to its failure to adhere to 

applicable laws, regulations, industry 

standards, or internal policies and 

procedures. 

The Company effectively manages and 

monitors compliance risks through a 

well-structured and proactive 

framework, anchored by a Board-

approved Compliance Policy. This 

framework is overseen by the Chief 

Compliance Officer (CCO) and 

supported by a dedicated compliance 

team responsible for ensuring that the 

Company’s operations remain aligned 

with applicable laws, regulatory 

expectations, and internal governance 

standards. 



  

Risk Description Mitigations 
To strengthen oversight and promote 

real-time regulatory adherence, the 
Company introduced a digital 

Compliance management Tool during 

the current financial year. This 

automated system enables efficient 

tracking of compliance obligations, 

assignment of responsibilities, deadline 

monitoring, and status reporting, 

significantly enhancing transparency, 

accountability, and timeliness in 

compliance processes. 
 

The compliance function conducts 

systematic and ongoing reviews of 

processes and business practices to 

identify potential gaps and ensure full 

adherence to statutory and regulatory 

requirements. In addition to regulatory 

compliance, the team plays a pivotal 

role in continuously updating internal 

policies and procedures, ensuring they 

remain agile and responsive to the 

evolving legal and regulatory 

environment. 
 

By integrating technology-driven 

solutions with a strong compliance 

framework, the Company strengthens 

its risk management architecture and 

builds greater trust with stakeholders, 

regulators, and partners. 
 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS  

 

The Company continues to place strong emphasis on maintaining a robust framework of internal 

financial controls, recognizing its critical role in ensuring operational excellence, financial 

discipline, and regulatory compliance. During the year, the internal audit function—independently 

conducted by the internal auditors of the holding company—undertook a comprehensive evaluation 

of the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management practices, operational controls, and process 

integrity. 

 

To maintain transparency and objectivity, the internal audit team reports functionally to the Audit 

Committee of the Board, thereby reinforcing independence in oversight. The audit scope included a 

detailed review of the design, implementation, and operating effectiveness of key financial and 

operational controls. 

 

The internal auditors did not identify any material deficiencies during the year and confirmed that 

the internal control environment remains adequate and effective. Furthermore, the statutory 

auditors, in the course of their audit of financial statements, assessed the Company's internal 

financial control systems relevant to financial reporting and expressed satisfaction over their 

adequacy and operating effectiveness. 

The Board remains committed to continuously strengthening the internal control framework by 

leveraging technology, enhancing process automation, and embedding risk-based auditing practices 

to proactively address emerging challenges in the dynamic financial services landscape. 

 

 

 



  

HUMAN RESOURCES 

 

Our employees remain the cornerstone of our sustained success. We believe that a skilled, agile, and 

future-ready workforce is key to driving innovation, operational excellence, and long-term value 

creation. Accordingly, we continue to invest in fostering a high-performance culture built on 

empowerment, collaboration, and continuous learning. 

 

Guided by the philosophy that our people are our most valuable asset, the Company continually 

adapts its human resource policies to adopt a holistic, employee-centric approach. This ensures 

alignment with both organizational priorities and individual aspirations. Emphasis is placed on 

attracting and retaining top-tier talent through transparent processes, competitive rewards, and 

meaningful career development opportunities. 

 

The Human Resources function plays a strategic role in building leadership capability, nurturing a 

growth mindset, and reinforcing a culture of inclusion and accountability across the organization. 

With a forward-looking people agenda, the Company is actively strengthening its talent pipeline 

and future-proofing its workforce by enhancing digital capabilities and managerial excellence. 

 

As we continue to expand our footprint, we remain committed to fostering a diverse and inclusive 

workplace that values unique perspectives and drives innovation. Our talent strategy is closely 

aligned with our business growth roadmap, ensuring we are well-positioned to meet evolving 

market demands. 

 

OUTLOOK 

 

The macroeconomic environment for FY 2025–26 remains broadly stable, with India projected to 

continue as one of the fastest-growing major economies, underpinned by resilient domestic 

consumption, sustained infrastructure investment, and supportive government initiatives. This 

positive economic backdrop provides a conducive environment for the continued expansion of the 

Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) sector. 

 

The NBFC industry is expected to maintain its growth momentum, driven by robust credit 

demand—particularly from the retail and MSME segments—as well as increasing formalization of 

the economy and rapid digitization of financial services. 

 

The Company is well-positioned to capitalize on these opportunities through its diversified loan 

portfolio, growing digital capabilities, and deep presence in rural and semi-urban markets. By 

maintaining a strong focus on financial inclusion, prudent risk management, sound corporate 

governance, and operational excellence, the Company aims to sustain healthy growth and generate 

long-term value for all stakeholders. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

ANNEXURE D 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

1. Corporate Governance Philosophy 

Corporate governance is not merely a compliance obligation for the Company. It is integral to 

driving strategic focus and ensuring operational excellence. We view governance as a dynamic 

framework that reinforces our foundational values of integrity, transparency, and accountability. 

Guided by an independent and empowered Board, a clearly articulated leadership structure, and 

rigorous internal controls, we ensure decision-making is both responsible and forward-looking. 

Our approach transcends compliance. We believe that strong governance fosters resilience, 

safeguards stakeholder interests, and drives sustainable, long-term value creation. In a rapidly 

evolving business environment, our governance philosophy is not just about mitigating risk, it's 

about unlocking opportunity and strengthening trust across all levels of the organization. 

The Company remains fully compliant with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 

the SEBI Listing Regulations (as applicable to debt-listed entities), and the Reserve Bank of India’s 

regulatory framework for NBFCs, including the Scale-Based Regulation (SBR) guidelines. Our 

governance framework is rooted in ethical conduct, proactive compliance, transparent disclosures, 

and accountable decision-making. In a dynamic regulatory landscape, we remain committed to 

continually strengthening our governance practices to align with evolving statutory norms and the 

growing expectations of our stakeholders. 

2. Board of Directors 
      

  Composition: 
 

 The composition of the Board of Directors (“the Board”) is fully aligned with the requirements of 

the Companies Act, 2013. The Board comprises a balanced mix of Independent and  

Non-Executive Directors, ensuring effective oversight, sound governance, and strategic guidance. 
 

 Board members bring diverse and complementary expertise across key domains such as banking 

and financial services, audit, finance, risk management and compliance. Directors are appointed 

based on their qualifications, professional experience, and ability to contribute meaningfully to the 

Company’s governance and long-term objectives. 
 

As on March 31, 2025, the Board comprised of six members, including one Non-executive 

Director, four Independent Directors, and one Whole-time Director. None of the Directors on the 

Board hold directorships in more than 20 private companies or 10 public companies. All Directors 

have duly disclosed their interests in other companies, including their directorships and committee 

memberships. Further, none of the Directors are related to one another. 
 

During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors met five (5) times on  

May 02, 2024, July 31, 2024, November 04, 2024, January 30, 2025, and March 26, 2025, 

respectively. The interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days. The Company 

complies with the Secretarial Standards on Board and Committee Meetings, as prescribed by the 

Institute of Company Secretaries of India, with respect to the conduct of meetings. 

 

 
 



  

 

The composition of the Board of Directors, as prescribed under the Master Direction – Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company – Scale-Based 

Regulation) Directions, 2023, is given below: 

 

 

 

#  Mr. Subba Rao N.V was appointed on the Board w.e.f. March 26, 2025. 

S. 

No. 

Name of the 

Director 

Director 

since 

Capacity of 

the Director 

DIN Number of Board 

meetings 

No of the 

other 

Directorship 

Remuneration  

(in Rs.) 

No. of shares held in and 

convertible instruments 

held in the NBFC 

Held Attended Sitting fees Commission  

1 Mr. M Anandan September 

04, 2023 

Chaiman  

(Non-

executive) 

00033633 5 5 2 Nil Nil 100 equity shares of Rs.10/ 

each holding on behalf of 

Aptus Value Housing 

finance India Limited, 

Holding Company 

2 Mr. S Krishnamurthy September 

18, 2015 

Independent 

Director 

00066044 5 5 0 2,40,000 7,50,000 Nil 

3 Mr. K M Mohandass September 

18, 2015 

Independent 

Director 

00707839 5 5 2 3,50,000 7,50,000 Nil 

4 Mr. R Umasuthan November 

21, 2020

  

Independent 

Director 

08962500

  

5 4 0 1,40,000 7,50,000 Nil 

5 Mr. P Balaji December 

29, 2017

  

Whole-time 

Director 

07904681 5 5 1 Nil Nil Nil 

6 Mr. Subba Rao N.V # March 26, 

2025 

Independent 

Director 

05153667 0 0 3 Nil Nil Nil 



  

Details of changes in the composition of the Board during the financial year ended March 31, 2025, 

are as follows: 

 

 

Sl. 

No. 

Name of the Director  Capacity Nature of change Effective Date 

1.  Mr. Subba Rao N.V 

(DIN: 05153667) 

Independent Director Appointment March 26, 2025 

 

3. Committees of the Board: 

 

The Board has constituted various committees to assist in effectively discharging its responsibilities. 

As of March 31, 2025, the Company had seven (7) Board Committees, namely: 

 

1. Audit committee 

2. Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

3. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

4. IT Strategy Committee  

5. Risk Management Committee 

6. Resourcing & Business Committee  

 

A.  Audit Committee 

 

The Audit Committee has been constituted as required under Section 177 of the 

Companies Act, 2013.  

 

The Audit Committee of the Board met four (4) times during the year on May 02, 2024, 

July 31, 2024, November 04, 2024, and January 30, 2025, respectively. The composition 

of the committee as on March 31, 2025, and attendance of the members are given below: 

 

 

Terms of reference: 

 

1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its 

financial information to ensure that the Financial Statement is correct, sufficient and 

credible. 

2. The recommendation for appointment, reappointment, replacement, remuneration and 

terms of appointment of statutory, secretarial and internal auditors of the Company for 

audit or any other services rendered by the auditors. 

3. Examining and Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly, half yearly and annual 

Financial Statements and the auditors’ report before submission to the Board for 

approval, with particular reference to: 

 

Sl. 

No. 

Name of the 

Director 

Member of 

Committee 

since 

Capacity  

 

Number of 

Meetings of the 

Committee 

No. of 

shares  

held in 

the  

Company 
Held  Attended 

1. Mr. K M 

Mohandass 

(Chairman) 

September 18, 

2015 

Independent 

Director 

4 4 - 

2. Mr. S 

Krishnamurthy 

September 18, 

2015 

Independent 

Director 

4 4 - 

3. Mr. R Umasuthan November 21, 

2020 

Independent 

Director 

4 3 - 



  

i.   Matters required to included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be 

included in the Board’s report in terms of sub-section 5 of section 134 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

ii.   Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 

iii.   Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment 

by management. 

iv.   Significant adjustments made in the Financial Statements arising out of audit 

findings  

v.   Compliance with accounting and other legal requirements relating to Financial 

Statements. 

vi.  Disclosure of any related party transactions. 

vii. Qualifications in the draft Auditors Report, if any. 

4. Reviewing the Accounting Policies from time to time including those on Provisions. 

5. Reviewing, with the management, performance of Statutory and Internal Auditors, 

adequacy of the internal control systems. 

6. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the 

internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, 

reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit.  

7. Discussion with Internal Auditors on any significant findings and follow up there on.  

8. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the Internal Auditors into 

matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control 

systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board.  

9. Discussion with Statutory Auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and 

scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern. 

10. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of 

audit process;  

11. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related 

parties. 

12. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and quarterly review of investment activities; 

13. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the debenture 

holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

14. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary. 

15. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems. 

16. Monitoring the end use of funds if raised through public offers and related matters. 

17. Ensure that an information system audit of the internal systems and processes is 

conducted to assess operational risks, if any, faced by the Company. 

 

The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:  

 

1. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;  

2. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), 

submitted by management;  

3. Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the Statutory 

Auditors;  

4. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses. 

  

B.  Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee is constituted under Section 178 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board met 

three (3) times during the year on May 02, 2024, November 04, 2024 and March 26, 2025. 

 

The composition of the committee as on March 31, 2025, and attendance of members are 

given below: 

 

 

 



  

 

Sl. 

No. 

Name of the 

Director 

Member of 

Committee 

since 

Capacity  

 

Number of 

Meetings of the 

Committee 

No. of 

shares  

held in 

the  

Company Held  Attended 

1. Mr. K M 

Mohandass 

(Chairman) 

September 

18, 2015 

Independent 

Director 

3 3 - 

2. Mr. S 

Krishnamurthy 

September 

18, 2015 

Independent 

Director 

3 3 - 

3. Mr. M Anandan September 

04, 2023 

Non-

Executive 

Chairman 

3 3 100 equity 

shares of Rs.10/ 

each holding on 

behalf of Aptus 

Value Housing 

finance India 

Limited, 

Holding 

Company 

 

Terms of reference: 

 

1. Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 

independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to, the 

remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and senior management 

personnel; 

2. Formulating criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the 

Board of Directors of the Company; 

3. Determining whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent 

director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors; 

4. To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of 

Directors and succession planning for Directors; 

5. To recommend to the Board, the remuneration payable to the Directors of the 

Company from time to time; 

6. Performing such other activities as may be delegated by the Board and/or 

specified/provided under the Companies Act or the SEBI regulations, or by any other 

regulatory authority. 

 

C.   Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

 

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is constituted as per Section 135 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board met 

once (1) during the year on May 02, 2024.  

 

The composition of the committee as on March 31, 2025, and attendance of members are 

given below: 

 

Sl. 

No. 

Name of the 

Director 

Member of 

Committee 

since 

Capacity  

 

Number of 

Meetings of the 

Committee 

No. of 

shares  

held in 

the  

Company Held  Attended 

1. Mr. K M 

Mohandass 

(Chairman) 

September 

18, 2015 

Independent 

Director 

1 1 - 



  

2. Mr. R 

Umasuthan 

November 

21, 2020 

Independent 

Director 

1 1 - 

3. Mr. M 

Anandan 

September 

04, 2023 

Non-

Executive 

Chairman 

1 1 100 equity 

shares of 

Rs.10/ each 

holding on 

behalf of Aptus 

Value Housing 

finance India 

Limited- 

Holding 

Company 

 

Terms of Reference:  
 

1. To formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR policy which shall indicate the 

activities to be undertaken by the Company as per the Schedule VII of Companies Act, 

2013 as may be amended or modified from time to time;  

2. To review and recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities 

to be undertaken by the Company;  

3. To monitor the CSR policy of the Company from time to time;  

4. Recommending the amount of expenditure to be incurred, amount to be at least 2% of 

the average net profit of the Company in the three immediately preceding financial 

years; 

5. Instituting a transparent monitoring mechanism for implementation of the corporate 

social responsibility projects or programs or activities undertaken by the Company; 

6. Formulate and recommend to the Board, an annual action plan in pursuance of its CSR 

policy, which shall include the following: 

 list of CSR projects or programmes that are approved to be undertaken in areas or 

subjects specified in Schedule VII of the Act; 

 the manner of execution of such projects or programmes; 

 the modalities of utilisation of funds and implementation schedules for the projects 

or programmes; 

 monitoring and reporting mechanism for the projects or programmes; 

 details of need and impact assessment, if any, for the projects undertaken by the 

Company: 

7. Monitoring the corporate social responsibility policy from time to time and issuing 

necessary directions as required for proper implementation and timely completion of 

corporate social responsibility programmes; 

8. Identifying corporate social responsibility policy partners and corporate social 

responsibility policy programmes; 

9. Identifying and appointing the corporate social responsibility team of the Company 

including corporate social responsibility manager, wherever required; and 

10. Any other matter as the CSR Committee may deem appropriate after approval of the 

Board of Directors or as may be directed by the Board of Directors from time to time. 

 

D.  IT Strategy Committee 

 

The IT Strategy Committee has been constituted in accordance with the Master Direction 

on Information Technology Governance, Risk, Controls and Assurance Practices issued by 

the Reserve Bank of India dated November 07, 2023. 

 

The IT strategy committee met three (3) times during the year on July 31, 2024, November 

04, 2024, and January 30, 2025. 

The composition of the committee as on March 31, 2025, and attendance of members are 

given below: 

 



  

 

Sl. 

No. 

Name of the 

Director 

Member of 

Committee 

since 

Capacity  

 

Number of 

Meetings of the 

Committee 

No. of 

shares  

held in 

the  

Company 
Held  Attended 

1. Mr. K M 

Mohandass 

(Chairman) 

September 18, 

2015 

Independent 

Director 

3 3 - 

2. Mr. R Umasuthan November 21, 

2020  

Independent 

Director 

3 2 - 

3. Mr. P Balaji December 29, 

2017  

Whole-time 

Director 

3 3 - 

 

Terms of Reference:  
 

1. Ensuring that the Company has put an effective IT strategic planning process in place; 

2. Guide in preparation of IT Strategy and ensure that the IT Strategy aligns with the 

overall strategy of the Company towards accomplishment of its business objectives; 

3. Satisfy itself that the IT Governance and Information Security Governance structure 

fosters accountability, is effective and efficient, has adequate skilled resources, well 

defined objectives and unambiguous responsibilities for each level in the organisation; 

4. Ensure that the Company has put in place processes for assessing and managing IT 

and cybersecurity risks; 

5. Ensure that the budgetary allocations for the IT function (including for IT security), 

cyber security are commensurate with the Company’s IT maturity, digital depth, threat 

environment and industry standards and are utilised in a manner intended for meeting 

the stated objectives; 

6. Review, at least on annual basis, the adequacy and effectiveness of the Business 

Continuity Planning and Disaster Recovery Management of the Company; 

7. Approving IT strategy and policy documents and ensuring that the management has 

put an effective strategic planning process in place;  

8. Ensuring an appropriate balance of IT investments to support the Company’s growth, 

while maintaining awareness of IT-related risks and controls. 

 

E. Risk Management Committee 

 

The Risk Management Committee has been constituted as per Master Direction – Reserve 

Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company – Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 

2023. The Committee met four (4) times during the year on May 02, 2024, July 31, 2024, 

November 04, 2024, and January 30, 2025. 

 

The composition of the committee as on March 31, 2025, and attendance of members are 

given below: 

 

 

Sl. 

No. 

Name of the 

Director 

Member of 

Committee 

since 

Capacity  

 

Number of 

Meetings of the 

Committee 

No. of 

shares  

held in 

the  

NBFC 
Held  Attended 

1. Mr. S 

Krishnamurthy 

(Chairman) 

September 

18, 2015 

Independent 

Director 

4 4 - 

2. Mr. KM 

Mohandass 

November 

21, 2020

  

Independent 

Director 

4 4 - 

3. Mr. P Balaji December 

29, 2017 

Whole-time 

Director 

4 4 - 



  

 

Terms of Reference:  
 

1. To formulate a comprehensive risk management policy outlining a framework for 

identifying internal and external risks (including financial, operational, sectoral, and 

cyber security risks), measures for their mitigation through internal controls, and a 

business continuity plan; 

2. To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor 

and evaluate risks associated with the business of the Company; 

3. To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including 

evaluating the adequacy of risk management systems; 

4. To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, 

including by considering the changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity; 

5. To keep the board of directors informed about the nature and content of its 

discussions, recommendations and actions to be taken; 

6. The appointment, removal, and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer shall 

be subject to review by the Risk Management Committee. 

F. Resourcing & Business Committee 

 

The Resourcing & Business committee met Nine (09) times during the year on  

June 26, 2024, September 27, 2024, October 23, 2024, November 18, 2024, December 17, 

2024, January 22, 2025, February 21, 2025 and March 19, 2025. 

 

The composition of the Resourcing & Business Committee as on March 31, 2025 is given 

below. 

 

 

Sl. 

No. 

Name of the 

Director 

Member of 

Committee 

since 

Capacity  

 

Number of 

Meetings of the 

Committee 

No. of 

shares  

held in 

the  

NBFC 
Held  Attended 

1.  Mr. S 

Krishnamurthy 

(Chairman) 

September 

18, 2015 

Independent 

Director 

9 3 - 

2.  Mr. KM 

Mohandass 

November 

21, 2020

  

Independent 

Director 

9 9 - 

3.  Mr. P Balaji December 

29, 2017

  

Whole-time 

Director 

9 9 - 

 

Terms of Reference:  

1. Borrowing such sum or sums of moneys, availing all kinds and types of loans and 

credit facilities including debentures and other debt instruments, commercial paper, 

temporary loans from the Company’s bankers, from time to time, up to such sum / 

limit as may be fixed by the Board of Directors / Shareholders, for and on behalf of 

the Company, from its directors, shareholders, banks, NBFCs, financial institutions, 

companies, firms, bodies corporate, Co-operative Banks, investment institutions and 

their subsidiaries, or from any other person as may be permitted under applicable laws, 

whether unsecured or secured by mortgage, charge, hypothecation or lien or pledge of 

the Company’s assets and/or properties, whether movable including stocks, fixed 

assets, book debts and to create security over the assets and / or properties of the 

Company in relation to such borrowings and loan/ credit facilities, modification or 

satisfaction of the charge/ security created on the assets and/or properties of the 

Company from time to time; 



  

2. To raise funds and manage financial exposure through structures including Direct 

Assignments and Securitisation transactions, in accordance with applicable laws and 

regulations, and to undertake all necessary actions, documentation, and compliances 

related thereto; 

3. To mortgage / charge/ hypothecate all or any of the movable properties and assets of 

the Company both present and future and the whole or substantially the whole of the 

undertaking or the undertakings of the Company on such terms and conditions, as may 

be agreed to with the Lender(s), Debenture holders and providers of credit and debt 

facilities to secure the loans / borrowings / credit / debt facilities obtained or as may be 

obtained, or Debentures/Bonds and other instruments issued or to be issued by the 

Company to or in favour of the financial institutions, Non-Banking Financial 

Companies, Co-operative Banks, investment institutions and their subsidiaries, banks, 

mutual funds, trusts and other bodies corporate or trustees for the holders of 

debentures/bonds and/or other instruments; 

4. To establish current and other banking accounts with various banks upon such terms 

and conditions as may be agreed upon with the said bank and various other entities; to 

specify and change the authorized signatories and their transaction limits to the said 

banking accounts; to close current and other banking accounts; 

5. Any unsecured loans to be given by the Company other than staff loan advances to be 

approved by the Resourcing & Business Committee; 

6. Any secured loan to be given by the Company including Housing loans, loans against 

property, SME loans and other loans exceeding Rs. 1 crore to be approved by 

Resourcing & Business Committee; 

7. To consider and approve securitization arrangements and to authorize carrying out of 

all actions connected therewith; 

8. To review, modify and approve investment policy of the Company from time to time; 

9. To give any guarantee or provide security or authorize the issuance of any form of 

comfort letter in connection with all kinds and types of loans, credit facilities, debt 

facilities and financing facilities availed and / or to be availed in accordance with the 

limit laid down by the Board of Directors; 

10. To authorize affixing the common seal of the Company in accordance with the manner 

laid down in the Articles of Association and to authorize taking the Common Seal out 

of the registered office of the Company; 

11. To exercise such other powers as may be vested by the Board from time to time; 

4. Independent Directors 
  

Independent Directors are appointed for a specific term by the shareholders of the Company based 

on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of 

Directors at their respective meetings. 
 

None of the Independent Directors are promoters or are related to promoters. They do not have any 

pecuniary relationship with the Company and further do not hold two percent or more of the total 

voting power of the Company. 
 

The Independent Directors have submitted declaration of independence, as required pursuant to sub-

section (7) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 stating that they meet the criteria of 

independence as provide in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Act. Based on the declarations 

received from the Independent Directors, the Board of Directors has confirmed that they meet the 

criteria of independence as mentioned under Section 149 of the Act and that they are independent of 

the management. 

  

5. General Body Meetings 

 

The details of General Meetings held in the last 3 years and in the current financial year along with 

the details of special resolutions, as more particularly set out in the notices of the respective 

meetings and passed by the members are as follows: 



  

 

S. No.  Type of meeting  Date and Place Special Resolutions passed 

1.  7
th
 Annual 

General Meeting 

Friday, September 

30, 2022, at the 

Registered office 

of the Company 

 To fix the borrowing limits of the Company 

pursuant to provisions of section 180(1)(c) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 

 To create charge/mortgage on the assets of the 

Company pursuant to provisions of section 

180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 

 To approve issuance of Non-convertible 

Debentures 

2.  8
th
 Annual 

General Meeting 

Friday, September 

29, 2023, at the 

Registered office 

of the Company 

 Re-designation of Mr. P Balaji (DIN: 

07904681) from Non-Executive to Whole-Time 

Director  

 To fix the borrowing limits of the Company 

pursuant to provisions of section 180(1)(c) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 

 To create charge/mortgage on the assets of the 

Company pursuant to provisions of section 

180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 

 To approve issuance of Non-convertible 

Debentures 

 To approve alteration of the Memorandum of 

Association 

 To approve alteration of the Articles of 

Association 

3.  Extra-ordinary 

General Meeting 

Friday, August 

04, 2023, at the 

Registered office 

of the Company 

 To re-appoint Mr. K M Mohandass as the 

Independent Director of the Company 

 To re-appoint Mr. S Krishnamurthy as the 

Independent Director of the Company 

4.  9
th
 Annual 

General Meeting 

Tuesday, August 

13, 2024, at the 

Registered office 

of the Company 

 To fix the borrowing limits of the Company 

pursuant to provisions of section 180(1)(c) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 

 To create charge/mortgage on the assets of the 

Company pursuant to provisions of section 

180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 

 To approve issuance of Non-convertible 

Debentures 

 

 

6. Remuneration of Directors 

 

The criteria for payment of annual commission to Non-executive Directors are based on the 

performance of the Company as well as that of the individual non-executive director. The 

commission payable to Non-Executive Directors was recommended by the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee, approved by the Board, and is within the overall limits prescribed under 

the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The details of sitting fees and commission paid to the Directors, and shares held by them in the 

Company as of March 31, 2025, are as follows: 

 

 

 



  

Name of the Directors Sitting fees 

(In Lakhs) 

Commission 

(In Lakhs) 

No of equity shares 

held in the Company 

Board  Committee 

Mr. M Anandan Nil Nil Nil 100 equity shares of  

Rs. 10/- each 

Mr. S Krishnamurthy 1.00 1.40 7.50 Nil 

Mr. K M Mohandass 1.00 2.50 7.50 Nil 

Mr. Umasuthan 0.80 0.60 7.50 Nil 

Mr. Subba Rao N V Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Mr. P Balaji Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

       ANNEXURE E 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT  
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025  

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

 

To, 

The Members, 

 

APTUS FINANCE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 

No 8B, Doshi Towers, 8th Floor, No.205, Poonamallee High Road, 

Kilpauk, Chennai -600 010.  

 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices of M/s. APTUS FINANCE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (CIN: 

U74900TN2015PTC102252) (hereinafter called “the Company”). The Secretarial Audit was conducted 

in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 

compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 

other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 

officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations 

and clarifications given to us and the representations made by the Management we hereby report that in 

our opinion, the Company has, during the audit, period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 

2025, generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder, and also that the Company has 

proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 

the reporting made hereinafter: 
 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, according to the provisions 

of: 

  

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;  

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder as 

applicable to the Company; 

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder as applicable to 

the Company. 

iv. The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to 

the extent as applicable to the Company. The Company does not have any Foreign Direct 

Investment, External Commercial Borrowings and Overseas Direct Investment. 

 

v. The following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’), to the extent applicable: 

 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993, regarding Companies Act and dealing with client to the extent of the 

securities issued; 

 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; Not Applicable for the year under review; 

 



  

 

 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015; 

 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ; 

 
e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements), 2018; Not Applicable for the year under review; 

 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999, and The Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 and The Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 

2021; Not Applicable for the year under review;  

 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 

Securities) Regulations, 2021 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and 

Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008  to the extent applicable;  

 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; Not 

Applicable for the year under review; 

 

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; 

Not applicable for the year under review, 

 

j. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and 

Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013; Not Applicable for the year under 

review; 

 

Further we report that, based on the compliance mechanism established by the Company, which has been 

verified on test check basis, we are of the opinion that the Company has complied with the provisions of 

the Master Direction – Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company – Scale Based 

Regulation) Directions, 2023 dated October 19, 2023 issued by Reserve Bank of India, Circulars, Master 

circulars, Notifications, Rules and Guidelines as prescribed for Non-Banking Financial Companies; 

 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable regulations and clauses of the following:  

 

i. Listing agreements entered into by the Company with the BSE Limited as per the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for 

listing of its Non-Convertible Debentures. 

 

ii. Secretarial Standards (SS-1) for Board Meeting and Secretarial Standards (SS-2) for General 

Meetings issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 

We further report that, during the period under review, the Company has, in our opinion complied with 

the provisions of the applicable Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned 

above.  

 

 



  

 

We further report that  

 

- the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted as on the date of this report, with proper 

balance of Executive, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in 

composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried 

out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

 

- Adequate notice is given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 

notes on agenda were sent in advance as per the applicable provisions of the Act, and a proper 

system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 

before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.  

 

- Majority decision is carried through and there were no dissenting views of the members.  

 

- The Company has obtained all necessary approvals under the various provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013 to the extent applicable; and  
 

- The Company has failed to obtain prior written permission from the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) 

while appointing a director, which resulted in change in its management on account of change in 

more than 30 per cent of its directors, excluding Independent Directors, for which RBI has imposed 

a monetary penalty of ₹3,10,000 through its order dated 31st January 2025; 
 

- The Company is in the process of identifying a suitable candidate for the appointment of a woman 

director as mandated under Section 149(1) read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, and Regulation 17(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 

 

- The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility for 

appointment, their independence, wherever applicable and compliance with the Code of Business 

Conduct & Ethics for Directors and Management Personnel;  
 

We further report that based on the information received, records maintained, and representation 

received, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 

operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 

guidelines. 

 

We further report that, during the audit period the Company has: 

 

a. Passed a Special Resolution at the Ninth Annual General Meeting held on August 13, 2024, for 

omnibus approval to issue or invite subscriptions for all kinds and types of Non-Convertible 

Debentures under Sections 42, 71, and 179 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

b. Passed a Special Resolution under Sections 179 and 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, at the 

Ninth Annual General Meeting held on August 13, 2024, fixing the borrowing limits at Rs. 3,500 

crores. 

 

c. Appointed M/s. Suri & Co. (FRN: 004283S) as the Statutory Auditors at the Ninth Annual General 

Meeting held on August 13, 2024 

 

d. Appointed Mr. Anto Abinash as the Company Secretary & Compliance officer of the Company on 

November 4, 2024. 



  

 

e. Accepted the resignation of Mr. Uday Venkata Kiran Siginamsetty as the Chief Financial Officer 

under Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, on December 13, 2024. 

 

f. Accepted the resignation of Mr. Harshvardn T as the Company Secretary under Section 203 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, on August 09, 2024. 

 

g. Allotted 7500 Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable Non-convertible Debentures amounting to  

Rs. 75,00,00,000/- (Rupees Seventy-Five crores only) on December 31, 2024, by way of private 

placement. 

 

h. Allotted 5,000 Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable Non-convertible Debentures amounting to  

Rs. 50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty crores only) on February 28, 2025, by way of private placement. 

 

i. Allotted 7,500 Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable Non-convertible Debentures amounting to  

Rs. 75,00,00,000/- (Rupees Seventy-Five crores only) on March 6, 2025, by way of private 

placement 

 

j. Passed an ordinary resolution at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on March 31, 2025 to 

appoint Mr. Subba Rao N V (DIN: 05153667) as an Independent Director of the Company with 

effect from March 26, 2025. 

 

For S Sandeep & Associates 

 

   S Sandeep 

 Managing Partner 

FCS No.5853; COP No. 5987 

Place: Chennai                UDIN:F005853G000285121 

Date: May 05, 2025                             PR No.: 6526/2025 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



suri&co. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

I Offices: Chennai, Madurai, Coimbatore, 
Thiruvananthapuram, Coonoor, 
Bengaluru, Kochi & Mumbai 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF APTUS FINANCE 

INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2025 

To the Members of Aptus Finance India Private Limited 

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Aptus Finance India 

Private Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 3 l stMarch 

2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the 

Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended 

and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting 

policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the 

Companies Act, 2013, ("The Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair 

view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 

133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 

as amended ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, 

of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2025, and its profit, total 

comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on 

that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ("SA") 

specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 

Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 

accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 

of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there 

under and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance wi 

requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. 

suriandco.com chennai@suriandco.com 

V 
044-28251140 
044-28251150 

Guna Comple 
4th Floor Main 81 IUOIIY1'a .4 

Teynampet, Chennai -

GSTIN - 33AABFS5023Q1Z2 
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Information Other than the Financial Stat~ments and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors and the management is responsible for other 

information. The other information comprises the information included in the 

Director's Report including Annexures to the Director's Report but does not include 

the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we 

do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read 

the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 

materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in 

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we 

performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 

regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 

Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 

134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that 

give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including 

other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 

Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. This responsibility also 

includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing 

and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 

accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 

of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 

financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of 

most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These 

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a 

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 

on these matters. 

Key Audit Matter 

Impairment Loss Allowance: 

How our audit addressed the key audit 

matter 

Management's judgements in the We obtained an understanding of 

calculation of impairment allowances management's assessment of impairment 

have significant impact on the of loans and advances including the Ind 

financial statements. The estimates AS 109 implementation process, 

regarding impairment allowances are impairment allowance policy and ECL 

complex and require a significant modelling methodology: 

degree of judgement, which increased 
We have assessed the reasonableness of 

with implementation of expected 
the management estimates by 

credit loss ("ECL") approach as 
understanding the process of ECL 

required by Ind AS 109 relating to 
estimation and related assumptions and 

"Financial instruments." 
tested the controls around data 

The key areas of judgement include: validation and extraction. 

1. Categorization of loans in Stage I, We also assessed the approach of the 

II and III based on identification of: Company for categorization the loans in 

WI
.th various stages reflecting the inherent risk 

(a) exposures significant 
in the respective loans 

increase in credit risk since their 

origination and For a sample of financial assets, we also 

assessed the approach of the Company 

regarding application of significant 
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(b) Individually impaired / default increase in credit risk criteria, definition 

exposures. of default, reasonableness of probability 

of default, loss given default 

As a result of the above audit procedures 
2. Techniques used to determine 

Loss Given Default ('LGD') and 
no material differences were noted. 

Probability of Default ('PD') to We confirm the adequacy of disclosures 

calculate an ECL based on made in the Financial Statements. 

experience. 

These judgements required the 

models to be reassessed including 

the impact of Covid -19 Pandemic to 

measure the ECL 

ECL provision calculations require 

the use of large volumes of data. The 

completeness and reliability of data 

can significantly impact accuracy of 

the modelled impairment provisions. 

The accuracy of data flows and the 

implementation of related controls is 

critical for the integrity of the 

estimated impairment provisions. 

Given the significance of judgements 

and the high complexity related 

particularly to the calculation of ECL, 

we considered this area as a key 

audit matter. 
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In preparing the financial statements, management 1s responsible for assessing 

the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 

matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 

unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, 

or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial 

reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 

in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 

responsive to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 

or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 

section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 

whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 

of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis 

of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 

on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 

material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 

report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or if such disclosures 

are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events 

or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 

statements, including the disclosures and whether the financial statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, 

individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 

reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We 

consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of 

our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the 

effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 

audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to 

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 

thought to bear on our independence and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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From the matters communicated ,vi.th those charged with governance, we determine 

those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements 

of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 

matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 

about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 

matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 

such communication. 

Other Matter: 

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024, were 

audited by the previous auditor whose report dated May 02, 2024 expressed an 

unmodified opinion on those financial statements. 

Our opinion on the financial statements is not modified in respect of the above 

matter. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), 

issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 

section 143 of the Act, we give in "Annexure A" to this Report, a statement 

on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order. 

2. As required by Section 143(3} of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which 

to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of 

our audit; 

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept 

by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other 

Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the 

Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with 

the books of account; 
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as 

on 31st March 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 

directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2025 from being appointed as a 

director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with 

reference to the financial statements of the Company and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure 

B". 

• (g) With respect to the other matters to be include d in the Auditor's Report in 

accordance with the requirements of section 197 ( 16) of the Act : 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its 

directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 

197 of the Act. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 

2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 

the explanations given to us: 

1. The Company does not have any pending litigations as at the year-end 

which would impact its financial position. 

11. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including 

derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable 

losses. 

n1. There were no amounts, required to be transferred, to Investor 

Education Protection Fund during the year by the Company . 
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(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge 

and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 

from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind 

of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including 

foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether 

recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, 

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 

("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like 

on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its 

knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Company 

from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), 

with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 

the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in 

other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 

behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered 

reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come 

to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations 

under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule ll(e), as provided under (a) and 

(b) above, contain any material misstatement. 

v. The Company has not declared or paid any interim/final dividend 

during the year ended 31st March 2025. 

v1. With respect to Rule l l(g) of Companies (Audit & Auditors) 

Rules,2014, on maintenance of audit trail, transaction and edit log, 

based on our examination which included test checks, the company 

has used multiple accounting software for maintaining its books of 

account which has the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility 
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and the same has 0peraLed throughout the year for all relevant 

transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of 

our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature 

being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the 

Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention. 

For Suri & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 

mRegn.No.004283S 

Place: Chennai 
Date : 05-05-2025 
UDIN : 25229694BMIIHW9034 

Sanjeev Aditya M 
Partner 

M.No :229694 
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Annexu.re A to the Independent Auditors' report 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on other Legal and 

Regulatory Requirements" of our report of even date) 

The Annexure referred to in the Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the 

company on the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025, we report 

that: 

(i) In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible 

Assets: 

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full 

particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, 

Plant and Equipment. 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full 

particulars of intangible assets. 

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment is physically verified at reasonable 

intervals by the management. According to the information and explanations 

given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, and the books 

and records verified by us, there are no immovable properties held by the 

Company and hence reporting under clause 3(i)(c) is not applicable. 

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment 

and intangible assets during the year. 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against 

the Company as at 31st March 2025 for holding any benami property under 

the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and 

rules made thereunder. 

(ii) (a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under 

Clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 
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(b) The Company has been sar1ctioned working capital limits in excess o~ 5 

crore, during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of 

security of Loan assets. There are no material discrepancies between the 

statements submitted to the bank and the books of accounts. 

(iii) The Company has not provided any guarantee or security to companies, firms, 

Limited Liability Partnerships or any others but has made investments and 

granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured, to other parties. 

The reporting as required under this clause is given below 

(a) Since the company is a NBFC, the reporting under the Clause (iii)(a) is not 

applicable. 

(b) In our opinion, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the 

grant of loans, during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the 

Company's interest. The company has not provided any guarantee and the 

security given are not prejudicial to the Company's Interest 

(c) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of 

principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments 

of principal amounts and receipts of interest are generally been regular as 

per stipulation except for the disclosure made in Note 6 in the financial 

statements. 

(d) The amounts overdue for more than 90 days aggregating principal 

repayment and interest payments is Rs.3646.71 lakhs. In our opinion 

reasonable steps have been taken by the company for recovery of principal 

and interest. 

(e) The Company is a NBFC, whose principal business is to provide loans. 

Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) is not applicable. 

(f) The Company has not granted any loa.ns or advances in the nature of loans 

either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of 

repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) is not 

applicable. 

(iv) According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on 

the overall examination of Financial Statements, the Company has not 

granted any loans, made investments or provided any guarantee to parties 

which are covered under Section 185 and 186(1) of the Act, the other provision 

of the section 186 of the act are not applicable to the Company since it is a 
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Non-Banking Finance Company registered with the RBI engaged in the 

business of giving loans. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of sections 

73 to 76, or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed 

thereunder and hence the reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not 

applicable. 

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central 

Government under sub- section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 

for the business activities carried out by the Company. Hence, reporting under 

clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(vii) In respect of statutory dues: 

(a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing 

undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident 

Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, and other material statutory 

dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. 

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and 

Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, and 

other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 st March 2025 for a period of 

more than six months from the date they became payable. 

(c) There are no statutory dues referred in clause (a) which have not been 

deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. 

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that 

have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax 

assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

(ix) (a) Based on our examination of the books of accounts and other records of 

the company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other 

borrowings or in the payment of interest. 

(b) Based on our examination of the books of accounts and other records of 

the company and based on the information and explanation provided by the 

management, the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank 

or financial institution or government or any government authority. 
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(c) Based on our examination of the books of accounts and other records of 

the company and based on the information and explanation provided by the 

management, the term loans obtained during the year were applied for the 

purpose for which the loans was obtained. 

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, 

funds raised on short- term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the 

year for long-term purposes by the Company. 

(e) The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Associate or Joint Venture. 

Hence reporting under this clause as to whether the company has taken any 

funds from an entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its 

subsidiaries or joint ventures is not applicable. Accordingly, reporting on 

clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable 

(f) The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Associate or Joint Venture. 

Hence reporting under this clause as to whether the company has raised any 

loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint 

ventures or associate companies is not applicable. Accordingly, reporting on 

clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 

(x) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 

has not raised monies by way of initial public offer or further public offer 

during the year. Accordingly clause 3(x)(a) of the order is not applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us and based 

on the overall examination of Financial Statements, the Company has not 

made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or 

partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and 

hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable 

to the Company. 

(xi) (a) According to the information and explanations provided to us and based 

on the overall examination of Financial Statements, no fraud by the Company 

and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during 

the year. 
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(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has 

been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit 

and Auditors) Rules, 20 14 with the Central Government, during the year and 

upto the date of this report. 

(c) No whistle blower complaints were received by the company during the year 

(and upto the date of this report). 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) 

of the Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related 

parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the 

financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system 

commensurate with the size and the nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, 

issued to the Company during the year and till date, in determining the 

nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 

(xv) In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-

cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected with its directors. 

and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not 

applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) (a) In our opinion, the Company is required to be registered under section 45-

IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and has obtained the required 

registration. 

(b) The company has conducted Non-Banking Financial Activities with Valid 

Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank of India. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to 

us , the company is not a core investment company (as defined in the Core 

Investment Companies (Reser✓e Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly 

reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 
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(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and the audit 

procedures performed by us, we report that the Group to which the 

Company belongs does not have any Core Investment Company. 

Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(d) of the order is not applicable. 

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered 

by our audit and the immediately preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during 

the year and hence reporting under clause 3 (xviii) is not applicable. 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation 

of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 

accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of 

Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the 

evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, 

which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date 

of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its 

liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within 

a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this 

is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state 

that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and 

we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due 

within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by 

the Company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on 

our examination of the records of the company, In respect of other than 

ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be 

transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Act, in compliance with 

second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act. This has been 

disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements. 
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(b) According to the infom1ation and explanations given to us and based on 

our examination of the records of the company, all amounts that are unspent 

under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act, pursuant to any ongoing 

project, has been transferred to special account in compliance with provisions 

of sub section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. The same has been disclosed 

in note 35 to the financial statements. 

Place: Chennai 
Date : 05-05-2025 
UDIN : 25229694BMIIHW9034 

For Suri & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn. No. 004283S 

anjeev Aditya M 
Partner 

M.No :229694 
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 

Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 

of Aptus Finance India Private Limited ("the Company") as of 31st March 2025 in 

conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year 

ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 

financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements 

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 

controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the 

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 

reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial 

controls with reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 

our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on 

Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 

controls with reference to financial statements, both applicable to an audit oflnternal 

Financial Controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 

requirements and plan an.d perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
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whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 

were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 

material respects . 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 

adequacy of the internal financial controls system with reference to financial 

statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 

with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of 

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk 

that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 

system with reference to financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a 

process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes 

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal 

financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and 

procedures that: 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 

fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 

permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company 

are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors 

of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 

unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could 

have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements. 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial 

statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management 

override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 

be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 

financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 

control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 

deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal 

financial controls system with reference to financial statements and such internal 

financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as 

at 31st March 2025, based on the internal control with reference to the financial 

statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. 

Place: Chennai 
Date : 05-05-2025 
UDIN : 25229694BMIIHW9034 

For Suri & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn. No. 004283S 

Sanjeev Aditya M 
Partner 

M.No:229694 



Aptus Finance India Private limited 

Balance 5hcet as at March 31, 2025 

1 

(a) 

{b) 

(c) 

Id) 

2 

l•I 
(b) 

(c) 

Id) 

I<) 

1 

(a) 

(b) 

{c) 

{d) 

2 

{a) 

(b) 

(c) 

3 

{a) 

(b) 

P;,rt.icular,; 

ASSETS 

Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents 

lo.ins 

Other financial assets 

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Non.financial assets 

Current tax assets (Net) 

Deferred tax assets (Net) 

Property, pl.ant and equipment 

Intangible assets 

Other non·financial assets 

TOTAL NON·FINANCIAL ASSETS 

TOT Al ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 

Financial liabilities 

Payables 

Trade payables 

(i) total outstandinc dues of micro ~ntcrpriscs and sm.all enterprises 

(ii) total ouutandinc dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Other payables 

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises ;;1nd small enterprises 

Debt securities 

Borrowine:s (other than debt securities) 

Other financial liabilities 

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Non•Financial Liabilities 

Current tax liabilities (Net} 

Provisions 

Other non•financial liabilit ies 

TOTAL NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

EQUITY 

Equity shdre capital 

Other equity 

TOTAL EQUITY 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

M.,.t(ltictl accounting policic$ 

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 

For M/s Suri & Co., 

Chartered Accountants 

Registration. No.: 0042835 

Partner 

Mcmbarship No. 2296911 

UDl/\3 '. ~5~ 1i;o, 1! BHII H\J 

C/0'!1, 

Place : Chennd/ 

Date: May 5, 2025 

Note No. 

8 

9 

10A 

108 

11 

26.2 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

As at 

March 31, 2025 

13.916.60 

386.82 

2,90,4BS56 

312.33 

3,05,101.31 

124.22 

313.63 

270.80 

708.65 

3,05,809.96 

12.00 

43.25 

19,204.49 

2,16,613.10 

563.66 

2,36,436.50 

3.96 

164.69 

168.65 

2,36,605.15 

10,080.00 

59,124.81 

69,204.81 

3,05,809.96 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Aptus Finance India Private limited 

CIN • U74900TN201SPTC1022S2 

Rs. in l.>:khs 

Asat 

March 31, 2024 _ _ 

7,755.19 

629.26 

1,91,368.08 

407.73 

2,00,160.26 

367.43 

308.0S 

675.48 

2,00,835.74 

8.75 

138.15 

1,48,695.04 

762.54 

1,49,104.48 

!>8.97 

2.03 

74.64 

135.64 

1,49,240.12 

10,080.00 

41,!>15.62 

51,59S.62 

2,00,835.74 

~ 
M Anandan 

Chairman 

\~~ 

Place : Chcnna/ 

D•t• : May 5, 2025 

P Baf;,jJ 

WholcHime Director 

DIN: 07904681 



Aptus Finance India Private Limited 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2025 

l 

!•l 
(bl 
(c) 

4 

{a) 

(b) 

(cl 
(d) 

(c) 

10 

Revenue from operations 

Interest income 

Fees and commission income 

Net gain on fair value changes 

Total Revenue from operations 

Other income 

Total Income (1+2) 

Expenses 

Finance costs 

Particulars 

Impairment on financial instruments 

Employee benefits expense 

Oepreclatlon and amortisation expense 

Other expenses 

Total expenses 

Profit before tax (3•4) 

Tax e.Kpense 

- Current tax 

- Tax relating to earlier years 

- Deferred tax 

Total tax expense 

Profit for the year (5-6) 

Other comprehensive income 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

- Remeasurements of the defined benefit obligation 

- Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Other comprehensive Income/ {Loss} net of tax for the year 

Total comprehensive income for the year (7+8) 

Earnings per Equity share (Equity shares, par value Rs. 10/· each): 

(a) Basic (in Rs.) 

(b) DIiuted (in Rs.) 

Material accounting policies 

The accompanying notes arc integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 

For M/s Suri & Co., 

Chartered Accountants 

Partner 

Membership No. 229694 

Place : Chenn.1i 

Date : May 5, 2025 

Rs. in lakhs 

For the year ended For the year ended 
Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

20A 46,853.78 29,631.26 

208 1,707.37 993.45 

20C 124.96 38.95 

48,686.11 30,663.66 

21 1,262.91 1,695.55 

49,949.02 32,359.21 

22 16,706.79 9,726.98 

23 1,409.95 558.76 

24 214.85 193.83 

lOA,108 

25 7,853.79 4,411.01 

26,185.38 14,890.58 

23.763.64 17,468.63 

9 6,129.95 4,601.08 

9 53.50 (85.33) 

6,183.45 4,515.75 

17,580.19 12,952.88 

1.25 (0.38) 

(0.31) 0.10 

0.94 (0.28) 

17,581.13 12,952.60 

29 

17.44 12.85 

17.44 12.85 

2 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Aptus Finance India Private limited 

CIN • U74900TN2015PTC102252 

MAnandan 

Chairman 

DIN: 003 633 

Place : Chennai 

Date : May 5, 2025 

,~~.\1/ 
P Balaji 

Whole-time Director 

DIN: 07904681 
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Aptus Ffnance India Private Limited -

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025 

1. Equity share capital 

Particulars 

I opening Balance as at April 1.!. 2023 
I Changes In equity share capital during the year 

(a) Fresh Issue of equity shares 

~alance as at March 3~ 2024 
!Changes in equity share capital during the year 

{a) Fresh issue of equity shares 

'Balance as at March 31..!.. 2025 

2. Other equity 

Particulars 

Opening Balance as .:1t_p,2!!!_1..!_ 2023 
Profit (loss) for t he yl'!!ar (net of tax) 

I other Compre~~Q'~e Income for the year (net Ot tax) 

!Transfer to Statuto_!Y_Reserve 

!Transfer to Statuto!Y Reserve 

Deemed investment durinj_ the year 

Billa nee as at March 31,-2024 

Profit~ for the ye.i7inet of tax) 

lather Com_E!ehensive Income/ (loss) for the year (net of tax) 

!Transfer to Statutory Reserve 

ESOP Reserve during the~ar 
(Transfer to retained earnings 

Deemed investment during the year 
Balance ilS at March 31, 2025 

I Notes: 
R.efer Note 19.2 for descriptron of nature and purpose of each reserve. 

I 
Material accounllng po11cfes (Refer Note 2) 
The accompanying notes are Integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report f 
For M/s Suri & Coo even date 

~~artered Accoun~•ants 
irm Registrati 

~::;;)), 
SanJeev Aditya M 

Partner 

Membership No. 229694 

, ,, -~I & C , 

• * 
* (/j 

n § 
' 

U:DlrJ ',9.-S''.l'.L'H,q Lt BM II H ~ tf02,1; 

I
Pface: Chennal 

Ca~e: Y ~_y_S. 202S 

Rs. in lakhs 

Amount 

lOLOS0.00 

lOLOS0.00 

10,080.00 

Reserves and Surplus 

Securities Premium I Statutory Reserve j 1mpairment Reserve I Deemed Investment 

4-L.968.00 

~68.00 

4,968.00 

4.!.614.71 151.57 

2.!.590.58 

7L205,29 l~b~ 

3,516.04 

10,721.33 151~ 

for and on behalf of the Board of Dirc.ctors 

Apllls Finance India Private Lfmited 

CIN • U74900TNl015PTC102252 

~ 
M Anandan 

Chairman 

Place : Chennai 
J.::i!e : May 5, 202S 

547.72 
547.72 

547.72 

ESOP Reserve ] Retained Earnings 

18,281.0Z 

12,952.88 

(2,590.58 

28,643,32 

l7 580.19 

13 516.04\ 
2so6 T 

r 
I 

zs.oG I 42,707.48 

Remeasurnmc:nt 

gain/ (loss) on 

defined benefit 

plan 

10.2s1 

10.28) 

0.94 

o.66 I 

\-~°'7 
P Balaji 

Whole-time Director 

DIN: 07904681 

Rs. in lakhs I 

Tota l 

28,015.30 

12,952.88 
10.2s: 

547.72 
41,515.62 

17,580.19 
0.94 

~ 

59,124.81 

~CJ• IN', 

•t' r~ 
~ CHENN, 

~,( 11,-,-~.li' *- ' 



Aptus Finance India Private Limited 

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Particulars 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Profit before tax 
Adjustments tor: 

Finance costs 
Interest income from bank deposits 

Share based expense 
Net gai n on changes in fair value 
Impairment on Financial Instruments 

Operat ing profit before working capital changes 

Movements in working capital: 

(Increase) in loans 
(Increase}/ Decrease in other financial assets 

(Increase)/ Decrease ln other non-financial assets 
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables 
Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions 
Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liabilities 
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other non-fina ncial liabilities 

Cash flow from/ (used) in o perations 

Finance cost paid 
Direct Taxes p3id (Net) 

Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A) 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Deposits placed with banks, net 

Interest received on bank deposits 
Income received from mutual funds 

Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities (B) 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Proceeds from issue or de bt securit ies 
Repayment of debt securit ies 
Proceeds from borrowings (other than debt securities) 
Repayment of borrowings (other than debt securities) 
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C) 

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 4) 

The accon1panying notes are integral part of t he financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 

For M/s Suri & Co., 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration. No.: 004283S 

Place: Chennai 

Date: Moy 5, 2025 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025 

16,706.79 

(46.76) 
28.06 

(124.96) 

1,409.95 

(1,00,527.43) 
95.40 
37.25 

(91.66) 
3.18 

301.12 
90.05 

242.44 
46.76 

124.96 

20,000.00 
(468.75) 

1,50,876.40 
(82,278.62) 

23,763.64 

17,973.08 

41,736.72 

(1,00,092.09) 

(58,355.37) 

(17,713.27) 
(6,313.14) 

(82,381.78) 

414.16 

88,129.03 

6,161.41 

7,755.19 

13,916.60 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Aptus Finance India Private limited 

CIN • U74900TN2015PTC102252 

M Anandan 
Chairman 

Place : Chenna i 
Date : May 5, 2025 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

9,726.98 
(46.36) 

(38.95) 
558.75 

(96,983.66) 
(307.36) 

(11.20) 

111.75 
0.61 

(113.32) 
(56.67) 

10.28 

38.95 

(732.64) 
1,64,637.72 

(73,687.12) 

PBalaji 
Whole-time Director 
DIN: 07904681 

Rs. in lakhs 

17,468.63 

10,200.43 

27,669.06 

(97,359.85) 

(69,690.79) 

(10,747.80) 
(4,460.62) 

(84,899.21) 

49.23 

90,217.96 

5,367.98 

2,387.21 

7,755.19 



Aptus Finance India Private Limited 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

1. Corporate Information 

Aptus Finance India Private Limited (" the company") was incorporated on September 18, 2015 with the 

primary objective of carrying on the business of providing finance in the form of loan against immovable 

properties. The Company with CIN: U74900TN2015PTC102252, is a Private Limited Company domiciled in 

India. The Registered Office of the Company is located at No. 88, Doshi Towers, 8th Floor, No: 205, 

Poonamallee High Road, Kilpauk, Chennai. The Company has been granted t he certificate of registration dated 

December 16, 2016 issued by the Reserve Bank of India under Section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 

1934, to commence/carry on the business of non-banking financial institution. The Company is a non-deposit 

taking systemically important Non-Banking Financia l Company ('NBFC-ND- SI'). 

2. Material accounting policies 

Basis of preparation and presentation 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015 as per Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter 

("Ind AS") on the historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value 

that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies 

below, the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") and the guidelines issued by the RBI to 

the extent applicable. 

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared and 

presented in the format prescribed in the Division Ill of Schedule Ill to the Act. The Statement of Cash Flows 

has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows". 

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in lakhs rounded off to two decimal places 

as permitted by Schedule Ill to the Act, except when otherwise indicated. 

Presentation of financial statements 

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement 

within 12 months after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non­

current) is presented in Note 34. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are genera lly reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset 

and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised 

amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in the 

normal course of business, event of default or insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its 

counterparties. 
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Aptus Finance India Private Limited 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

2.1 Financial Instruments 

2.1.1 Financial instruments - initial recognition 

2.1.1.1 Date of recognition 

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans, debt securities, and borrowings are initially 
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument. Loans are recognised when fund transfers are initiated to the customers' account or 
cheques for disbursement have been prepared by the Company (as per the terms of the agreement with the 
borrowers). The Company recognises debt securities and borrowings when funds reach the Company. 

2.1.1.2 Initial measurement of financial instruments 

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the 
business model for managing the instruments. Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair value, 
except in the case of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at Fair value through profit and loss 
("FVTPL"), transaction costs are added to, or subtracted from, this amount. 

2.1.1.3 Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities 

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and the 
asset's contractual terms, measured at either amortised cost or FVTPL or Fair Value through Ot her 
Comprehensive Income ("FVOCI"). 

2.1.2 Financial assets and liabilities 

2.1.2.1 Bank balances, Loans and financial investments at amortised cost 

The Company measures bank balances, loans, and other financial investments at amortised cost if t he financial 
asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual 

cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 

solely payments of principal and interest ("SPPI" ) on the principal amount outstanding. 

The details of these conditions are outlined below. 

2.1.2.1.1 Business model assessment 

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages Company's of 
financial assets to achieve its business objective. 

The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of 
aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as: 

► How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are 
evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel 

► The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that 

business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed 

► How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on 
the fair va lue of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected) 

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' or 
'stress case' scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are real ised in a way that is different 
from the Company's original expectations, the Company does not change the classification of the remaining 
financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when assessing new ly 

originated or ........:;;: ~:=_': ·~: ~ financial assets going forward. 



Aptus Finance India Private Limited 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

2.1.2.1.2 The SPPI test 

As a second step of its classification process the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial asset to 
identify whether they meet the SPPI test. 

'Principal' for the purpose of this test is defined as the fa ir value of the financial asset at initial recognition and 
may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation 
of the premium/discount). 

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the 
time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Company applies judgement and 
considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the period for 
which the interest rate is set. In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure 
to risks or volatili ty in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lend ing arrangement do not give 
rise to contractua l cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the amount outstanding. In 
such cases, the financial asset is required to be measured at FVTPL. 

2.1.2.2 Financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading 

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased or issued primarily 

for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of financial instruments that 

are managed together, for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit taking. Held-for­

trading assets and liabilities are recorded and measured in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value 

are recognised in net gain on fair value changes. Interest and dividend income or expense is recorded in net 

gain on fair va lue changes accord ing to the terms of the contract, or when the right to payment has been 

established. 

2.1.2.3 Equity instruments at FVOCI 

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, unless the 
Company's management has elected to classify irrevocably some of its equity investments as equity 
instruments at FVOCI, when such instruments meet the definition of definition of Equity under Ind AS 32 
Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. Such classification is determined on an 
instrument-by-instrument basis. 

Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised in 
profit or loss as dividend income when the right of the payment has been established, except when the 
Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the instrument, in which case, such 
gains are recorded in Other Comprehensive Income ("OCI"). Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an 
impairment assessment. 

2.1.2.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading and have been 
either designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be measured at fair 
value under Ind AS 109. Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at 
fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and loss with the exception of movements in fair value 
of liabilit ies designated at FVTPL due to changes in the Company's own credit risk. Such changes in fair value 
are recorded in the Own credit reserve through OCI and do not get recycled to the profit or loss. Interest 
earned or incurred on instruments designated at FVTPL is accrued in interest income or finance cost, 
respectively, using the EIR, taking into account any discount/ premium and qualifying transaction costs being 



Aptus Finance India Private Limited 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

an integral part of instrument. Interest earned on assets mandatori ly required to be measured at FVTPL is 
recorded using contractual interest rate. 

2.1.3 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities 

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the 
exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial 
liabilities are never reclassified. 

2.1.4 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities 

2.1.4.1 Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions 

The Company de recognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and conditions have 

been renegotiated to the extent that , substantially, it becomes a new loan, wit h the difference recognised as 

a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded. The newly 

recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes. When assessing whether or not to 

derecognise a loan to a customer, amongst others, the Company considers the following factors: (i) Change in 

counterparty (ii) If t he modification is such that the instrument would no longer meet the SPPI criterion (iii) If 

the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does not result 

in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Company records a 

modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded. 

2.1.4.2 Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification 

A financial asset is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. 

The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has bot h transferred the financia l asset and the transfer 

qualifies for derecognition. 

A transfer only qualifies for de recognition if either: the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and 

rewards of the asset or has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, 

but has transferred control of the asset. Control is considered to be transferred if and only if, the transferee 

has the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise t hat 

ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer. 

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has 

retained control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the Company's 
continuing involvement, in which case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The t ransferred 

asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the 

Company has reta ined. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower 
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration the Company could be 

required to pay. 

In case when transfer of a part of financial asset qualifies for derecognition, any difference between the 

proceeds received on such sa le and the ca rrying value of the transferred asset is de recognised as a gain or loss 

on decrease of s • • sset. 



Aptus Finance India Private Limited 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

2.1.4.3 Financial liabilities 

A financial liability is de recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. 
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is 
treated as a de recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between 
the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there 

is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a 
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

2.1.4.4 Financial Guarantees 

Financial guarantees given are initially recognised in the financial statements at fa ir value, being the premium 

received. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company's liability under each guarantee is measured at the 

higher of the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in the statement of profit 

and loss. The premium is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the life of 

the guarantee. 

Financial guarantees received are recognised in the financial statements at fair value of the premium paid. In 

case of guarantees received without consideration from group companies, the fair value of premium payable 

over the life of the guarantee is recognised as deemed investment. The fair va lue of premium is recognised as 

expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee. 

2.1.4.5 Deemed Investments 

Fair value of corporate guarantee taken from Holding company is recognised as Deemed Investment and 

corresponding effect has been fully amortized. 

2.1.5 Impairment of financial assets 

2.1.5.1 Overview of the ECL principles 

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial assets not held at 
FVTPL, together with loan commitments, in this section all referred to as 'financial instruments'. Equity 
instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS 109. 

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of t he asset (the lifetime 
expected credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in 
which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months' expected credit loss (12mECL). 

The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial 
instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. 

Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis, depending on the 
nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments. 

The Company has estab lished a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of 
redit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering 

rring over the remaining life of the financial instrument. 



Aptus Finance India Private Limited 

Notes to financial stat ements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Based on the above process, the Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described 
below: 

Stage 1: 

When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12mECLs. Stage 1 loans also 
include facilities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2. 

Stage 2: 

When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an allowance 
for the L TECLs. Stage 2 loans also include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been 
reclassified from Stage 3. 

Stage 3: 

Loans considered credit-impaired. The Company records an allowance for the LTECLs. 

Staging rules set have been applied to the product categories to bucket them into either Stage 1, Stage 2 or 
Stage 3. 

Stages Days past dues ECL 
Stage 1 Up to 30 days 12 month ECL 

Stage 2 31 up to 90 days Lifetime ECL 

Stage 3 90 days and above Lifetime ECL 

In addition to days past due, the Company also considers other qualitative factors in determining significant 
increase in credit risks. 

2.1.5.2 The calculation of ECLs 

The Company calculates ECLs to measure the expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the 
EIR. A cash shortfa ll is the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the 
contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive. 

The key elements of the ECL are summarised below: 

PD: 

The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may 
only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised 
and is still in the portfolio. 

EAD: 

The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date (in case of Stage 1 and Stage 
2), taking into account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of 
principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed 
faci lities, and accrued interest from missed payments. In case of Stage 3 loans EAD represents exposure when 
the default occurred. 

LGD: 

The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is 
based on the difference between the contractua l cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to 
receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD. 

Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and disclosed separately from modification losses or gains 
that are accounted for as an adjustment of the financial asset's gross carrying va lue. 



Aptus Finance India Private Limited 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 
{All amounts ore in Indian Rupees in lokhs, unless otherwise stated) 

The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below: 

Stage 1: 

The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a 
financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The Company calcu lates 
the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring in the 12 months following the reporting 
date. These expected 12-month default probabilities are applied to a forecast EAD and multiplied by the 
expected LGD and discounted by an approximation to the original EIR. 

Stage 2: 

When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an allowance 
for the LTECLs. PDs and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime of the instrument. The expected cash shortfalls 
are discounted by an approximation to the original EIR. 

Significant increase in cred it risk 

The Company monitors all financial assets that are subject to the impairment requirements to assess whether 

there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition . If there has been a significant 

increase in credit risk t he Company wil l measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than 12mECLs. 

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial inst rument has increased significantly since initial 
recognition, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting 
date based on the remaining maturity of the instrument with the risk of a default occurring that was 
anticipated for the remaining maturity at the current reporting date when the financial instrument was first 
recognised. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative information 
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is 
available without undue cost or effort, based on the Company's historical experience and expert credit 
assessment including forward-looking information. 

Stage 3: 

For loans considered credit-impaired, the Company recognises the lifetime expected credit losses for these 
loans. The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%. 

Credit-impaired financial assets 

A financia l asset is 'credit-impaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated 
future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Credit-impaired financial assets are referred to as Stage 

3 assets. Evidence of credit-impairment includes observable data about the following events: 

► significant financial difficulty of the borrower; 

► a breach of contract such as a default or past due event; 

► the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower's financial 

difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider; 

► the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties; or 

► the purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that refl ects the incurred credit losses. 

It may not be possible to identify a single discrete event- instead, the combined effect of severa l events may 

have caused financial assets to become credit-impaired. The Company assesses whether debt instruments that 

are financial assets measured at amortised cost are credit-impaired at each reporting date. 

A loan is considered credit-im aired when a concession is granted to the borrower due to a deterioration in 
the borrower's unless there is evidence that as a result of granting the concession the risk 
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Aptus Finance India Private Limited 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

of not receiving the contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of 
impairment. For financial assets w here concessions are contemplated but not granted the asset is deemed 
credit impaired when there is observable evidence of credit-impairment including meeting the definition of 
default. The definition of default (see below) includes unlikeliness to pay indicators and a back- stop if amounts 
are overdue for 90 days or more. 

Loan commitment: 

When estimating LTECLs for undrawn loan commitments, the Company estimates the expected portion of the 
loan commitment that will be drawn down over its expected life. The ECL is then based on the present value 
of the expected shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn down. The expected cash shortfalls are discounted 
at an approximation to the expected EIR on the loan. For an undrawn loan commitment, ECLs are ca lculated 
and presented under provisions. 

Forward looking information 

In its ECL models, the Company relies on a broad range of forward looking information as economic inputs. 
The inputs and models used for ca lculating ECLs may not always capture all characteristics of the market at the 

date of the financial statements. To reflect this, qualitative adjustments or overlays are made as temporary 

adjustments. 

Estimates and associated assumptions applied in preparing the financial statements, especially for the 

expected credit loss on advances, are based on historical experience and other emerging/forward looking 

factors including t hose arising on account of the COVID-19 pandemic. The Group has used early indicators of 
moratorium and delayed payment metrics observed along with an estimation of potential stress on probability 

of defaults and exposure at default due to COVID-19 situation in developing the estimates and assumptions to 
assess the expected credit loss on loans. 

2.1.5.3 Write-off 

Loans and debt securities are written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering the 

financial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the Company determines that the 

borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the 

amounts subject to the write-off. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The Company may apply 

enforcement activities to financial assets written off. Recoveries resulting from the Company's enforcement 

activities will result in impairment ga ins. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment on financial 

instruments in the statement of profit and loss. 

2.2 Recognition of Interest 

2.2.1 The effective interest rate method 

Interest income and expense is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all financial 

instruments measured at amortised cost, debt instrument measured at FVOCI and debt instruments 

designated at FVTPL. The effective interest rate (EIR) is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 

flows of the financial instrument through the expected life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, 

a shorter period, to the net ca rrying amount of t he financial asset or financial liability. 

2.2.2 Interest Income 

The Company ca lculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets 

other than credit-im aired assets. 
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When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as 'Stage 3', the Company 

calculates interest income by applying t he effective interest rate to the net amortised cost of the financial 

asset. If the financia l assets cures and is no longer credit- impaired, the Company reverts to calculating interest 
income on a gross basis. 

2.2.3 Fees and commission Income 

Fees and commission Income include fees ot her than those that are an integral part of EIR. The fees included 

in this part of the Company's statement of profit or loss include among other things fees charged for servicing 

a loan including cheque bounce charges, field visit charges, pre-closure charges etc on realisat ion basis. 

2.2.4 Dividend Income 

Dividend income (including from FVOCI investments) is recognised when the Company's right to receive the 
payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the 

entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. This is generally when the shareholders 
approve the dividend. 

2.2.5 Borrowing cost 

Borrowing cost consists of interest and other cost that the Company incurred in connection with the borrowing 

of funds. All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred based on the 
effective interest rate method. 

2.2.6 Share Based Payments 

Stock opt ions of Holding Company are granted to the employees under the stock option scheme. The costs of 
stock options granted to the employees (equity-settled awards) of the Company are measured at the fair value 
of the equity instruments granted. For each stock option, the measurement of fair value is performed on t he 
grant date. The grant date is the date on w hich the Holding Company and the employees of the Company agree 
to the stock option scheme. The fair value so determined is revised only if the stock option scheme is modified 
in a manner that is beneficial to the employees. 

This cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in Employee Stock Options Reserve in equity, 
over the period in wh ich t he performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. 
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled t ransactions at each reporting date until the vesting date 
reflects t he extent to w hich the vesting period has expired and the Company's best estimate of the number of 
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period 
represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at t he beginning and end of that period and is 
recognised in employee benefits expense. 

If the options vests in insta lments (i.e. t he options vest pro rata over the service period), then each insta lment 

is treated as a separate share option grant because each insta lment has a different vesting period. 
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2.3 Taxes 

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax. 

Current tax 

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be 
recovered from, or paid to, t he taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount 
are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the reporting date in the countries where the 
Company operates and generates taxable income. 

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either 
in other comprehensive income or in equity) . Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax 
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and 
establishes provisions where appropriate. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at t he reporting date between the t ax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except: 

► In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing 
of the reversal of the tempora ry differences can be control led and it is probable that the temporary 
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused 
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that taxable profit wi ll be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except: 

► When the deferred tax asset relating to t he deductible temporary difference arises from the initial 
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the 
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. 

► In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax 
assets are recognised on ly to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in 
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be avai lable against which the temporary differences can be 
utilised. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be ava ilable to allow all or part of the deferred 
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are 
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax 
asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when 

the asset is rea lised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss 
is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity}. Deferred tax items 
are recognised in corre lation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a lega lly enforceable right exists to set off current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the 
same taxation 
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When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a 
transaction that is not a business combination, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting 
profit nor taxable profit or loss. 

2.4 Property, plant and equipment ('PPE') and intangible assets 

PPE is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment in va lue. Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing t he 

amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. 

Depreciation on the fo llowing categories of PPE has been provided on the straight-line method, the useful lives 

of which have been assessed as under, based on technical assessment, taking into account the nature of the 

asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating cond itions of the asset, past history of replacement, 

anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc. The other assets 

have been depreciated on straight line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies 

Act, 2013. 

Particulars 

Office Equipment ___ _ 

Computer Software 

Estimated Life 

3 years 

License Period or 3 years, 
whichever is lower 

The residual va lues, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed 

at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

Individual assets costing Rs. 5,000 or less are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. 

An item of PPE is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from 

the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, 

plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sa le proceeds and the carrying amount of 

the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Intangible Assets 

The Company's intangible assets mainly include the va lue of computer software. 

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable t hat t he 
expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it wi ll flow to the Company. 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initia l recognition at cost. Subsequently, they are 
carried at cost less accumulated amortisat ion and impairment losses if any, and are amortised over their 
estimated useful life on the straight-line basis over a 3-year period or t he license period whichever is lower. 

The carrying amount of t he assets is reviewed at each Balance sheet date to ascerta in impairment based on 
internal or external factors. Impairment is recognised, if the carrying value exceeds the higher of the net selling 
price of the assets and its value in use. 

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are 
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. 

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposa l (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no 
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of 
the asset (ca lculated as the difference between the net disposa l proceeds and the carrying amount of the 

asset) is includ ~=~' t of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised. 
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2 .5 Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. 

If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates 

the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating 

unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an 

individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from 

other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, 

the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present va lue using a pre-tax 

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 

asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken in to account. If no 

such transactions can be identified, an appropriate va luation model is used. These calculations are 

corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair 

value indicators. 

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are 

prepared separate ly for each of the Company's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These 

budgets and forecast ca lculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth 

rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections 

beyond periods covered by t he most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow 

projections in t he budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing 

rate can be justified. In any case, t his growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the 

products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset 

is used. 

Impairment losses of continuing operations, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an 

indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication 

exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment 

loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine t he asset's recoverable 

amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that t he ca rrying amount of 

the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the ca rrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such 

reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in 

which case, the reversa l is treated as a revaluation increase. 

2.6 Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 

past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate 

can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of t he consideration required to settle the present 

obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 

obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle t he present obligation, its 

carrying amount is the resent value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is 
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pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability). When discounting is used, the 

increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a 

third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtual ly certain that reimbursement will be received, 

and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 

The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. 

2.7 Cash flow statement 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects 

of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. 

2.7.5 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with 

an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are 

readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. 

2.8 Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax by the weighted average number 

of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ 

(loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any 

attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity 

shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares 

which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares 

are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share 

from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the 

beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are 

adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value. Dilutive potential equity 

shares are dete rmined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially 

dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits/ reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate. 

2.9 Segment Reporting 

Ind AS 108 establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information about 

operating segments and re lated disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major 

customers. Based on the 'management approach' as defined in Ind AS 108, the Chief Operating Decision Maker 

("CODM") evaluates the Company's performance based on an analysis of various performance indicators by 

business segments and geographic segments. 

As per the requirements of Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments", based on evaluation of financial information for 

allocation of resources and assessing performance, the Company has identified a single segment, viz. 

"providing loans against properties". Accord ingly, there are no separate reportable segments as per Ind AS 

108. 

2.10 Determination of Fair value 

·nstruments, at fa ir va lue at each balance sheet date. 
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on 
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

► In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

► In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant 
that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses va luation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use 
of unobservable inputs. 

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy 
of valuation techniques, as summarised below: 

► Level 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices 
from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement 
date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to 
the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilit ies and when there are binding and exercisable 
price quotes available on the balance sheet date. 

► Level 2 financial instruments- Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are 
derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the 
instrument's life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted 
prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted prices such as 
interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition, adjustments may be 
required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates to items that are 
comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on unobservable inputs 
which are significant to the ent ire measurement, the Company will classify the instruments as Level 3. 

► Level 3 financial instruments - Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the 
measurement as whole. 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financia l statements on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a who le) at the end of each 
reporting period. 

The Company evaluates the levell ing at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and 
reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period. 

3 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the 
accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount 
of assets or liabilities uture period. 
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In the process of applying the Company's accounting po licies, management has made the following 
judgements/estimates, which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities within the next financia l year. 

3.1 De-recognition of Financial instruments 

The Company enters into securitisation transactions where financial assets are transferred to a structured 

entity for a consideration. The financia l assets transferred qualify for derecognition only when substantial risk 

and rewards are transferred. 

This assessment includes judgements reflecting all relevant evidence includ ing the past performance of the 

assets transferred and credit risk that the Company has been exposed to. Based on this assessment, the 

Company believes that the credit enhancement provided pursuant to the transfer of financial assets under 

securitisation are higher than the loss incurred on the similar portfolios of the Company hence it has been 

concluded t hat securitisation transactions entered by the Company does not qualify for de-recognition since 

substantial risk and rewards of t he ownership has not been transferred. The transactions are treated as 

financing arrangements and the sa le consideration received is treated as borrowings. 

3.2 Fair value of financial instruments 

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date 
under current market condi tions (i.e ., an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financia l liabilities 
recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of 
va luation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from 
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair 
va lues. Judgements and estimates include considerations of liquidity and model inputs related to items such 
as credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility. For further 
details about determination of fair va lue please see Fair value note in Accounting policy. 

3.3 Impairment of financia l asset 

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in 
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and co llateral va lues when 
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are 
driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances. 

The Company's ECL calculalions are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying assumptions 
regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models t hat are 
considered accounting estimates include: 

► The Company's crit eria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances 
for financial assets should be measured on a LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment 

► The segmentation offinancial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis 

► Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs 

► Determination of temporary adjustments as qualitative adjustment or overlays based on broad range of 
forward looking information as economic inputs 

It has been the Company's policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and 

adjust when nece 
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3.4 Provisions and other contingent liabilities 

--- -

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case and 
considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case. Where the 
probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made, a 
contingent liability is disclosed. 

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company takes 
into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence from 
similar incidents. Sign ificant judgement is required to conclude on these estimates. 

Events after reporting date 

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of cond itions that existed at the end of 
the reporting period, the impcJ ct of such events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events 
after the balance sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed. 
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4 Cash and cash equivalents 

Rs. in lakhs 

Particulars 
As at As at 

M arch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Cash on hand 149.04 28.70 
Balances with banks - In current accounts 8,764.38 7,726.49 
In deposit accounts - Original maturity less than 3 months 5,003.18 -

13 916.60 7,755.19 

5 Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents 

Rs. in lakhs 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Bank deposits held as security against borrowings• 386.82 629.26 

386.82 629.26 

*The Company has given fixed deposits as credit enhancement for securitisation transactions entered by it, amounting to Rs. 318.40 lakhs (March 2024 : Rs. 511.57 

lakhs ). 

6 Loans 

Rs. in lakhs 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Secured Term loans carried at amortised cost 2,93,013.05 1,92,893.17 

Loans against property 2,92,436.51 1,93,069.17 

Instalments and Other Dues from Borrowers 
- loans against property ],661.67 1,392.50 

Deferred Processing Fee Income (2,085.13) (1,525.88) 

FCL allowance on Interest accrued - (42.62) 

Total Term loans (gross) 2,93,013.05 1,92,893.17 

Less: Impairment loss allowance (2,527.49) (1,525.09) 

Total Term loans (net) 2,90,485.56 191,368.08 

Notes;_ 

(i) 1111 term loans arc originated in India and retail in nature. 

(ri) renm loans arc secured by deposit of original title deeds of immovable properties with the Company and/ or Equitable mortgage of title deeds. 

(iii) Sccuritisation of financial assets 
lhc Comptmy sccuritlscs certain receivables and surrenders control over these receivables, though it continues to act as an agent for the collection of these 

receivables. The Company also provides credit enhancements to the t ransferee by way of agreeing to bear a portion of default losses. Because of the existence of 

credit enhancements, the Company continues to have the obligation to pay to the transferee, limited to the extent of credit enhancement, even if i t does not collect 

the equivalent amounts from the original asset, and hence, such transfer docs not meet the derccognition criteria resulting into the transfer not being recorded as 

sale. /\mount outstanding on such transactions as at March 31, 2025 is Rs.68,165.59 Lakhs (March 31, 2024 - Rs.33,657.96 Lakhs). 

Refer Note 33 for financial assets sccuritised. 

(iv) Refer Note 30.13 for conlractual maturities. 

(v) There arc no outstandinc loan to Public Institution. 

(vi) Term loans do not include any loans given to employees of the Company. -
(vii) There arc no loans measured at FVOCI or I VTPL or designated at l·VTPI. ....,..~_ ~ ·~.....,___ 

. - {a--~ ~l&c I~ CHENNAI ], 0 
* * ~ ,... 

I FRN: 004283S (/) l <J Chennai ..... 
~(I, * . C 



I
Aptus Finance India Private limited 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

6.1 Summary of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to term loans: 

6.1.1 Reconcitlation of gross carrying amount i$ given below: 

Particulars 

Gross C.i:rrying amount opening balance 

i'.ew assets c =--;g;natec / I r.crease :n ex 'sLng essets 

ExposJre oe•recogniseo / Mat .. red / repaid/ Bae! ce:,:.S writter, o'f 

Tra,.sfers ~o Stage 1 

Transfers to Stage 2 

Transfers to Stage 3 

Gross carrying amount dosing balance 

6.1.2 Reconciliation of ECL balance is given below: 

Partfculars 

ECL allowance - opening ba:ance 

New assets originated/ l r.:rease in existing assets 

Exposure oe-recognfsed / mat~red / repaid/ Bad de:Jts wn!ten off 

Transfers to Stage 1 

Transfers to Stage 2 

Transfers to Stage 3 

Impact on account of exposu~es t rarsferred during the year between stages 

ECL allowance• clos ing balance 

Stage l 

: ,82,928.'.8 

!,24,823.35 

(22,8'.2.:l4) 

2,029.56 

(11,857.54) 

(1,969.70) 

2,73,141.81 

Sta_ge 1 

771.77 

56: .co 

(206.85) 

132.85 

(73.81) 

(16.53) 

1,168.43 

For the year ended March 31, 2025 

Stage 2 Stage 3 

7,979.42 1,985.57 

l.255.76 327.60 

(2, '.59.28) I !,315.52) 

(1,795.91) (233.64) 

12,035.65 (178.11) 

(1.091.ll) 3,C60.8l 

16,224.53 3,646.71 

For the year ended March 31, 2025 

Stage 2 Stage 3 

255.93 496.39 

257.18 837.42 

(137.19) (309.16) 

(73.50) (59.35) 

122.C4 (48.23) 

(37.83) 54.36 

387.62 971.43 

Rs. in lakhs 

Total 

1,92,893.17 

l,26.<.C6.72 

(26,286.84) 

2,93,013.05 

Rs. in lakhs 

Total 

1,525.09 

1,655.60 

(653.20) 

2,527.49 

Stage 1 

88,352.C3 

1,13,325.66 

(14,760.91) 

1,338.48 

(4,806.19) 

(520.89) 

1,82,928.18 

Stage 1 

351.BD 

583.23 

(182.73) 

89.66 

(57.94) 

(12.25) 

771.77 

Rs. in l akhs j 
For the year ended March 31, 2024 

Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 

5,494.71 1,638.24 95,484.98 1 
731.33 232.49 1, 14,289.48 

(1,435.15) (685.23) I 16,881.29) 

(1,220.20) (118.28) 

4,980.40 (174.21) 

(571.67) 1,092.56 

7,979.42 1,985.57 1,92,893.17 

Rs. in lakhsl 
For the year ended March 31, 2024 

Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 

322.54 407.iS 1,081.49 
145.11 262.68 991.02 

(176.12) (188.57) (547.42)1 

(59.17) (30.49) 

94.64 (36.70) 

(70.07) 82.32 

256.93 496.39 1,525.09 

'<:'flt','°' ~ ~ ~ Hcfa'No-, 

~- }) 



Aptus Finance India Private limited 

Notes forminc part of the financi~ statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

7 Other financial assets 

Particulars 

Considered Good, Unsecu red - At Amortised Cost 

Security deposits 

Accrued Income 

8 Current tax assets (Net) 

Particulars 

Current tax .issets (net of provisions) 

9 Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) (Net) 

Particulars 

Deferred tax assets/ lliabihtics) (net) 

Tax effect of items constitut ing deferred taw assets: 

Impairment loss Allowance 

On difference between wnttcn down value of Property, plant and cqufpmcnt as per books 

and .is per Section 32 of Income Tax /\ct, 1961 
Provision for Gratuity & l euvc Encashment 

Transdctlon charges relating to loans 

Tax effect o,! it~s constituti_mt.defer~tax (liabilitiesl:~ 
Transact ion ch..i,ee3o relating to debt sccurit u?s and borrowings other than debt sccuntics 

Others 

Reconciliation of Deferred Tax: 

Net Deferred tax assets/ (li.Jbilities) as at the beginning of the period/ year 

Add/ I css: Deferred tax asset/ (liability) credited to/ (expense) recognized in Profit and 

Loss 

Add/ less: Deferred tax asset/ (liability) credited to/ (expense) recogni1cd In OCI 

Net Deferred T.Jx Assct/(liabllityl as at the end of the period/ year 

Components of deferred tax asset/ (liability) 

Tax effect of items constitutin2 deferred tax assets: 

Impairment loss Allowance 

Difference between written down value of PP[ and intangible assets as per books and as 

per Section 32 of Income tdX Act, 1961 

Provisions fur cr..itulty .Jnd leave cnca)hmcnt 

Deferred Processing fee relatinc to loans 

Tax effect of it ems constituting dcforrcd tax assets 

Tax effect of items constituting deferred taxJ!i:;:ibilitiesl.;_ 

Deferred Proccssinc fee relating to debt securities and borrowinp;s other than debt 

securities 

Othco 

Til.K effect of items constituting deferred tax (liabilities) 

Net deferred tax assets/ {liabilities) 

1h 
I 

As at 
April 01, 2024 

383.84 

0 .06 

0.51 

401.41 

785.81 

(294.98) 

(123.40) 

(418.38) 

367.43 

As at 

March 31, 2025 

2.75 
309.58 

312.33 

As at 

March 31, 202S 

124.22 

124.22 

As at 

March 31, 2025 

636.12 

0.04 

1.00 
531.4 3 

1,168.59 

(626.33) 

(228.63) 
(854.96) 

313.63 

367.43 

(53.50) 

(0.31) 

313.63 

(Charged)/ Credited to (Charged)/ Credited to 
Profit and l oss OCI 

252.28 

(0.07) 

0.79 (0.31) 

130.02 

383.08 (0.31) 

(331.35) 

(105.23) 

(436.58) 

(53.S0) (0.31) 

Rs. in lakhs 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

1.50 

406.23 

407.73 

Rs. in lakhs 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

383.84 

0.06 

0.51 

401.tU 

785.81 

(294.98) 

023.40) 

(418.38) 

367.43 

282.00 

85.33 

0.10 

367.43 

Rs. In lakhs 

As at 

March 31, 2025 

636.12 

0.04 

1.00 

531.43 

1,168.59 

(626.33) 

(228.63) 

(854.96) 

313.63 



Rs. In lakhs 

Components of deferred tax asset / (li3bility} 
As at (Charged)/ Credited to (Charccd) / Credited to As at 

April 01, 2023 Profit and Loss OCI March 31, 2024 

Tax effect of items constituting deferred talC as:!iets: 

Impairment loss /\llowance 278.82 105.02 383.84 
Difference between written down value of PPE and intangible Jssc ts 1n per books and as 0.10 (0.04) 0.06 

per Section 32 of Income-tax Act, 1961 

Provisions for gratuity and leave cncashmcnt 0.36 0.05 0.10 0.51 

Deferred Processing fee relating to loans 142.54 258.87 401.41 

Tax effect of it ems constituting deferred tax assets 421.82 363.89 0.10 785.81 

!filLcffcct of items const itut ing deferred tax (ljabllitics_k 

Deferred Proccssini fee relating to debt securities and borrowings other than debt (39.26) (255.71) (294.98) 

securi ties 
Others (100.56) (22.84) (123.40) 

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax (liabilities) (139.82) (278.56) (418.38) 

Net deferred tax assets/ (II.abilities) 282.00 85.33 0.10 367.43 

Note: 

Reconclllation of Effective ta)( rate 

The income tax expense for the ye.Jr can be reconciled to the accountint profit/ (loss) as follows: 

Part iculars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

(A) Profit before tax 23,763.64 17,468.63 
(8) Enac-tcd tax rates in India (inc1udinc surcharge and ccss) 15.11% 15.17¾ 

(C) Income ta)( on profit before t Jx based on the enacted rate 5,980.83 4,396.50 

(D} Other than temporary differences 

- Effect of change In tax r.itc 

• Effect of income that Is exempt from taxation 

- Effoct of madmisslblc expenses 202.62 119.25 
- lffect of .idmissib1c deduct ions 

• Hfect of othNs adjustments 

{E) Income t ax expense rccoF,nlscd in Profit and l oss 6,183.45 4,515.75 

In accordance with the provisions of Section US BAA of the Income Tax Ac.t, 1961, the Company has opted to p.iy Income tax at a reduced rare at 22% (plus surcharge 10% ptus ccss 4%). 



Aptus Finance India Private Limited 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

10A Property, plant and equipment 

Carrying amounts of: 

Office Equipment 

Cost I Deemed cost 

Balance at Apri l 1, :Z023 

Additions durinr. the year 

01sposals during the year 

Balance at March 31, 2024 

Additions during the year 

Disposals during the year 

Balance at March 31, 2025 

Accumulated depreciation 

Balance at April 1, 2023 

Depreciation expense for the year 

Elimination on disposals during the year 

Balance at March 31, 2024 

Depreciation expense for the year 

Elimination on disposals durinc the year 

Balance at March 31, 2025 

Carrying amount 

Balance at April 1, 2023 

Additions during the year 

Disposals during the year 

Depreciation expense for the year 

Balance at March 31, 2024 

Additions during the year 

Disposals during the year 

Depreciation expense for the year 

Balance at March 31, 2025 

Note: 

Particulars 

Particulars 

As at 

March 31, 2025 

Office Equipments 

0.21 

0.21 

0.21 

0.21 

0.21 

0.21 

Rs. in lakhs 

Asat 

March 31, 2024 

Rs. in lakhs 

Total 

0.21 

0.21 

0.21 

0.21 

0.21 

0.21 

(i) Carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment pledged as collateral for liabilities or commitments as at March 31,2025 is Rs.Nil lakhs (March 31, 2024 is Rs. Nil 
lakhs). 

(ii) 1 here are no ilsscts acqu·1rcd on account of business combination nor revalued for the year ended March 31,2025 and March 31,2024. 



Aptus Finance India Private limited 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for t he year ended March 31, 2025 

10B Intangible assets 

Carrying amounts of: 

Computer software 

Cost / Deemed cost 

Balance at April 1, 2023 

Add1t1ons during the year 

Dlsposals dunne the year 

Balance at March 31, 2024 

Additions during the year 

Disposals during the year 

Balance at March 31, 2025 

Accumulated amortisation 

Balance at April 1, ]0]3 

Amortisation expense for the year 

£:limmation on disposals du ring the year 

Balance at March 31, 2024 

Amortis.ition expense for the year 

flimination on disposals during the year 

Balance at March 31, 2025 

Carrying amount 

Balance at Apri l 1, 2023 

Additions during the year 

Disposals durinn the year 

Amortisation expense for the year 

Balance at March 31, 2024 

lldd1tions during the year 

Disposals during the year 

Amor tisation expense for the year 

Balance at March 31, 2025 

Note: 

Particulars 

Particulars 

As at 

M arch 31, 2025 

Computer software 

3.60 

3.60 

3.60 

3.60 

3.60 

3.60 

Rs. in lakhs 

Asat 
March 31, 2024 

Rs. in lakhs 

Total 

3.60 

3.60 

3.60 

3.60 

3.60 

3.60 

(i) Carrying valuc of property,Plant and equipment pledged as collateral for liubilitics or commitments as at March 31,2025 is Rs.Nil lakhs (March 31, 2024 is Rs. Nil 

lakhs). 

(ii) There arc no assets acquired on account of business combination nor revalued for the year ended March 31,2025 and March 31,2024. 



ApU.1) f-inancc lndt:, Private Umitcd 
Notes forming part of the fin.,nclal statements for the yctlr ended March 31, 2025 

11 Other non~financial asscu 

Considered Ciood, Unsecured 

llal.:am.cs w11h EOVC'lrtll1l'll1 JUthorlllC) 

Dl:lcrrcd cumml))1on cxpcn)C 

Prtpald CICpCn\('S 

OthN Advance\ 

11. Debt securities 

Particulars 

Partkulars 

Secured redeemable non convcr11ble debenture:, At amorthcd cust (Within lndt3) 

---
No. of debentures/he~ 

S. No p;.rticulars rrnure 
value 

l 
Nippon India Mutual I und Dec]<'! ISIN <18Mtmth) 1!,00 no's/ IV of K:,. 93,/50 

INL04Mll0/0J,1 l!ach 

, DC86.ink ltd lcb >~ l~IN 43 Months 5000 no's /IV of Rs 1,00.000 

INl 04Mll0/041 • •ch 

J 
Ax1§ Mutual rund - MM :?5 ISIN - 48 Months /!:,00 no's /IV of Rs. 1,00,00D 

INl04MH0/0~9 l'ach 
TOTAL 

ru <1t b.ilancc ,hcct date, interest r:atcs (per annum) range for the Debt Sccunttc§ 

rlnal matur ity date 

31 Dcc-28 

28 rcb-29 

06-Mar-29 

Aut 
Marc.h 31, 102S 

/8.03 

178.36 

5.00 
9.41 

270.80 

Aul 
March 31, 102S 

19,:?04.'19 

19104.49 

Aul 
March 31, 1025 

6,896,1] 

4.916.67 

1,391.70 

1.9,204.49 

8.9!, lo 9.00% 

Rs. in lakhs 

Asat 

March 31, 2024 

190.31 

13 36 

4.38 

308.05 

Rs. in lakhs 

Asat 
March 31, 2024 

Asat 
March 31, 1.014 

l crms of rep~cnt_2! Debt Sc_cu_,_iti_cs_a_, _, _t3_1_<t_M_a_,c_h_>_O>_S ____ ~----- --~--------~--- ---- ~-- -----< 
Particulon'l 

I 1-s~ than one, vcar 

One 10 three years 

I IHt'C' to five yt-.1rs 

More than five yc.trs 

f erms of rcpavmcnt of Debt Securities as at 31st March l.074 

Nole · 

Particulars 

l l>:,!lo than one ye.11 

One to three vr-;us 

I hrre to five years 

Number of lns1o11ll~nts 

17 

16 

19 

., 

Numbf:r of Installments 

(I) Rei.11..'cmJbll' Non CUt111L•r11blc DcUcutures Jrc SC'CUrl'd by hypothccillion of spcohcd u:rm IOilll!lo. 

Qu.trterly Repayment Number of Installments Halfyuriy Rcpavment 

4,81:'4.48 

9,811.~6 

ii.~0/.44 

19,204.49 

Quarterly Heonment Number of Installments Halfye,1rly Reoaymcnt 

(11) Debentures ar:r.rcgatm& to Rs. Nil as .1t March 31, :?OJ~ (March 3 t, 2024 Rs. Nil} has been r,u,1rantccd by Aptus Value Hou§ine: Finance lnd1.1 I lm,trd, the Holdtnn: Com~ny 

1ml l he Company hJ) not def.lultcd In the rcp.:tymcnt of dues to ,ts lender:, durlnc ::any of the rcporun13 yc::irs 

{1vl RrfN Note 30.13 for contr.actu:il m.-1ur111es 

(v} lhPrC' arc no debt Sf'CIUIUCS mf":l!,:ured at rvrPt or des1gn.Jtcd I VI Pl .-~.it March 31, X)r, {Millrch .11. :?0:?4 4 R5. Nil l ~khs) 

13 l:lorrowlnes (other than debt securith~sl 

Sr.cured - Al amortised cost (Within India) 

ll'rm lo;an~ from : 

I 8.1nk!lo 

I rorn compamcs 
11. llnldmi; comp;my 

~cunt1wt1on lo.ins 

W0t kmf! Captt.tl I OJn!lo 

Parti<:ul.1rs 
Asot 

Mar<.h Jl, 701.5 

1,09.458.34 

34,000 00 

68,165.~9 

4,989 17 

1. 16 613.10 

Rs. in lakhs 

Jls,t 

M;uch ll, ZOl:4 

18,000,00 

33.6~7.96 
7,494.7/ 

l,'18,695.04 



l\ptus Finance India Privat e Limit~d 

Notes forminv. parl of the finand.il 5tatcments for the vct11 r ended M arch 31, 101:, 

(i) Terms of repayment o f t erm loan from Sanks 

S.Nu Rank Name l enurc of the loan Larli l'St lnstalmf'nt dat t 
t'rinclpal repayment 

frcquencl (instalments) 
As at l\sat 

March 31, 202S M arch 31, 1074 
1 IIDIC Dank 48 Months 78 Marn. Monlhly 15,7'8.!>4 17,131.44 

' I edcr.tl Bank 60/84 Months 17-1\prn Quarterty 8,41~.90 s,u,.:,1 
3 Axis Hank 48 Months 31-Jul '3 Quarterly 13,772.J:, 8,:,2J.0£i 

• !itJIC H1rnk of lnd!il 72/84 Months 04 -rcb n Monthly ll,139.98 13,431.96 
s Yes Uank GO Munth!ro 04-Jun 71 Monthly ]5.i98.5,2 9.!,6].60 
6 Indus Ind Bank 48 Month,; 30-Apr '7 Monthly 4,.331.49 6,/84 34 
I AU Small I 1n.11nce Bank I td 60 Months OJ•Feb 21 Monthly 91].08 

• lCICI B•mk 48 Months JO·Scp '1 Quarterly 1,146.88 2.140 64 
9 C;mara A.ink 48 Month!. 79-M.ty 14 Quarter ly 8,706.0] 4.912.86 
10 Jnd1Jn OverSCilS 8.tnk IJ. Months 30-Mar-]4 Monthly 3,776.30 3,661.70 
11 Kot:ik M,1hmdra Rank 48 Months JO· Ju1 -J3 Monthlv 5.613.09 4,044.10 
1] KV8 l! Jnk GO Month) 30 0cc 13 Qu;jrt1.•rly 3.396.34 4/134 6/ 
H lod1.in Bunk 48 Months l!, ·Aue 14 Qu.1rterly 3.647.]0 4.9/3 93 
14 SIOBI .16 Months 21 M•r•1!> Quancrly 9.~~.83 
1S nlll\imk 48 Months _31 Dec '3 Monthlv S.478.88 3,611.81 

lot::il term loan from b1t11ks 1 09451.34 84 541.Jl 
A) at b;if,mcc sheet d.il(', interest rates (per ~nnuml r<1ngc for the term lo.ins rrom b.tnks 8.75" to JO.%•, R 7S" to 11.65% 

ICliJ Terms of rcpavmcnt of Cash Credit / Overdraft from 83nks: 

S No Rank Name T enurc o f the Loan EarliMt lnsu lment d.11e 
Principal r t'pav,ncnt As.at As at 

frequency (inst almcnu } March 31, 2025 March 31, 1024 
1 AXtjl\.inlc NA ,M On Deman(! 

' HDfC Hank NA NA On Demand 

r ot al cn h credi t from b anks 

{Iii ) Terms of rr paymcnt of Working Capital Dl"mand loan .availt'd from Ranks* : 

SNo Rank N.ame r , n ure of the Loan ~arliest Instalment date 
Principal r epayment Asal As .it 

frequency (in stalment s) M arch 31, 2025 M.irch 31, 1014 

1 o cu 11,rnk 89 l>dy~ 7 /~Jun Ill Bullet 996.59 , UC0 llJnk 89 U.ays 10 /\pt 1~ Hullet 4,989 1/ 1,00000 
3 CSR R.tnk 89 lJ.lys 27 M.ay 74 Bullet 491U8 

rot•I w orking a pita I demand loan ~ ks 4,989.17 2 494.77 

Grand Total of l oans from ba11ks 1,14,447.Sl 87,037.08 
As .lt bal.1nce- \he<?t date. mtcre1ot r.itc-. (per annuml ranr.c for the worlunr. up1tal demand lo.an from b;mk\ 9.00'. 9.00% to 9.70% 

" lndud~ roU over of Wo1k1ng C.ap1tal Dem.ind I oan 

h,) Octails o f repayment of term I 01an from Others 

SNo 8 .tnk Nam<: 1cnuro o f the lo;.n (artiest Instalment date 
Principal rt'paymt':nt l\sat Asal 

- - - -- -- -- frequency (ini.ta lmcnts) M arch 31, 2<!._25 March Jl, 2024 

1 l 1tl~ni..f~,l~ /4 Months 76 Jan J'i l nd of 1 vears 34,000.00 28 000,00 

fatal t erm lo.an from llo ldinv. company 34 000.00 28 000.00 
ru at balance sheet dat(', mtcrrst ,.ales (per .1nnum) rannr for the tc-rrn lo.an from hold1nr. comp.any 9.ocr., 9.00% 

vL1~~~1cnt of borro~5 from Sccuriti,;atlon 

S N o In vestor Name as on balance dlf!cl dat e lt'n ure Earliest Inst .ailment d.ttt~ 
Principal repayment Asat As at 

frequency (instalmC!nts) M uch 11, 2025 March 31, 2024 

1 A,tm 80 Months l '..t Jun 19 Munthly 8].,0 

' /Jrno1ln C..t, Month!r. }G Ap,~J 1 Monthly l.10!t.it7 1,800.13 
3 Or.akr1 5,')Months i~ Alli! 73 Monthly !J.l~/.8!, 1.63'\.48 

• Sinu,; 6~ Month-. JJ-OC1 H Monthly 6,ll!>.98 8.114/.96 

' Canopus 65 Months Afan 111 Monthly 1,0/6.~ / ?,310.~0 
6 Pollux 63 Months 16 Apr 14 Monthly 4,290.16 ~.3/3.39 , Tucana bl Month:,. 11 Jun 14 Monthly 8.54619 

• Cctu!r. &3 Months 30 Sep ]II Monthly 8,093.34 
9 Norma b'1 Months ]0 Del ],1 Monthly 1,711.]I 

10 lmfiuou3t 60 Months n-rcb n, Monthly 7,7¥.1.81 

11 Ursa Ma)Ot 61 Months 71 Mar 7S Monthly !>,S/1.'i l 

" Ccnt.iurus 63 Months 1~ leb ]!, Monthly /,181.44 

Tota l Borrowln ri:s from Sccurit isatlon 68 165.5,9 31 657.96 

A,; ~I b.il,1nc<' \h«t d.i;te. intcrc~I r.ites {per annum) r,mp,c for the 5t.'cu1111s.1t1on. 8.!>!>% to 9.14" /50%to11.!>0% 

Al Trrms of Rf'p.ivment of8or1owin ,:s as at 31st M11rc:h 707~ 

Pu ticufa rs Number o f Installments M onthly Repayment Number of installments Quarterly R('pavment 

I C\!r. than one yedr 39> 33.88/.19 48 J0.638.30 

One to three ye.ars &48 60.C)~4. /J 83 41.0JJ.lb 
lhrcc to f1vt.• vc,115 180 n, 470.71 ,o !> !>11.60 ---

- -- - More than five years 20/ 19 026.23 

--- --- -- 1 S:Z7 1,38,438.43 151 71~174.67 

(HJ Te-rms of Repayment of Borrowings as at 31st M arch 2024 

Part iculars Number of in1tallments M onthly Repayment Number o f i nst.tllmt"nts Quarterly Reruvmcnt 

ll.'~S th,m one year /48 n .40001 36 V,ll/.14 

__ ~nc ~ ~rc~2!!. ... .16,711.S7 66 1'l.360.i0 
!lure to five ve,irs 11". l?,313?8 3 1 J,]5].41 

Morc 1han f1vc yr;1r,; 13/ 11.478~6 

l,Oll 89 904.18 133 !>8 790.86 
Note: 

(I) lcrm loans ;u c secured b,- hypothcc;;it lon of specified term loans. 

tu) lh1.• CompJny hilo; not dl'laulted m the repayment of borruw1ncs and 1ntcrl'R 

(111) to.ans ..itcrt"r,a11ng to R< 4!:i.300.00 lakhs :115, .at March 31, JO]~ (M;uch 11. 7014 Rs 63,130 60 lalchs) has beC!n gu.1r antccd by Aptus Value tlousmg J inanrl" India t 1,n1tl'd. the llokhnc 
Company. 

(iv) Refer Note JO. U for cont1,1ctu.al m,llur1t1cs. 

(v) lhc sec.ur(!d lerm loans ,ne .av.ailed from various banks .wnd l he llolrling Comp..iny lhese loan'- .wrc rrpayahle a-. per thr 111d1v1dual contracted terms m one or more instalme nt,; 

(vt} I here ;!rt• no t.ionowmn~ (OthN than debt !r,l'CUnllC~ ) meJ )Uf C:d at ! VI Pl or dC)IIJll,ltCd f V I Pl .... ,11 M,Mlh 31, ]0]'., (M.irch 31. 10)4 Hs. Nil ltikhs) 

(v11) I he t.omp.iny h;is ut1h~cd the fund!r. r.11scd from b,mk) fur !he !>pcc.1f1c pur~e fur which they h.ivc borrow1.•d. 

lv111) I hr rnmpany h,1s bor,owcd funds f,om ~ the basis of sccuoty of c:urrcnt .assl'ts. It h as filed q u.1r1erly rr1urn-. or st.11rment of current :aucts with banks and the said 

rrturn-./st.ll('mrnts arr 1n arre<?mcnt w1t1,, 

fiv"' (x ~~ -

~ * FRN: 004283S : 

B
CEIN()/.y 

g Chennai c ~ -0 
~ 600018 .fY I~ CHENNAI -~ ~ :.)~ 

redAccO ? " 
-- :-<'.()' • ~ 



Aptus Finance India Private limited 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

14 Other financial liabilities 

Rs. in lakhs 

Particulars 
As at Asat 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

At Amortised Cost 

Advances from customers 57.75 27.86 

Other payables 489.77 223.49 
Incentive Payable 16.14 11.19 

563.66 262.54 

15 Current ta.: liabilities {Net) 

Rs. in lakhs 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Current tax liabilities jnct of advance income tax paid} . 58.97 

58.97 

16 Provisions 
Rs. in lakhs 

As at As at 
Particulars 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Provision for Employee Benefits: 
Provision for gratuity 3.26 1.39 

Provision for leave cncashmcnt 0.70 0.64 

3.96 2.03 

17 Other Non-financial liabilities 
Rs. in lakhs 

As at As at 
Particulars 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Revenue received in advance 0.18 0.18 

Statutory dues payable 164.51 74.46 

164.69 74.64 



Aptus Finance India Private limited 
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

18 Equity Share capital 

Rs. in lakhs 
As at As at 

Particulars March 31, 202S March 31, 2024 

Number of shares Amount Number of sh::ues Amount 
(I) Authorised share capita! 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 11,00,00,000 11,000.00 11,00.00.000 11.000.00 

(ii) Issued and subscribed sh.;;irc capital 

Equity shares of Rs, 10 each• Fully paid-up 10,08.00,000 10,080.00 10,08,00,000 10,080.00 

1ot~oo.ooo 10,080.00 10,08,QQ,QQO 10 080.00 

Notes: 

•I Reconciliation of number of shares and amount outstanding at the bcJ?lnning and at the end of the year: 

Particulars Opening Balance Fresh issue Closing Balance 

Equity shares 

Year ended March 31, 202!> 

- Number of shares 10,08,00.000 10,08,00.000 
- Amount (Rs. in lakhs) 10,080.00 10,080.00 

Year ended March 31, 2074 

~ Number of shares 10,08,00,000 10,08,00,000 
- Amount (Rs. in lakhs) 10.080.00 10,080.00 

-- -- --

(b) Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares: 

The Comp.-my has only one clJss of equity shares howin& a par value of Rs.10 each. Each holder is entitled to one vote per equity share. Dividends arc paid in India Rupees. Dividends proposed 
by the Board of Directors, if any is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meet ine except in case of interim dividend. In tha event of liquidation of the Company, 

the holders of equity shares will be entitled to reccill'C remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be In proportion to the number of 
equity shares held by the sharoho!dcrs. All these shares have same rights and preferences with respect to payment of dividend, repayment of capital and voting. 

(cl Details of shares held by Holding Company: 

---
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

Class of shares/ Name of shareholder Number of shares % holding in that Number of shares 
% holding In 

held class of shares held 
that class of 

shares 
Equity Shares held by Holding Company 

Aptus Value Hous!np; Hnance India Limited and its nominees 10,08,00,000 100.00" 10,08,00,000 100.00% 

Id) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more th.in 5% shares: 

---
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

Cl.iss of shares/ Name of shareholder Number of shares ¼ holding in that Number of sh.ires 
% holding in 

held class of shares held 
that class of 

shares 

Equity Shares held by Holding Company 

Aptus Value Houslnr, rin.incc lndi.i Limited .ind its nominees 10,08,00,000 100.00% 10,08.00,000 100.00% 

(e) Details of shareholding of Promoters: 
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

Name of the promoter "change during 
% change 

No of shares "of total shares 
the current vcar 

No or sh3res % of total sh.ires during the 
current ye.Jr 

Aptus Value Housing finance India limited and its nominees 10,08,00,000 100.00ll 10.08,00,000 100.oo~, 

Total 10,08.00,000 100.00% 10,08,00,000 100.00"-' 

lfl As per records of the Company, includinc its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above sharcholdinr, 

represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares. 

(g) The Company has not issued any shares for consideration other than c;1sh or bonus shares at any time durine the prcccdlnr. five years. 

-
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Aptu~ Finance India Private l imited 
Notes forming part of t he f inancial statements for th e year ended M~rch 31. 202S 

19 Ot her Equity 

Particulars 

SCCUllllL•S prcn11um Jlt;OUnt 

Statutory Reserve undN Sectmn 4~ IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 

lmpa1rment reserve 

OC!crm:d lnVC!\lmcnt 

f SOP Reserve, 

l\ctamed earnings 

Rcmea\u,c,ncnt £Jin/ (IU\\) on def1nL-d benefit pl.m 

19.l Moveml'nt in Otlu!r lqultv 

Particulars 

(a) Securities premium ::.ccount (Refer Note 19.2.1) 

Opemnc b.1lanLe 

Add : I qmtv contnbut1nn from holdin~ company 

Closin~ H1thmcc 

(bl Statutory resente (Rrft:r Note 19.7.7) 

Add: Amoun t transfer nit.I horn surplu\ In the statement of Profit ond I 05S 

Closin,: Balance 

(c) lmp3irmcnt resentc (Refer Note 19.2.3 and Note 1.6.3) 

Opcmng batanct: 

Add: Amount tr,1nsfcrred from surplus in the stat~mcnt of Profit ;rnd loss 

Clo~ing Balance 

id) Deemed Investment {Refer Not e 19.7.4) 

Opening b;alancc 

Add: Add111ons/Ocductlons dunng the year 

Closing Balance 

(e} l:.SOP Reserve 

Opcnlnc billilncc 

Add: Add,11ons/Dcdue11on5 during the yeilr 

Oosinc ealance 

If) Hdaincd cumincs (Kcfer Note 19.2.S) 

Opening bi1lancr 

Add: Profit for the year 

I <.-S~: tran:.fcr to Specia l r eserve 

lr.ss: lr,rn~fcr to lmpilIrn1eot reserve: 

aosing 8;,l;,nce 

Ir.) Remr.surl"ment ~ain / (los.s.) on defined benefit plan (Refer Note 1!>.2.6) 

lldlancc ,n the bcgmnlnf: of the ycdr 

OlhL'f Cornprchcn~ivc lncume for the ye,1r 

l ax impact on above ItC'.'m 

Balance al t he end of the year 

Total 

19.2 Nature .-nd purpose of [C$Crvc; 

19.2.1 Securities premi um account 

Asat 

March 31, 2025 

4,9b8.00 

10,/21.33 

1S1.!;7 

547.n 
28.06 

42,/07,47 

0.66 

59 124.81 

Asat 

March 31, Z025 

4,968.00 

4,968.00 

l,}0~.19 

3,516 04 

10,721.33 

151.57 

!.,4/, /7 

547.72 

28.06 
28.06 

28,643.37 

1/,!.80.19 

(3,Sl6.04) 

42,707.47 

(0.]8) 

094 

0.66 

59,1Z4,81 

Rs. in faiths 

Au t 

March 31, 7.024 

4,%8.00 

7,JOS.]9 

l!;l,S/ 

~47,/2. 

28,643.3} 

(078) 

41 SlS.62 

Rs. in lakhs 

/\s at 

March 31, 2024 

4,968.00 

4,968.00 

4,614./1 

7,590.58 

7,205. 29 

1~1.57 

1S1.!i7 

~712 
S47.72 

18,781,01 

12,!1!>1.RR 

12.~90.58) 

28,643.ll 

(O.U) 

IO.l8) 

41,515.6Z 

lhc:- amount rccervcd m L>;l(t;elo~ uf fic.e v.iluc of the equity sh;,res ts rec.oen1scd in Sccunues Premium Account. l h e ,c:serve can be ut1hsed only for limited purposes In accord.ance with the 

prOYl~ons of the Companies Act, }013 

19.2.2 St atutory Reserve 

Statutory rc~l'rvc rcprcs1.•nI~ the reserve crcdtcd .is per Sccuon 4~ IC of the Reserve ~nk of lnd13 /\ct. 193'1, pursuant to which a Non 8.anking rm.1nc:1.1I Comp.my \hoi1l1 ac.ite ~ reserve fund .ind 

tr.nsfr.r thNt'ln a sum not It'~~ than twenty ~r ccnl of its net profit every year .as disclosed in t he S1a1emc:nI nf Profit and loss account, b~fore anv d1v1dend 1s dcdared. 

19,1.3 lmpilirmrnt Reserve 

In t('rms of 1hr rcqU1rcmcnI a.s per RIJI not1f1c.ition no. RBl/7019 20/170 DOR INUfC).CC.PO,No.109/72.10.106/)019~]0 dat<"d March U, JOJO on Implementation of lndi,m AccounllngStandards, 

Non Uankmc I inanc1al CompanK?s (N8f Cs} are 1equ1red to create an ImpaIrmf'nt r eserve f or anv shortfall in impairment ullow,mc:cs under Ind /\S 109 and Income Recogmlion, /\ssct Cla.ssrhc,Ulon 

and Prov1s1oning (IRI\CP) norms (1ncludinc provIsIon on standard u~b). /\ccordlnelv the Company ha), t ransfencd the shortfall :.mount to lmp:urmcnt Hcserve. No w,thdnw-1I from the rc~crvc 11 

permitted without prior pcrmh,slon from the Dcp:irlment of SupcrvI~t0n, RBI. 

19.2.4 De~med Invest ment 

The Comp.iny has acquired borrowme:> from Bank~ for which the parent rompany •Aptus Value Housing r,nance India I td• acted as a Corporate ewrantor. The rom v.i lue of fmanc:1,.f guarantee !JO 

received h•o; been clu,;1f 1<"d as •rkf'mrd investment s• 

19.2.!i CSOP Rcsc,ve 

1111s rcwrvc rt'prescnl\ the cumulative value of employee !.tock options gr.a,1Ied by the lioft.lmg Comp,.iny 10 cmpfoyccs of the Company, recOftmtcd as ,m expense 1n .accordance with the 

rcquIremcnIs of Ind /1.5 107 Share bucd Payment The reserve Is built up ewer the vc.sunR permd of thr- options, hued on the. fair wtlu~ drtc.rmlnf'd ;at lhc grant d.ilc. l\lthough the optH>ns are 

crantcd and scnk-d by the llold1ng Company, thr related expense: Is rcc:ogru,cd In the Company's financial s1a1ements, with a c.orrcspond1ne credit 10 equity under this Rco;c,ve, In case of expiry 

or lapse of options, th(' unuhl11cd balance Is lransfl'.'rrf'd to Rctatncd f 3rnmr.s, 

19.2.6 Retained farnings 

Ret.1mcd f'IHnmc,; ar4" l hc profits that Ihc company h as earned ul1 dale less any transfer to s1a1utory reserves, gene rill reserves and d11t1dend d1stnbutcd to sh arehoMers. 

No final dtvtdrnd ha 1, bc-('n propcncd durmg t he 't'CJr end further no mterim d1v1dcnd w.is decla red and paid bv the company duoog the year. 

19,1.7 Rcmeuurement G.ain / { luss) on deflncd benefit plan: 

Re mrasurl'm<'nt, compmInp; of actu~rn, I g~m,; ~nd losses ;,nd the return on plan as~cts !('xcludmc amounts included m net interest on the net dl'.'fml'd benefit h;ib1hty), :ire rccor.nlsed 

1mm<"d1atrly in the b,Jlancc sheet w1Ih a corrcspond1nc debit or c1cd11 to retained e:umngs through OCI In Ihe pet1od In which they occur. Rcmcasurcments 3re not rcclus1f1cd to the statement of 

profit and lens in wb\c:qucnt periods -
,,,,,._ , n ........._......._ 



Aptus Finance India Private limited 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

20 Revenue from operations 

Rs. in lakhs 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

(A) Interest income 

On financials asseU measured at amortised cost 

Interest on term loans 46,807.02 29,584.90 

Interest on facd deposits with banks 46.76 46.36 

46,853.78 29,631.26 

(B) Fees and commission income 1,707.37 993.45 

(C) Net gain on fair value changes 

Investment in mutual funds measured at FVfPL 

Realised 1Z4.96 38.95 
Unrealised 

124.96 38.95 

48,686.11 30,663.66 

21 Other income 

Rs. in lakhs 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Charges for marketing/ display 1,240.65 1,6119.70 

Other non-operating income 22.26 45.85 

1262.91 1,695.55 

22 Fina nee costs 

Rs. in lakhs 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 

• Debt securit ies 250.42 35.46 
- Borrowings (other than debt securities) 16,456.37 9,691.52 

16,706.79 9,726.98 



Aptus S:inance India Private Limited 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for t he year ended March 31, 2025 

23 Impairment on Financial Instruments 

Rs. in lakhs 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

lxpcctcd Credit Loss Expense 

- On terms loans measured al amortised cost 1,193.56 592.35 

Bad debts written off 216.39 (33.59) 

1,409.95 558.76 

24 Employee benefits expense 

Rs. in lakhs 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Salaries, bonus and commission 175.07 l82.99 

Contnbutions to provident and other funds 8.54 10.61 

Share Based l:xpcnscs • 28.06 

Leave Encashmcnt lxpcnscs 0.06 0.02 

Gratuity c,cpcnscs 3.12 0.21 

214.85 193.83 

*Reimbursement paid to the Holding Company towards stock options granted to certain employees of t he company 

25 Other expenses 
Rs. in lakhs 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Support costs 6,036.45 3,217.38 

Information technology expenses 0.94 0.85 

Rates and taxes 871.89 499.97 

Office expenses 410.87 308.29 

Printing and stationery 8.60 9.32 

Commission to directors 22.50 20.00 

Director's sitting fees 7.30 6.00 

Charges p;,id to rat ina agencies 77.64 23.75 

B~ink charges 31.00 26.44 

Advertisement and publicity 0.37 0.79 

Legal and professional charges 126.11 87.31 

Auditor's fees and expenses (Refer Note below) 13.75 12.00 

Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure (Refer Note 35) 244.14 172.05 

M,scellancous expenses 46.23 26.86 

7,853.79 4,411.01 

Notes: 

Auditor1s fees and expenses 

Statutory audit fee 11.00 8.00 

limited review 2.75 3.00 

Reimbursement of expenses 1.00 

13.75 U .00 

<This space is intentionally left blank> 



Aptus Financ.c lndi;J Private limited 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 311 2025 

Note Particulars 

26 Addition.JI information to the financi;,I statements 

Loans sanctioned to Borrowers pending disbursement 

Total 

26.2 Trade & Other Payables: 

• I 

Trade Payables 

MSMl 

Due to others 

Due to related parties (Refer note ]8) 

Sub Total (i) 

Other Payables 

MSME 

Due to others 

Due to related parties {Refer note 28} 

Sub Total 1;1) 

Total (I)• (ii) 

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises: 

Particulars 

Particulars 

Rs. in lakhs 

As at Asat 

March 311 2025 March 31, 2024 

6,226.80 4,182.64 

6,226.80 4,182.64 

Rs. in lakhs 

A>at As •• 
March 31, 202S March 31, 2024 

12.00 8.75 

43.25 138.15 

55.25 146.90 

-

55.25 146.90 

Based on the extent of information available with the Management, there arc transactions with Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under Micro. Small and M edium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024. This has been relied upon by the Auditors. 

Particulars 

(i) The principal .:imount remaining unpaid to suoolicr as ilt the end of the vcar. 

!.!!_) The Interest due thereon remalnini unpaid to supplier as at the end of the year. 
(Iii) The amount of interest J).lid in terms of Section 16, along with the amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed 

d:iy during the ycur. 

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay In making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed 

day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under this Act. 

(v) The amount of interest accrued during the vcar and remaining unpaid at the end of the vcar. 

lvi) The amount of further mtcrest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as 

11bove arc ilCtuJlly paid to the small cnterprtse for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the 

Micro, Small and Medium ( ntcrpriscs Development /\ct, 1006. 

b) Trade payables ageing of dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises: 

31-Mar-25 

(i} Undisputed dues · MSME 

(1iJ Undisputed dues - Others 

Out$landing for following periods from due date of payment 

less than 1 

year 

12.00 
43,25 

1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years 

Asat 

March 31, 2025 

12.00 

Rs. in l akhs 

Total 

12.00 

(iii) Disputed Dues - MSM..;_E ______ ____ -l-----l-- --- +------t---- --- 1--------l 
(iv) Disputed Dues - others 

Total 55.25 55.25 

Rs. in lakhs 

OutstMding for following periods from due date of payment 

31-M ar-24 less than 1 
1 -2 ve.ars 2 - 3 years More than 3 years 

Total 

(i) Undisputed dues· M SMC 8.75 8.75 

(ii) Undisputed dues - Others 138.15 138.15 

@i!_Eispu~ cs : __ M.:S ___ M.;;:E'-----------1-----+-----+ -----+- - ---- - +------ - -j 
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others 

Total 106.90 146.90 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

8.75 



Aptus Finance India Private limited 

Notes forming part of the financial st.itements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

26.3 Disclosure pursuant to RC'servc Bank of India Notificat ion RBI/DOR/2023-24/106 Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India !Non-Banking Financi.il Company -Stille Based Rrgulation) 
Directions, 2023 DOR.FIN.REC.NO.4S/03.10.119/2023•24 updated as on M arch 21, 2025 pertaining to Asset Classification as per RBI Norms. 

As at March 31, 2025 Rs. In lakhs 

Loss 
Asset Gross Carrying Allowances Difference between Ind 

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms classification as Amount as per (Provisions) .:is 
Net Carrying Provisions requi red as 

AS 109 provisions and 
Amount per IRACP norms 

per Ind AS 109 Ind AS required under IRACP norms 
Ind AS 109 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (S)=(3H4l (6) (7) = (4)-(6) 
Performing Assets 

St.igc 1 2,73,141.81 1,168.43 2,71,973.37 1,134.26 34.17 
Standard Stage 2 16,224.53 387.62 15,836.91 83.04 304.59 

Stage 3 

Subtotal 2,89,366.34 1,556.06 2,87,810,28 1,217.30 338.76 

Non-Performing ~s~ (NPAI 

Sub-standard Stage 3 3,368.45 772.70 2,595.75 642.89 129.81 -
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 210.43 1S1.25 59.18 75.60 75.65 
1 to 3 years Star,e 3 67.82 47.48 20.3S 33.S8 13.90 

More than 3 ycd~ Stage 3 

Subtotal for doubtful 3,646.71 971.43 2,675.28 752.07 219.36 
Loss Stage 3 

Subtotal for NPA 3,646.71 971.43 2,675.28 752.07 219.36 

Other items such as guarantees, loan commitments. etc. Stage 1 
which arc in the scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered under 

Stage 2 
current Income Recoenition, Asset Classification and 

Provisioning (IRACPI norms Stage 3 

Subtotill 

Stage 1 2,73,141.81 1,168.43 2,71,973.37 1,134.26 34.17 

To~l 
Stage 2 16,224.53 387.62 15,836.91 83.04 304.S9 

St.:igc3 3,646.71 971.43 2,675.28 752.07 219.36 

Total 2,93,013.05 2,527.49 2,90,48S.S6 1,969.37 558.12 

As at M arch 31, 2024 Rs. in lakhs 

Loss 

Asset Gross Carrying Allowances 
Nc.t Carrying Provisi ons required as 

Difference bC!:twccn Ind 

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms classification as Amount as per {Provisions) as 
Amount per IRACP norms 

AS 109 provisions and 

per Ind AS 109 Ind AS required under IRACP norms 

Ind AS 109 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)=(3),(4) (6) (7) • (4)·(6) 

Pcrforminft Assets 

Stage 1 1,82,928.18 771.77 1,82.1S6.41 785.57 (13.80) 

Standard Stage 2 7 979.42 256.93 7,722.49 5 2.97 203.96 --
Stage 3 

Subtotal 1,90,907.60 1,028.70 1,89,878.90 838.54 190.16 

--- - -
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)_ 

Sub standard Stage 3 1,292.96 323.23 969.73 133.68 189.55 

Doubtful - up to 1 year Sti!'P,e 3 583.34 145.8'\ 437.50 120.37 25.47 

l to 3 years Stage 3 103.27 27.32 81.95 45.09 (17.77) 

More than 3 vears Stace 3 

Subtotal for doubtful 1,985.57 496.39 1,489.18 299,14 197.25 

Loss Stage 3 

Subtotal for NPA 1,985.57 496,39 1,489.18 299.14 197.2S 

Other Items such .is r.uarantcr....s, loan commitments, etc. St'agc 1 
which ,ne In the scope of lnd AS 109 but not covered under 

Stage 2 
current Income Recognition, Asset Classification and 

Provisioning (IRACP) norms Stage 3 

Subtotal 
Stage l 1,82,928.18 771.77 1,82,156.41 785.S7 (13.80) 

Tot al 
Stage 2 7,979.42 2S6.93 7,722.49 52.97 203.96 

St age 3 1,985.57 •96.39 1,489.18 299.14 197.25 
Total 1,92,893.17 1,525.09 1,91,368.08 1,137.68 387.41 

<This Space is intent ionally leh b lank> 
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Aptus Fimmce India Priv;1to Umitcd 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for t he year ended Marth 31, 102S 

Note Parttculars 

Disclosures under /\ccotmting Standards 

27 Se,i;mcnt Reportin1: 

The Comp.my I!> l'neaecd prtmanly in the busmcss of prov1d1nc .5,ccurcd bu11oln~s kuns which •s also vk-wcd and monitored by the Chief Operating ocoslon Maker as a smek! busmcss 
srr.mc.nt for the. purpm.l' of malr.inc decisions about r ci;;ourcl" alloc;at100 and perforn1;ancc u<:c'ismcnt and atoordmgly there arc no i;;cpar.itc reportable SC{lfflCnts as per Ind AS 108 

Oper.it1n11 Sccmcnts. 

28 Hclatcd party tr.tnsactiuns 

28.a O~tails of related parties: 

Description of relationship NamH of reh1t cd parties 

lloldmg Comp;iny J\ptu~ V.iluc lluur.ing I mancc lnd1<1 limited 

Key M,1n,1gcmc-n1 Pcrsonnrl {KMP) Mr. Anandan M, Chairman 

Mr. P 8.Jl.i11, Whole time Director 

Mr. S Knshnamurthy, Independent Director 

Mr.KM Mohandass. lndepcndent Director 

Mr. Subba Rao N.V, Independent Dircdor {From March 16, 20]~) 

Mr. Suman tk>l l,na, Non-executive Director ( 1111 M.ay 03, 1023) 

Mr. R Um,nuthan, Independent Director 

Mr. S. Uday vcnkata K1ran. Man;,ger & Chief I manc,.-1 Officer { 1111 Occembcr 13, 10711} 

Mr. l.llarshavardn, Company Secretary { l!ll Aueust 09. ]0141 

Mr. t. AntoAbmuh, Company Sccret~ry (f rom NOYcmbcr 04. ]074) 

Ms. Jyoti Suresh Mu not. Company Sccret:.ry (till M.iy 03,70?3) 

Note: Related p;,rty rclatlonshlps arc as 1dcnt1f1cd by the Manacemcmt and rr-licd upon by the Auditors. 

18.b Details of relat ed party tri.msactions for the year Rs. In lakhs 

Transactions Names of related parties 
For the year ended for the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2074 

~upport c01i,t,s p;ud J\ptus: Value llousine I ma nee India limited 6,036.11~ J,717.38 

I oans r<'Cf'IV<'d Aptus Value ttousmg I lnancc India l 1m1tcd '7,000.00 V,000.00 

lcwns repaid Aptus Valm~ llou~me I inan~ k1d1a 1Jm1tcd 2),000.00 27,000.00 

lnten~st on loan I rom lto!dmr.Company l\ptus Value Housing I 1nanc,- India l1m1ted 3,048.66 2.928.98 

C«po,ale: guarantee {;IVen by floldmg company In respect of Ronowtngs 
l\ptus Valur !lousing rmancc India IJmltcd !.9,000.00 

taken by the company 

Director comm1s,;,1on and s1tt1ng fee Mr. ICM Mohandass 

- Commission 1.~o 5.00 

Sitting fee 3.~o 1:.40 

Director comm1ss1on and s1ttmn tee Mr. S Krishnamurthy 

CommtSSIOO 1.~o 5.00 

Smmc Ice 2.40 ,_oo 

Oucctor comm1n1on :and s,mnc fee Mr. Suman Uollina 

C0mmlh1on 5.00 

- Sittmg foe 0.'10 

l)1rec-1or comm,uion and sitting fee Mr. H Um;nuthan 

- Commiu1on /.SO ~-00 

S1tt1nl! fee 1.110 1.20 

Kcmuncrdt1on Mr. S1gmam11octty Ud,1y Vcokata Kiran 

- S,1lary 17. 11 1~.31 

RemUJH' filhOI\ Mr. Harshavardhan 

• Salary 2.Sl S.31 

RemunNalmn M ... Jyoti Suresh Munot 

S.1l;try O. Hi 

Rcmunt'r.i11on Mr. J\nto l\binash 

---- - S-1lary 3.00 

Notc: Managcmal remunrrntmn above docs not indudc wa1u11y and compens~tcd absences, since the same arc provided on actuan.il basis for the Company as a whole and the amount 

attnbutablc to th<' kc; momugcnal pcr11oonnel =•mnot be .uccrtamed scparo1tcly. 

Balames as at yc;ar end Naml!s of r(l!'l;atcd partil!:s A.sat As at 

M arch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 --
Tf'rm Io.ins 0Uh:tand1n1~ Aptus value lfousins I lnancc India llm1tcd 34,000.00 78,000.00 
tor pot.itc cu.i1.1ntcc given by Holding company 111 ,cspcct of Borrowmgs 

Apt us Value ltou!>Tne f ma nee lnd1J Um1ted 4~,906.49 63,130.60 
taken by the cornp•rny .inti <.iuh,tand,nt: JS at the pcnod end 

29 t;arnings per share Rs. In l.ikhs 

Particulars 
For the yea r ended for the year ended 

March 31 2025 March 31, 2024 

Prolll Aft er 1 o1x (A) ]/,!,80.19 12.~2.ss 

Weighted Avcr.iec Number of Equity Shares (I ace V.ilut~ R~. 10 Fach) • 8.111o1c (B) 10,08,00,000 10,08,00,000 

J\dd: Uh-ct of dltutive potential equity shares 

We,t!htcd Avcracc Number of tqu1ty Shares (F.-.cc value Rs. 101 ach)-Dllutcd (C) 10,08,00,000 10,08,00,000 

f amint:) Per Sha,(' • Kttslc (Hs,) (1\/R) 17.44 12.85 

l~gs P<'r Sh.tre - Diluted (Hs.) (A/C) 17.'14 12.as -
Q ~

?-l&c -:---- 0 0 

B
vEIAJl)/.y 

* FRN: 004283S : I ~ -0 SJ Chennai c ~ CHENNAI .⇒) ~ 600018 {SJ 
~ ~~ ~ " 'l'edAcc0 

orr,, * •Ci 
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Note Particulars 

30 Financial lnstrumenu 

30.1 Capital mc1naeement 

lhe Company ;,ctivcly manages its capit.il to meet rngulatory norms and current and future business needs, considering the risks in its businesses. expectations of rating agencies, 

shareholders .tnd investors, and the available options of reusing caf::ital. Its <A1pital management framework Is administered by the risk committee of ComJ)iny. There has been no chanec 

in objectives, pohcics or processes for manaelng capital. 

Thr. Company h.is complied w ith all regulatory requirements related to rceulatory capital as prescribed by RBI. 

rhc company sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall financinc structure, I.e. t:quity and financial llab,lnies. 

Rs. in lakhs --
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at Mateh 31, 2024 

Net total debt including interest accrued and not due thereon (net of cash and cash equivalent) 2,21.514.17 1.40.310.59 

Tota l Equity 69,204.81 51.595.62 

Net debt to equity ratio 3.20 2.72 

30.2 Categories of Fin.1nclal Instruments Rs. in lakhs 

As at March 31, 202S As at March 31, 2024 

Measured at Measured at 

FVTPL FVTOCI Amo rtised Cost FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost 

Financ.ial assets 

Cash and cash cqu,valents 13,916.60 7,755.19 

Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents 386.82 629.26 

Loans 2,90,485.56 1.91.368.08 

Other financial as sch 312.33 407.73 

Total Financial Assets 3,05,101.31 . 2,00,160.26 

Financial liabilities 

Debt securities 19.204.49 . 
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 2,16,613.10 1.48.695.04 

rr1dc payables and Other financial habilitics . 618.91 . 409.4-1 

Total Financial liabilities 2,36,436.50 1,49,104.48 

Financial risk man.tg_cment_obj cctivcs 
lhe Company has adcQuatc internal processes to assess. monitor and manage financial risks. These nsks u'lcludc ma1'1cct risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price 

nsk), credit risk and liquichty risk. lhc Company seeks to minimise the effects of these risks in the manner detailed below. The Company docs not enter into t r.-ide financial instruments, 

including derivative financial inst rument s, for speculative purposes. 

30.3 Milfket risk 
Market Risk is the ,lsk of loss in on-balanca sheet i>nd off-billancc sheet positions arising from movement s In market place, In particular, changes In interest ,ates, exchange rates and 

equity. The Company ha.s -1 monitoring mechanism which provides the framework for assessing market risk, In particular. t racking of events happenine m market place, changes in 

policies/ guidelines of government and regulators, exchange rote movement , CQuity market movements, money market movements etc. 

30.4 Interest rate risk 

lntcrc~t rJ ll.! rbk. b; a ri:ik. which ls Jssociatcd with movement of u,torcst rates in the murkct. The manJgcmcnt of the Comp1.1ny closely monitors the Interest rate movements on a 

monthly basis which covers the following: 

• Sorrowing cost of thc Company as on a particular date 

- Interest rate scenario cxistinc In the market 

• Gap in cash flows at the prev,1lent interest rates 

• (ffcct of lntcrcst r;:itc chanecs on the Gup in the cash flows 

• Fixing appropriate interest rate to be charged to the customer b_.scd on the ilbovc factors 

Interest rate sensitivity analysis 

lhe sensit ivity analvsis has been determined for borrowings & loans where interest rates arc variable, assuming the amount outstanding at the end of the rcportln8 period was 

outstanding for the whole year. A ~O basls points increase o r dccrcarn fn interest rates is used when roporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents 

mana~cmcnt's JSScssment of the reasonably possible chantc in interest ro1tcs. 

Rs. in lakhs 

Sensitivity analysis as ~t March 31, 2025 Carrying value Fair value Sensitivity to fair value 

O.SOY. increase O.SO¾ decrease: 

loans 2,90,485.56 2,92,031.17 2,92,031.17 2.92.031.17 

Debt securities 19.204.49 19)50.81 19,250 ,81 19,2~0,81 

Bono~incs (ot_!icr than debt securities) - -- 2.16,613.10 2,35,305.26 .___] ,33.024.14 2,37.62~.38 

Rs. in lakhs 

Sensitivity an;alysis as at Marc.h 31, 2024 Carrying value Fair value Sensitivitv to fair value 

0.50% increase O.SOY. decrease 

Loans 1.91,368.08 1,93.345.59 1,93,345,59 1,93,345.59 

Debt secuntIr.s 

Borrowmcs (other th~ debt securities) 1.48.695.04 1.49.834.84 1.50.923.28 1.48.1125.79 



Aptus Finance India Pr ivate limited 

Notes forming p;;,rt of the financia l statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Note Particul.JrS 

30.5 Credit risk 

Credit risk in the Company arises due to default by customers on their contractual obligat ions which results to financial losses. Credit Risk is a m::ijor risk in the Company and the 

Company's asset base comprises of loans against propmty & Other Personal loans {Secured). Credit Risk in the Company stems from outright default due to inability or unwillin2:ncss of a 

customer to meet commitments in relation to lending, settlement and other flnanci:al transactions. lhe essence of credit risk iluessment In the Company pivots around the early 

assessment of stress. either in a portfolio or an account. and takine: appropriate measures. 

Default 

The Company considers a flnancial asset to be In default when the borrower Is past due on any material contr.1ctual payment of princ1~I or interest for more th.tn 90 days, or when ,t Is 

determined that the borrower ls unlikely to repay its cred it obligations in full without recourse to cnforcemont actions such as the realiz.ition of collateral, This assessment ls based on 

both quantitative. and qualitative factors and is consistent with the Company's internal credit risk management practices. The definition of default is .iipplied consistently for the purpose 

of assessing credit-impaired assets under Ind /\S 109. 

Cure period 

The cure period is the time frame during which a financial asset, previously classified as in default, is monitored for signs of sustained Improvement in the borrower's credit behavior. A 

financial asset is considered to have exited default when all past due amounts arc fully repaid and the borrower has dcmonst~ted regular and timely repayment bchavk>r over a 

continuous period, generally not less than 12 months. Based on the Company·s policy, a shorter period may be considered, but not less than 3 months. Ourfng the cure penod, the 
Compnny nssesses whether the improvement fn credit risk 15 sufficient to warrant reclassification of the asset from Stage 3 to Stage 2 under the expected credit loss model in accordance 

with Ind i\S 109. 

30.6 Credit risk management 

Credit nsk in the Company is managed throueh a framework that sets out policies and procedures covering the measurement .:ind mnn.:igcmcnt of credit risk. There Is a clear scereEaUon 
of duties between transaction origin.:itors in the business function and approvers In the credit risk function. Detailed credit policies have been drawn up to mltie;ate the Company's prime 

risk which Is the default risk. There is a robust Credit Risk Management sct·up in the Company at various levels. 

1. There .uc Credit t eams to ensure Implementation of various polici es and process.cs through random customer visits and assessment, training of branch staff on applicaUon errors, 

liaison with other insututions to obtain necessary inform.1tion/loan closure documents, .as the case may be, :and highlight early warning signals and industry developments cnablinc pro• 

active field risk manar,r.ment. 

2. The credit sanction is done through a delegation matrix where credit sanctioning powers are defined for respective levels. 

3. Portfoho analysis and repon:inc is used to identify and manage credit quality and concentration risks. 

4. Credit risk monitoring for the Company is broadly done .it two levels: account level and portfolio level. Account monitoring aims to k:lcnt1fy weak accounts at an incipient stace to 

facilitate corrective action. Portfolio monitoring aims towards managing risk concentration in the portfolio as well as identifyinc stress in certain occupations, markets and states. 

30.7 Significant increase in cred it risk 

The company has assessed thr. risk on the business loan portfolio considering the nature of loan and have made estimates on the probability of default and the loss given default for 

c1dditlonal expected credit loss provisioning In the books of accounts.The Company monitors all finilncial assets that arc subject to impairment requirements to assess whether there has 

been a sienificant increase in credit risk since initi.il recognition, If there has been a significant Increase In credit risk, the Company measures the loss allowance based on lifetime:! r.ather 

than st .. gc 1 (12 month) fxpccted Crccht loss (ECL). Pending the adoption of sconne models to auess the change in credit StJtus at an account level and at portfolio level, the Comp.iny 

has. adopted SICR {S1cnlf1cJnt lncre.:isc in Crcdil r isk) criteria based on Days Past Due (DPO). The following table lists the staging criteria used In the Company Staging Criterion 

Star,c l : o up to 30 days past due 

Stage :>: 31 up 10 90 days past due 

Staec 3: 90 nnd above days past due 

Stage 2 follows the rebuttable presumption stated m Ind AS 109, that credit risk has incrcdscd ,ign1fic-i1ntly since initial recognition no lat er than when contrc1ctual payments arc more 

than 30 days past due. 

The Company also considers other qualitative factors, repayment history and constders euldancc Issued by the Institute of Chartered accountants of India {ICAI) for staging of advances to 

wh tch mor.1 torium benefit has been extended under the COVID regulatory package issued by RBI and as approved by the Board. 

30.8 Measurement of ECL 

The key inputs used for mcilsuring ECL arc: 

Probability of default (PD): 1 he PD is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given t ime horizon (12 Month}. It Is est imated as at a point In time. To compute E,tpected Credit Loss 

([Cl ) the portfolio 1s scgre6Jted into 3 stai:es viz. Stage l, Stage 2 and Stage 3 on the basis of Days Past Dues. The Comp;,nv uses 12 month PO for the stage l borrowers and lifetime PD 

for star,e 2 and 3 to compute the ECI. 

Loss given default {LGD): LGD is an estimation of the loss arising on default. It Is based on the difference between the contractual cash Hows due and those that the lender would expect 

to rnc.eive, taking into account cash flows from el1g1ble collateral. 

Exposure at default {I /\0): E.AD Is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into .account expected ch;11nges in the exposure 1ftcr the reporting date mcludine: exp('cted 

drawdowns on committ ed facilities. 

Probability of Default 

To arrive at Prob.iblhty of Default, 'Vintage Analysis' was done considering monthly defaults of borrower since o rigination. 

rhe an3lysis considered Monthty Default Rates starting from Inception until the end of observation period I.e. Dec 2024 to calcul.ite default rates for each vintage month. Cumulative PO 

was calculat ed from the marfj:inal PDs for each v intace month. Simple Average and Wciehtcd Average PD was computed for each Month on Book (MOB) period starting from MOB O until 

MOB "n" (end of ob!>crvation period). The Company has used Simple ilverage to eliminate the bias that can be p0ssiblc due to weighted .tvcrage effect. 

Loss Given Default 

LGD was calculated usinr, I lrst time NPA {FTN) date and recovery data for each of these r TN dates. FTN date was taken from inception until Dec 2024. For each pool, recovery data was 

mapped to the subsequent months until Dec 10]4 from the respect.IV!:! default month 1.c. recovery data w.is rctncvcd Jnd plotted ag:iJ nst the flow of month I.e. Months on Book MOB 

0, MOR 1. MOR "J, MOB 3 t ill MOH (n) against each default month. ConsiderinB t ime v.ilue of money, recoveries in each month was discounted to arrive at the value as of FTN date. 

Prevailing Interest rate as at Balance sheet do11t e was used as the [ffcctive interest rates (EIR) for the loans. 

Ma,ilnal Recovery rates was computed for each month as Discounted Recovery amount for a elven month divided by the tota l out5tandlng amount for the given FTN date. Cumulative 

recovery r:itcs were computed for e.ich FTN date and LGO for correspondlne: FTN date was computed by using tho formula (1- Recovery Rate). Weighted average LGO was computed for 

the entire ob!>crvJt1on period. weights being the total outstanding amount for each FTN dJte. 
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Notes formine: o.irt of the financial st.1tcmcnts for the vcar ended March 31 202S 

Exposure at Default : 

EAO is the total outstanding balance at the reporting date including principal, overdue and interest accrued but not due at the reporting dato. EAD Cillculation for .JI! portfolios Is as 

under: 
Stage 1 Assets: 

• ((The total outitanding balance drawn)+ {Undrawn Portion•ccF undrawn)). 

Star.c 2 Assets: 
• l (Thc total outstanding b.:ilJnce drawn} +-{Undrawn Portion• CcF undrawn)). 

Stace 3 Assets: 
• l( lhe total outstanding balance drawn)• (Undrawn Portlon,.CCF undrawn)). 

Credit Conversion Factor (CCr) for undrawn portion h.1s been taken at 100% based on hi'litorical experience and other information available with the Company. 

The Company measures ECL as the product of PD. LGD and EAD estimates for its Ind AS 109 specified financial obligat ions. 

Credit Risk Concentrations 

An analysis of the Company's credit risk concentrattOns per class of financial asset is provided in the following tables which represent gross carrying amounts of each class. 

Rs. in lakhs 

Particulafs 
Asat Asat 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

l oans lat amortised cost) - Gross .imount 

Concentration by products 

Lo.ins ar,ainst propertv & Other Personal loans (Secured) 2,93,013.05 1,92,893.17 

!£!..al Advances_ 2,93,013.05 1,92,893.17 

30.9 'rhc tables below analyse the movement of the loss allowance during the year per class of assets. 

Rs. in lakhs 

loss allowance on Loans at amortised cost Stage 112-month ECL Stage 2 Lifetime ECL Stage 3 Lifetime ECL Total --- -

Loss allowance as at March 31. 2025 1,168.43 387.62 971.43 2,527.49 

Loss allowance as at March 31, 2024 771.77 256 .93 496.39 1.525.09 

Mov~ t for the Y:ar ended March 31, 2025 396.66 130.69 475.04 1,002.40 

The tab le below provides an analysis of the gross carrying amount of Loans by p.ist due status. 

Rs. in lakhs 

Particulars 
As at M.1rch 31, 202S As at March 31, 2024 

Gross carryin&: loss allowance Gross carrving loss allowance 

loans 

ODPD 2,54,542.29 1,034.94 1,75,413.65 714.12 

l up to 30 days 18,599.52 133.50 7,514.53 57.65 

31 up to 90 days 16,224.53 387.67 7,979.42 256.93 

90 d.iys and above 3,646.71 971.43 1,985.57 496.39 

Total 2,93,013.05 2,527.49 1,92,893.17 1,525.09 

30.10 Collateral held as security arid other credit enhancements 

The Company holds collateral or other credit enhancements to mitigate credit risk associated with financial assets. The main types of collateral ;and the types of asse\.5 these arc 

associated wi th are list ed in the table below. 

Particulars Type of Collateral held I 
loan ARainst Properties & Other Personal loans (Secured) Mortgace of the immovable property 

Althou,:h colla teral can be an import;rnt mitigation of credit rislc, ,tis the Company's practice to lend on the basis of the customer's ability to meet the obligations out of cash flow 

resources other than placint: primary rcli.incc on collateral and other credit risk enhancements. 

I he CompJny obtains first and exclusive chorgc on all collateral that ft obtains for the loans given. The loans arc secured by collateral at the t ime of origination. 

Immovable Property Is the collateral for loans given by the Company. Security Interest in favour of the Company is creat ed by Mortgage throueh deposit of tltle deed w hich Is rcelstcrcd 

wtiercver required by law. 
The CompJny docs not obtain any other form of credit enhancement other than the above. All the Company's term loan arc secured by way of tangible collateral. 

Any surplus rcmafmng after settlement of outstanding debt by way of sale of collateral is returned to the customer/ borrower. 

30.11 Offsetting f inancial :assets and fin;.1ncial liabilities 
findnclal auets and financial lfabilitlcs arc offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when the Group has a legally enforceable r icht to offset the recognised amounts 

and there is an mtcntion to settle on a net basis. or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
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Note Particulars 

30.12 l liquidity risk 
Lic,.J'C;~ risi< is t he r"si< trat tJ-.e Co--,oa"Y w; I encou"lte~ aitf;cu ty in ,.,..eet°"g t"e ob ·eafo"'s associated wl!n its fi'i.a'lc1a1 llab/1 t'es that are se!t'ed by de!iverine cast, or a,c: r-e r f°"anc"a! use!. The ap?rcact- to ,nanagi'"g Hqu:dity Is !o er.sure, as fa r as i:ossib:e, that it wi: hav1 

si..ffc'll!!"lt 1!q...id'ty to tT"eet ·u l'ac' t' es wT1en they are due, uncer co!l'l ric-a1 al"'d stressed cond"t io"ls, wit~oi..! ircur~·.,, l.r"acceptab e losses or r'.sk·,., da'""'1ace to Its re;:n:!a!·a ... 

30.13 lb:posure to liquidity risk 
~r'le ~arac,e""le.,,t of the Co-.pany rra"ages a'"d ,.,easJres ,'qi.:c;:y ~·s< on a'l Ol"'£C "& ou·s. wh1~h covers ""'O'l·:or,"i_O' tre q..t'C '~ s·::a:·o-, ilS O" a part:cu ar date and a!so ro~ the next 6 r,,.ortns cor.~·derirg : i..e pro;ec:ed cash Ol.tf ows. C(!ta' ed s~a~emef"ts are drawn t< 

cent fy M 1s,..,a:cnes In cas"l 'cws across l:: ... ::,;e!s spanrJng a ma! ... r,: es. V s-r,atches, t"t .. S, ,dent,f.ed are c ose:y -r.o"'.tored a"td act10-,:, i'"5 a~e c:-awn to brcee the gao. 

FollowinR are the contractual maturities of financial liabillty/financlal assets at the reporting date. Loans, debt securities and borrowings include estimated interest receipts/ payments which are undlscounted. 

30.14 

Rs. in lakhs 

1 day to 30/31 
Over one month to Over Z months up Over 3 months up Over 6 months to 1 Over 1 year to 3 Over 3 years to 5 Over > years to 7 Over 7 years to 10 

As at March 31, 2025 days Over 10 years Total 

{One Month' 
2 months to 3 months to 6 months year years years yc.1rs years 

Financial assets 

Cas'1 aid cash equivalents 13,916.60 13,916.60 
aa.,k Ba1ar,c;e othr than casli a•d cash 
equ'va:enu 

259.85 126.97 386.82 

Loans 6,506.97 6, 717.86 6,714.86 20,:21.85 40,079.69 1,53,649.14 1,38,75458 1,11,786.96 95,331.06 2,264.59 5,81,927.57 
Other Fil'la'lc'al assets 309.58 2.75 312.33 
Total (A) 20,733.15 6,717.86 6,714.86 20,121.85 40,079.69 1,53,649.14 1,39,014.43 1,11,913.93 95,331.06 2,267.34 5,96,543.32 

Flnanclal liabilities 
Trade payab'es SS.2S 55.25 
Debt Securit:es 143.96 430.88 1,064.45 1,618.26 3,153.47 11,6:6.38 4,736.64 22,764.0< 
Borrowirgs (Other than Debt Secvifes) 5,804.69 4,621.24 14,728.5S 20,970.79 40,662.98 1,29, 129.85 43,169.34 18,834.53 8,627.00 2,86,549.C8 
Other f.!-a'lc1al liab:lities 563.66 563.65 
Total (B) 6,567.56 5,052.12 15,793.00 22,589.05 43,816.45 1,40,746.24 47,905.98 18,834.63 8,627.00 3,09,932.04 
Net Financfal Assets/ liabilities (A-8) 14,165.59 1,665.74 (9,078.13) (2,467.20) (3,736.77) 12,902.90 91,108.44 93,079.31 86,704.06 2,267.34 2,8 6,611.28 

1 day to 30/31 
Over one month to Over 2 months to 3 Over 3 to 6 months Over 6 months to 1 Over 1 year to 3 

As on March 31, 2024 days Over 3 to S years Overs to 7 years Over 7 to 10 years Over 10 years Total 

(One M onth: 
2 months months year years 

Financial assets 

Cash an.d c.ash equivalents 7,755.19 7,755.19 
Bank aa'ance other tha-, cas~ aod cash 
equ·va!ents 

259.85 369.Gl 629.26 

loans 6,507.02 4,358.51 4,358.:2 13,709.52 26,117.87 l,01,217.30 87,426.10 67,367.10 62,338.78 888.15 3,74,288.47 
O:her Financial assets 406.23 I.SO 407.73 
Total (A) 14,668.44 4,358.51 4,358.12 13,709.52 26,117.87 1,01,217.30 87,685.95 67,736.51 62,338.78 889.65 3,83,080.65 

Financial liabilities 

Tr.de payables 146.90 146.90 
Debt Securit'es 

3o--row:nc:s (Other thlin Debt Sec1..,rites) 4,201.91 4,795.Cl 7,: 30.89 13,733.77 26,48<.98 78,66'.72 30,577.89 9,661.'2 3,362.66 1,78,614.27 
Otherfir-anc·at !!abilities 262.54 262.54 
Total (8) 4,611.35 4,796.03 7,130.89 13,733.77 26,484.98 78,664.72 30,577.89 9,661.42 3,362.66 1,79,023.71 
Net Financial Assets/ Liabilities {A-B) 10,057.09 (437.52) (2,772.77) (24.251 (367.11) 22,552.58 57,108.06 58,075.09 58,976.12 889.65 2,04,056.94 

Operational risk 

I 

Operational ris< is the riu of toss resu t ir:.1 from Inadequate or failed interr,af orocesses, peop!e and syst@m or from ex!ern.al evenu. Operational risk ·s assoc'.ated w;th human l!rror, sys!em fa:rures and Inadequate procedures and controls. It is tre risk of toss arising from t ni 

potential t~at Inadequate lnformaro, system; techno!ogy f1i1Jres, breaches 1n Internal controls, fraud, unforeseen co1tastrophes, or other operational prob!ems may resutt in unexpected tones or reputation problems. Operatlonill risk exists in all products and b.Jstnes 
activife.s. 

:The Cor:,pany recognizes tnat operatlo-111 risk event typt!s that nave t"e po:-nt1al losses inc:udes Internal frauc!, Ex terr al fraud, employment practfces and workplace safety, clients, producu and business practices, business dim,ption and system 
failures, damaie to physica l assets, and finally execution, delivery a1 

The Co'Ttpal"'y canno: e1tpect to aliminate all operat<onal risks, b 
orocedues, st1'-f educat:on and assess'l'!ent processes, such as ti 

:"'" a co,trol fr•mewor~ and by ~o'titcri•& and ,.,pond ing to potenfal rlslcs. Cont'o's lrclude e'fective segreaafon c' duties, access, author'sation and reccnclllatlon~~ <( 

z ) ' z it w 
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Note Partkulars 

- -- - ---- - - --- -- -- - --
JO.IS fai,Valuc Measurements 

Fair Value! hler.1rchy 

Tiu) ,ect,cn c11pl,11n, tht• Judec111cnh ;ind c~t1m~tcs made 1n dctcrm1nme the fair v.1lul'S of the fmond .:it ins1rnmc111s that ::ire (.1) r<•co1.,:n1,ed and measured ut l;m v.;,lue and lb) mt'IISUred at ,Hnortbcd tO\I and for Whtth 
fair v;il ue d1)closu1e a,c n~quitld m the findndal Sl.llt•ments. To provide ,1n lnd1ot10n about the r('1i;ib1lity of the inputs used in d('te,mlnlnc fJir v.ilue. the! Company h.n cl.ns1fif'd Its financial lnsuuments Into the three 

l<'YCI, pre Kn~ und<.'f the ac:.countmg SU,nd;ud. 

(a) !'air Valu<' of finandal instrunw:nts rccog_nlsed and mf'uurtd at fair w.ikil" Rs. In lakhs 

As at March 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024 

Particulars ~f!~- _ Leve!~ - ~ Ve!,!_ __ Total l evel 1 l evel 2 - lt'Yell Total 

nnantial auets 

lnvcume11ts 

{bl I airwah,e offina~clal iMtrumentf not me.nured .it fair value 

Valuation mc\hodologh:s at f lnaricia! Instruments not measured ill fair v.ilue 

HNowa,c the mclhodolog~s and auumptlOfl) used to determine fair walue\ for the above financi•1 W'ISlrumt"nts wtnch a,c not recorded and me.sured at 1i11r valul! m the Comp;rny"s fmanc1al :,,latcmcnh. These bir value~ 

w,•,c Cilfcul;,tc,~d for d1$Clo\u1c pU11)03oel only, The below mcthodolog1C's and au:umpt1ons rell tC' ontv to thc mslrumC'nts In the above t ;ibles and, as such, may differ from the tcchr,iques and auumpuons. 

Snort-tum llnancl;,lau.eu and lbbilitics 

•or flnanl.!~I ;isscb and fin.tnc:i.,1 ho1b1ht1es that have a i horM crm matuotv {le\, than twelve months}, thl• carrymc amounh, whtch art' 11ct of lmpairml'nt, an:~ a reasonable approiumation of their fair value. Such 

mi humcnts include c,:,h and cuh equivalents, bank balances uther th an cash and cash equiValents, othl'l financial 1ueu, trade payabln and other fmanc,al l~b1hws without a specific m,nurrty. Such •mol.U'lts have 

been d• n1hcd n ltvel .! ci1cept for Gsh and ush equr\'alenu ilnd bank ~~ncn other than ush and cash t'qu1walcnts wh!Ch have been tlass,fied u LC\lef 1. 

Loan, 

lhe f.air v.ilun of loans and trcMVlllbk-\ .uc Ml1matcd by d1scounll'd cash now modl'k: that 1ncorpontt- u,umptions for crrd1t m.\cs, probab111ty of dcfauh and lou g1vm ddau1t est1n1atcs, WhN«" such mformat1an is not 

ava1l11blr, th<' Compouw mrs h1~ttmr.1l t>xprr1r ntl' .and otht>r Informat ion usrd 10 ,u collcct1vr impaumr.nt modrts, 

J air v.i!ur\ of ll'ndinR portfohos arc cakulatrd u11ng a pnrtfol\o bucd approach. Thr Company thl"n ~kulalU and exttapobt C'!S lht' fair walut' to lht' <"RllfC portfolio. w in,: dru:ountrd cash flow mO(it'ls that mcorporllC! 

mtcn,")t 1,o1h! cu,mat<"S cons,dcune all ,1t1,mfitant char.1ct<'11\11cs of thc kJ;ms lhe ul!d1t rh.k 1s .ipphed Ha lop side adjustment bncd on the coltl'd1vc 11np;11rmcnt modl1I mtorporat 111c probab1hl't of defaults and Ion £Jvt•n 

dcf,1ulh 

Debt sec.uritics & Borrowincs other th•n debt securities 

I he h1r values of Uebt 5(!curit1ecs and Borrowings other th,m Ocbt St'CUritles arc estimated b'fl d11Countcd cash flow m odels that incorporate interest cost eu1matcs (onsaderinc d sicnlficant character!Shcs of the 

bOtrO"-'lfll. fh<'V .irc cl•uif.cd as level 3 f.iir values 1t1 the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobu:rv.ible ,nputs. 

Set out below 1s ,1 comparison, by t ldU, of the carrying amounts ;ind fair valul!S of the Company's fin,mdal instruments that Ire! not ciur1ed at fair waluo m the hnanual statements. 1h11 table docs not incklde the fair 

valu6 ol non fino1nc1al aMcts and non IW\anc:wl l1ab1h1,c\. 

Jhe mana~emcnt believes that lhc I J1r value c;il of CJsh :ind r,uh cqt,uvalents, Loans, other fin:incwl ;isM."ts, trade p.iyal.lf~. borrowings and other finano.il lt.ab1l1t.n ca rued ill amortised co1t approiumate lhetr net c.irrvin1 

amount. 
Rs. inlakhs 

As i t Man:h 31, 202.) As on March 31 2024 

Part icula~ 
carryln1 Value 

Fair Value hierarchy 
Carrying V-1lue 

Fair V11luc hlerarchv 

level l Levell l evel l Total hv•ll L~wel 1 Levell fotal 

! ln•nc11I aHCU 

c a~h and ush l'qu1valcnts ll 916 60 13,916.60 ll 916 r.o ,.,~!t.19 /,1)5. l'l 11!,!J.19 

"""" Bal;,nc.e other lh•n """ ,nd cash 
336 81 J8C..87 3&(.,82 619.JG G19 1G 679.?6 

~~UIV~ . 

lu,mi - } ,9048~ !,(i 1,9] 031.1/ 2,91,03L17 L 91 368.08 t,93,3"S.S9 1.93.34!, !,9 

Olht'r f111• 11Q,1l o1uets 31} 33 l1J33 111,33 407.73 40/./3 40/,73 

Total I in.incl.ii Auets 3,0S.101.ll 14,303.42 292, 343.50 3,06,646.92 2.,00,160.26 8, 384.45 l 93,753.32 201,137.71 

F~lliabffitics 
-

~~le~ !,5.25 s~.2s !,!,.15 146.90 146.90 146.90 

OcbtM:Cur~ 19 ]0C.49 19,250.81 19,7::,0.81 

HuuoWtnK) (~h.in debt 1ccunl1<•s;I 2,16,613.10 2,3!J J0S.26 ],35,305.16 l,'18,69~ 04 1,49,83'1.84 1 49,434.84 

Ot~n~~U':_\ - 563 66 -- - --- ~63.66 !,63.66 167.54 161.~ 161 S4 

1otal Finartelal U..bllkles ---- _?,36,43&.50 2,!.tS,174.98 J, SS,174,98 l ,'19,104.48 1,50, 244.28 l ,50,?44.18 --- ----
--- -- -



Aptus Finance India Private Limited 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Note Particulars 

31 Sharing of Costs 

The Company and its Holding Company share certain costs/ service charges. These costs have been reimbursed by the Company to the Holding Company on a 
basis mutually agreed to between them, which has been relied upon by the Auditors. 

32 Change in liabilities arising from financing activities 
Ks. In lakhs 

01-Aor-24 Cash flows Other• 31-Mar-25 

Debt securities 19,531.25 (326.76) 19,204.49 
Borrowings other than debt securities 1,48,695.04 68,597.78 (679.72) 2,16,613.10 
Total liabilities from financing activities 148,695.04 88 129.03 11 006.481 2 35 817.59 

01-Aor-23 Cash flows Other• 31-Mar-24 

Debt securities 732.64 (732.64) - -
Borrowings other than debt securities 58,765.26 90,950.60 (1,020.82) 1,48,695.04 

Total liabilities from financing act ivities 59,497.90 90,217.96 (1,020.82} 1,48,695.04 

" Other column includes the effect of interest accrued but not due on borrowing, amortisation of processing fees etc. 

33 Transferred financial assets that are not de recognised in their ent irety 

The following tables provide a summary of financial assets that have been transferred in such a way that part or all of the transferred financia l assets do not 
qLJalify for derecognition, together w ith the associated liabilities: 

The Compilny hils Securitised certain loans, however the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards, hence these assets have not been de-

recognised. 

Rs. in lakhs 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 202S March 31, 2024 

Carrying amount of transferred assets measured at amortised cost 78,659.84 39,551.16 

Carrying amount of associated liabilities measured at amortised cost 68,165.59 33,657.96 

Fair value of assets 78,659.84 39,551.16 

Fair value of associated liabiliues 68,165.59 33,657.96 
Net posit ion at I air Value 10,494.75 5,893.20 

<This space is intentionally left blank> 



Aptus Finance lndi.1 Priv;;itc Limited 

Notes forming part of the financi.JI statements for the ye.tr ended M.-rch 31, 20:ZS 

Not~ Particulars 

34 M.-turity an.-lysis of assets and liabilities 

35 

As. in lakhs 
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

Within 12 After 12 
Assets Total 

months months 

Within 12 After 12 
Tota} 

months months 

Financial Assets 

Cash and cash cqu1v.:.lcnt s 13,916.60 

Bank Bal.:tncc other than cash and cash equivalents 386.82 

loans 28,753.23 ) .61, 732.33 

Other financial asscU 309.58 2.7S 

Non-financial Assets 

Deferred tax assets (Net) 313.63 

Property, plant and equipment 

Other Intangible assets 

Current tax assets (not) 124.22 

Other non-financial assets 2/0.80 

TOTAL ASSETS 43,250.21 2,62,S59.75 

LIABILITIES 

Financial liabilities 

Tr41de Payables SS.25 

Debt Securities 19,204.-19 

Sorrowines (Other than Debt S<!curitic.s) 6",525.!>0 1,52,087 .59 

Other financ,.,11 li->bihties !>G3 66 

Non-Financial liabilities 

Current t..ix l1abihtfes (Net) 

Provisions 3.96 

Other non-financial liabtl1tics 164.69 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 65,309.10 1,71,296.04 

NET ASSETS/ (LIABILITIES) (22,058.89) 91,263.71 

Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure: 

13,916.60 

386.82 

2,90,'185.56 

312.33 

313.63 

124.2) 

210.80 

3,0S,809.96 

55.25 

19,204.49 

2.16,613.10 

563.66 

3.96 

164.69 

2,36,605.15 

69,204.81 

7,755.19 

18,280.96 

406.23 

308.05 

26,750.43 

1'16.90 

44.577.31 

26).54 

58.97 

0.08 

7-1.64 

45,120.44 

(18,370 .01) 

629.26 

1,73,087.12 

1.50 

367.43 

1,74,085.31 

1,04,117.73 

1.95 

1,04,119.68 

69,965.63 

7,755.19 

629.26 

1,91,368.08 

407.73 

367.43 

308.05 

2,00,835.74 

146.90 

1,48,695.04 

262.54 

58.97 

2.03 

74.64 

1,49,240.12 

51,595.62 

Rs. in l.1khs 

Particulars 
For thC! year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

a) A~o~n~quired t~ be spent by the company during the v_••- '----- - - ----------------+-----2-•14_._14-+-_ _ ___ 17_2_.0_5--< 
b) A.mount of expenditure incurred 108.11 

c} Shortfall at the end of the year " 136.03 172.05 

,.!) ~ ( prcvrou~y~s~dl_l _____ _ 

cJ~!son fo~shortfall ----- - - ----------------- -------- - - - - -,l- - -----+ ----- - - --l 

f) Nature of CSH Jct1vlt !cs 
Promoting Healthcare Promoting llealthcare 

and tducat lon .Jnd Education 

rclr.vant Account ing Standard, 

e) details of related p3rty t ransact ions. e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the company In relation to CSR expenditure as per 
N,I NII 

NII NII 
c) where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entcrmg into a contractual obh,tation, the movements in the provision 

durinr, the year shall be shown se_,p-e•_r•_te_ly'--.--------

.. The Company has provided for the shortfall in CSR expenditure a.s ; t March 31, 2025 and March 31,2024. Further, the company has transferred amount of Rs.172.05 lacs pertaining to 

shortfall for the f-Y 23-24 w ithin six months from the end of March 31,2024 to the schedule VU funds. 
0 During the previous year, the company was unable to Identify suitable CSR Initiatives in alfement with the initiatives already undertaken by the company, the business of the company 

and the areas in which it operates. 

(I) CSR projects undertaken by the Comp<rny fa l!lnt: under the dcOnitlon of "On-r,oine Projects" .arc given below. The Company has trdnsfcrrcd Unspent amount on such projects withm a 

period of 30 days from the end of the financia l year FY2074-7S to a sc~rate special bank account. 

1--------
Project Name 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Unspent Amount 

transferred to Bank 

Nllr.1ri Ad1vasi welfare /\ssociation IN/\WA) Consturct/on Tow Classrooms ->lonn with smart boards for Victoria armstornP. mcmorlal school 13.00 

Provmon <!!_one Bolero ~p ~~ 50 nos of St eel Barricad es for Government Medical Collcec Hospita_l_- T_h_ir_uv_ •_ll_u_r --------+-______ o_.9_9 

Community Infrastructure Developments at oandru Crematorium 75.00 
CEO office Thiruvallur - Coflfcrncc Halt Renovation '2.10 

Scva Saman,m Childrcns Home Pallipattu Taramani -Const ruction of Class Rooms Sl.15 

Road Safctv Trafficc Issues lnterventron Through DSP Thiruvallur 23./9 

Tot3l 136.03 
(ii) ihe company has transferred amount of Rs.172.0S lacs pertaining to shor1fall for the FY 23-24 within si,c months from the end of March 3 1,2020 to the schedule VII funds. 

(iii) There is no amount required to be contributed to specified fund u/s 135 (6) by the Company. 

36 Employee benefit plans 

36.1 Defined contribution plansk 

The Company makes Provident Fund contributions for qualifying cmployr.es 10 the R~ii;ional Provident fund Comrniss ioncr. Under the: Scheme. the Company Is required to contribute~ 

specificd percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company recognized Rs. /.92 lakhs (M;Hch 31, 1024 - Rs. 9.M lakhs) for provident fund cont ributions In the Statement 

of Profit and Loss. The contnbutlons payable to the scheme by the Company arc at rates specified ln the rules of the scheme. 



Aptus J:in:iince India Private LimitC!d 

Notes forming part o f thr finandal statements for the year cnded M arch 31, 202S 

Note Particulars 

36.1 Defined benefit p lans 

A) The- romp;,ny has a defined benefit gratuity plan, governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 19/l. It entitles an employee. who has rendered at least five years of continuous 

service. to r,ratmty at the ro1tc or fifteen days wages for every completed ye;i r of sN vIcc or part thereof, based on the rate of war,cs last dr,"lwn by the employee concerned. 

B) 

C) 

D) 

Fl 

Company's habihty tow-irds gr.iituIty (unfunded) -ire actuarially determmr.d at the end of each year using t he projt-ctcd urut credit method as applle.1blc. 

These p!Jn~ typ1c.tlly Cl(J)OSC the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment 11sk, interest r-itc risk. longevrty 11sk and sabry risk. 

l he prcsr.nt value of the defined benefit pl;in ll.1bll1ty Is calculatc-:d u,;lng a dlsct1unt r.11c dctcrrnlncd by rdercnce to the market y1ckb on government 

bonds denomm.:tted in Indian Hupees. 

lntrr('~t ralc n~,k~-t-A,-d_ca_ c•_se_ l_n__,th,..c_b--:on__,d,..,n_t,-",..••-' ..," .,.' '-' w_,,..11 _1n.,.c,_c:a_,."..,'..,h_c ~•1_an_1,..1,..,b,_l,t~y·.,-,--,,------,-,------,-,-----,--,.--,------,-,--...,----,t 
r'he present value of lhc dcHncd bcncht plan lI.ib1l1ty Is calwlated by reference to the ~st estIm,ltc of the mortilhty of pl,n partk1pants both dunnn and 

Mort.illtymlc 
ahc, their cmpk>ymcnt. An mcrcase m the hfc expect.incy of the plan p.iruopants will Incre.1se the pl;in's hab1lity. 

lhe pre!>cnt value or the dt:lmcd benefit plan hab1l1ty 1s calculated by reference to the future !t.tl.1rics o f pliin p:u1IcIp;mts. A~ such, ,rn mOciiSC In the Hlary 

of the pl.1n partIc.Ipants wtll Increase the pl.In's hab1hty. 

lhe principal tl~umptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuatiom: were as follows: 

Particulars 

Gratuity 

Asat 

M.irch 31, 202S 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

Discount R;1tc 6.61" 6 9/% 

5.llaryGrowt_h_R_, ,_. __________________________ -+-- - ---·-----+---'-00%- ----l 

Attnt,on Rates 

Nil% for AG1-AG3A 

33.33% for AGll AG6A 

°"for AG/ & above 

9.68% for SG cat<.'ROfY of 

employees 

~.00% for AGl AG] 

0.00% for AG3 AG6 
0% for AG/ & above 

30,C, fo, SG category of 

employees 

Indian Asi.ured I 1vci. Mort,.hty lnd1.:an As:1,urcc.J t.,vcs 
(]012 111) Ult table Mortahty(]Ol2· 14) Ult t ablf' 

lhf' c:1,tImatcs of future salary increasr-s. considered in :.ctuar..al valuatton, take account of inflation. srmonty, promot ion and other rl'levant factors, such as supply and demand 

In the employment market. 

Amounts recognised in t otal comprehensive intome in respect of t hese defined benefit p lans are as follows: 

P.llrticulars 

Grat uity 

Amounts rctor;nlscd in Profit and toss 

Cuncnt )C(VK c t'.U)I 

t~N 1ntrtr\l CXpt"nSC / (income) 

Components of defined benefit costs rec.oenised in profit or loss • 

Amounts rec.cgnised in Ot her Comprehen sive Income 

Actuarial {gam)/ los~ on plan assets 

Componf.!nts o f defined benefit costs recognised in 00 

• Included m "Gratuity eKpcnies• under employee benefits expense In profit or loss (Refer Note 24) 

Period ended 

M arch 31, 2025 

The amoun t included in the balance shf't'i t a,rising from t he Comp:.ny's obligation in respect of its deflnt!d bcnt!fit plans is as follows: 

Grat uity 

Pfr-<l'nl valui' ol drfmt!d bt'ncf,t oblig:.uon 

I ;ur valuf' of plan ~s.,,Ni. 

Net (As.sct)/l iability ar ising from defined benefit obllt:ation (fonded} 

Movernents in the present value of tl,e ddlned b enefit oblir,ation were as follows: 

Gratuity 

Openmc dt!fined l>t!nt!f1t obt1ca11on 

Current ~l'I\IKe cost 
lntcr~tc~t 

Actuanal (nmn)/fo,.._ .imlng from ch.1nncs m fln,mc1al a-.s\lmp11ons 

t\ctuauJI (n.11ns1Jlcw,es ..immc from changes In dcm0ffraph1c assumptions 

Attua,,al (~.i1n)/lu)) arIsms from c11pcr Icncc ad;uslmL•nts 

/\ctuan.11 (r,am)/loss on obhcation 

Hendns p-i1d 

Oosi ng defined benefi t obligat ion 

~ ~~\&co 

'I * FRN: 004283S * 
I O Chennai .B 
i 600 018 .$ 
~ ~<::' 

red Acco 

/\sat 

M arch 31, 2025 

Period ended 

M.arch 31, 2075 

OS} 

0 JO 

0.67 

1.25 

3.]6 

3.26 

1.39 

0.57 

0.10 

us 

3.26 

Rs. in lakhs 

Period ended 

M arch 31, 2014 

0~9 

0.04 

0.63 

10.04) 

Rs. in lakhs 

Asat 

M arch 11, 1024 

1.39 

1.39 

Rs. in lakhs 

Period ended 

M arch 31, 2024 

D.80 

0.59 

0.011 

0.38 

(0.'1) 

1.39 



Aplus finance India Priv• te limited 
Noles forming part of the financial statements for the yea r ended March 31, 2025 

Ci) Monments in the fair value of the plan u ~ ts were as follows: 

11) 

Gr;1tuity 

Opening b ,r value of pl11n assr.ts 
intc,cst on plan assets 
Rcmc.nu1cmcnts due to Actu.il ret urn on pl.an .1sscts less ml crcs.ton plan ;.:.sets 
Rt"lurn on pl,m ,H\CIS (<'xcludmg amounts md udC'd In n<'t mtrrcst expense) 
Contnbuuons 

Benefits p;ud 

Closing fair value of plan ;uscts 

Period ended 
M arch 31, 2025 

Rs. in l~khs 
Period ended 

March 31, 2024 

0.41 
(041) 

I 

Siinif'k...nt actu,uial assumptions for the determination of the defined oblication arc discount rate and e,cpccted s .1li1ry increase. The sensidvity a"alysls below hu been 
determined bau!d on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumption occurring at t he end of th.e rf'.porting period. 

Gr,ituity 

If t he discount rJtc scn~1tiv1tv: 

mac.ue by O.~% 

Defined ~neOt obltgation 

Current llot.•rv1cc co!>l 

dt'cre,uc by O.!J% 

Od 1ncd benefit oblt6at1on 
Curr<:nt service cost 

If thl" ~al.1ry ctowt h rate M:ns1t1V1ly. 

Increase by O.~% 

Ocfmcd bcncht obl1ft3l1on 

Current sr rv1rc CO\t 

decrc,:nc by 0 !.% 
Defined benefit obhr,at1on 

Cur rent sN v1cc cost 

As a l 

March 31, 2025 

1.11% 

3.11 

1.03 

G U % 

3.47 

l..fi 

~ .!)0% 

3.43 

1.15 

··~°"' 
3.10 
1.0] 

As at 

March 31, 201.4 

7.4 /% 

1.31 

o.,o 
6.'1/% 

1.49 
o.ss 

~.',0% 

1.49 

o.~s 

4.~0% 

1.30 

0.'19 

lhc :.cn~1t,v1ty ,mJly s1llo prc llocntcd al.love m.iy not be reprl').Cntat ,ve of the ;ictuiJI change in the defined benefit obhc.it1on a.s 1t I!> unlikely that the dtangc 1n aswmpt1on~ would 

occur ,n 1s.olat1on of one ;mother as some of the assumptions m11y be correlat ed, 

I urthermur t..•, in p1cllocnt1n1:: the above scn:.1ttv1tv .inJlys1llo, the present viluc of the dcllncd benefit obhgJtlon ha~ been alculatcd u~1ne the pro,ccted unit crcdrt method,., the 

<'nd nf rach rrportmo prriod. which 1s t hr SA ml!': ;is th.11 applied 1n ulculatmg the dcfinf'd bcnrf1t obhr,:n lon l1.ab1hty rec.or,n1scd in thr b11~ncc sheet. 

Maturity profile of dt:fined bf'.nefit obligation/cCJntribution to p l.in assets 

Year 1 ashflow 

Ve-,, 7 t.J11,hf!uw 

Year l ca1hflow 

Yc,u 4 ca11,h llow 

Vc.ir !, ushltow 
Y<>ar 6 to y<>u 10 u shflow 

lhc c~t1matcd term of the obhr,at100 1s around 10.50 ye,irs (14.J years a1, on M.arch 31,7074) 

<This space is intentionally left blank> 

Asot 

M arch 31, 2025 

0 37 

o.,b 

0 33 

0.33 

0.30 

l.09 

Rs. in lakhs 

Asot 

March 31, 2024 

0.01 

0.01 

0.0 1 

0.20 

0.19 

0.4/ 



Apt111 Finance India Priv.-te I imited 

Not1n formlnt pan of the ftn.inci.il ~t.ah:menu for the ~ear ended March 31, 2025 

Note Particulars 

37 Diu.losure pun.u.ant to Muter Olrc,ction RBI (Non Rankirl,f; r lnanci;1I comp.1ny-Scalc Ba sed Heculation) Directions, 20Z3 

37.l 
Schrdule to t he 811lance Sheet of an Non-Bomkfng Financial Company pursuant to ~cscrve Sank of India Notifica tion RBI/OOR/1013-Z4/106 Master Oirecdon - Reserve Bank of India 
(Non•6ankine f.in.ancial Compa ny - Sa.le Bas~d neeul.i ti•ml Olrcctions, 101.J OOR.rlN.R[C.NO, 'iS/03.10.119/1023-14 Updattd as on 11 March 1014. 

Partlculau: 
I-- As itt ~....!!:~• ZE.!_S __ 

Amount Amount 

Ouutandinc overdue 
li.1bili1i•ss~ 

l. Loans 11nd adv.tnces a111111led by the Non-Ba nklnc Finamclal Company Inclusive of Interest accrued 
thereon but not paid: 

(a)Dcbenturcs 

- !:iccured 

• 1Jnsecu11.'d 
(othl'r than falhn(1 within thf' mNnmR of pubhc rlf'pos,ts) 

(bl Ocft'ffed crNhl, 

le) Co1nmerc1,1I PJpC:r 

(f) Publtc Ocpos,ts 

le) Olhc, I OJn\ 

- Workmn c.ip1tril loans 

1, 8rc:ak up of {l)lflabove (outsta ndinfl public deposits inclusi11c of interut accrued thereon but not 
paid) 

!.1) In the fo,m of Unsccurnd debenture, 

{b) In the form ot p.irtly scc:urcd dct1cn1u,~ l.c debentures whern there 1-. 11 J.ho1tf.lll m the Villuc of 
ICt.Ullty 

(C) Othf'f ~bhc drpos,u 

Pilrtlculars 

Assets s!dr_i 

3, 8rcitk up of loans and Advances includlnc bills recdvablu (other than those included in (4) below) : 
(.:ii Secured (refer Note C.) 

lb) Unscclir~•d 

4. Break up of leased Assets and s tock on hire and other assets counting tow.1rd1 asset financinc ae1ivities 

(1) lrasc a~!.ets mrludmg lrase t t'ntals undt-r sundry dt"btou: 
a) I m,incrnl lease 

b) Oprr.111111: ICJ)C 

(iii 5totk on hue includmc hire ch.trees under sundry debtor~: 
a)Aneu on ll1rn 

(a1) Dlhf'f loan, counting towards a~srt f,nanong IC1N"1tit"s 

a) loa,11 when• l\urts have bN•n rrpossrnrd 

b) loans o thl'f than (a) .ibove 

S. 8re:ak up g f Investment ,: 
Current lnvutments: 

I.Quoted: 
i.Share, 

a}tqu1ty 

11. l>eb<'ntures .and Roods 

m Unns of Mutu.-11 unds 

1v C.ovcrnmc nt Secur1t1e$ 

v. Others (pll",:u e $pcc,fyl 

II. Unquoted: 

1 Sh,nrs 

11) lqu11y 

b) Prt"frrrnct" 

11 Ocbenturt"S 11nd ffond~ 

111. Umt~ of Mutual I unds 

IV. Gc111Nnmt•nt Scamlil'~ 

v Othco (Pk-•~c ,pec1f-,,) 

l.on,c lcrm ln\lr~tmcnls: 

I. Quotr:d: 

1 Sh;ul"S 

a) I quny 

b) Prclercncc 

II Debentures. .ind Bond, 

ul, Urut\ of Mu1uaf funth 

1v. r.ovcrnmt"r'lt Srcur1lll'l 

v. Olhrrs (pll'ur 'ipl'cify) 

II. Unquotr.d: 

•l lqu11v 
b) Prl"fl't('nlC 

,1. Ot•bl'nturN ;ind Bund~ 

111. Uml\ of Mutu.11 1 unds 

,v r.ovNnmc-nt Srrunll<'S 

v. Othrrs (plt-::i'ir SPt'cify) 

1,09,'1~8.34 

14.000.00 

G8,16S.S9 

'1,989.17 

Rs.in\akhs 

As at March 31, ZOZ~ __ 

Amount Amount 
Outstandin1 

84,S'12.Jl 

28,000.00 

3.1,6S7.96 

'-"94.71 

Overdue 

Rs. In ~khs -----~- -Asat 

March 31, 2025 

2,93.0ll O', 

Aut 

March Jl, 1014 

1,9],893.17 



Apt us I ln.1ncr lndiJ PrNate limited 

Notes formin,: p;ut of 1hl' fimmcial 1,tatemcnts for thl.! ve.1r 1,Jndt•d Mar<'h 31 :,,075 

G. Borrower croup w ise d,nsif~ti~) a~ts fin_!ncc~s It, (3) .ind (11) above: _ _ 

tatec:ory 

1. He~tl:d parties 

(a) Sub~1d1a, IC$ 

(b) Comp:inll's 1n the same c roup 

(1,.) Other rcluwd P iHllCS 

As at March 31, 2025 

(Net of Provi,iom,) 

Secured Unsea.ired Total Se:curcd 

As ~t Much 1r.-20z4 

(Net of Provisions] 

Unsecurc.d 

Rs.in l,;,ilths 

Tot.al 

2. Oth~r than relat<:'d panlr-s J,90,"3!>.!:>6 _ 1,'H,3_68 ~ I--

- - ------·-------~-~ • •~90~,48='·c=c56,._. ______ _... _ ____ __,__ _ __,1,.,,9"'1,c:;361=.o::c•..1.-____ -.J'--------'---J 

~ nvcstor ,:roop_::_wise clas,ification of all invc1tmr-nt1 {current and lone term) In stures ;,ind securities (both quoted and unquoted] : 

1. Rcbted parttcs 

(al Sub"d1ar1e, 
(b) Comp;:mlcs 1n lhc s.amc group 

le) Other relall'd pa,t;cs 

1. Oth~r 1han rc.btcd p;uties 

f.ategory 

P<1rticulars 

M arket Value / Market Va lue / 

Break up or fair Book Value as on Bruit up or fair Book Value as on 

value or Net Anet M;.r<'h ll, J0l4 v;,lue or Net Asset March 31, l0l3 

Value ason 
March 31, 2025 

Related Panics 

(Net of provi~ons} Value ason (Nict of provisions) 

Other t han Re lilted Other t han Related 
Rc:.lilted Parties 

Parties Puties ~--- - --------------------l--------1--- ..:.:.='---l------l--~=:;,:_--l 

1. Gro~s Non f.lcrfom1111e A,~cts 
11 Ne! Nun Pcrf1.Kmmg Ant•h 

111, Au rh Acciu1r<'d m Sa11sfoc11011 o! 0<'bt 

37.2 Capital lo Risk An<"l5 R~tio (CRAR) 

firt I t.)p1t"l 

l1Pr II <:apnal 

Total Capital 

Tota l Ride Auets 

Capital Rauo~ 

CMR lier I Lap1t .. 1 ("i,) 

CRAM IIN II Up1tal ("} 

CK/Ht(%) 

Particulars 

Amot,1111 of \ubOfduu,trd dC"bt r.11SC"d .u l1f'f· II C.ap11,al 

Amoun1 ra1M"d by ,~,ur of Perprtuill Drbt lnstrumrnts 

Brutup of lier land l~ir II capital as at March 31,l015 and March:ii,2024: -

Particulars 

Tier lC.prtal 

l'Jtd up lqu1ty ShJ((' WJJlllll 

C1cd11 balc1ncC" m Profit and loss Account 

Sl.atuto,y fl'\C'rvt' undrr Srction .,~ K of RC"SNVC' Ba11lt of lnd,a Act, 1')34 

Dcfcrrrd rrvrnuc I i,:p<'11dllure 

[x,fcrr('d Ta~ ASS('b (~l) 

1 lr~t 1(»,s on Sccur1111ut1011 /\,~ct, 

rk'r I Capltr,I (Net) 

Tir-rll Capit11I 

GcnNal prOVI\IOl'I rind lou IPSNVf'S (mcludma prO\'ISIOn\ for Slilndard t1SSC"l5) 

I 11s1 Jon on .Srcur1111a11on J'u.sr1s• 

l ier II tapit.il (Nel) 

Nute: 

Asat 

March 31, ZOZS 

59,809.81 

59,&09.81 

2,10,169.36 

J8A0. 

000'< 

Zl.4C.% 

--- - - - -
As a t 

March 31, 207~ 

10,08000 

'1,963.00 

47,/014/ 
10/)1.33 

(S.00) 

(113.63) 
(8,3118 l(il 

59,809.8] 

1,168 43 

IJ,163.431 

59,t109.Bl 

l,!18~ ~/ 

1,'111'J.18 

Rs. lnl.ikh s 

Asat 

March 31, 10l4 

44,(12L0/ 

44,621.01 

),57,199.47 

18 39X. 

o°"" 
28.39" 

-
Rs.inlalthi 

Asat 
Much 31, 2024 

10,oao.oo 

4,%8.00 

)8.643.CM 
/,10', 29 

113,36) 

(361.43) 

IS,8~) 
44,621.01 

]/1./1 

1/11.fl 

44,611.07 

I mt lo,., on .5('cuullsrd As\Cts 1$ rPsluctl"d to the- eKtC"nt of Gun, t•N II or•t~I of INR 1,16JI 4l l•khs •s •t M.a•ch Jl, J02!) (March Jl,7024" INR / /1.I / lakhsl and thl" balance first loss on 
S('CUIIIIJ('d :IIUf'll ... adJu\tC"d from TiN 1 capttal of INR R,3'111 36 lakhs a, al M;irch 31,1025 (March 31,7014 INR !>,89-147 lakhsl 

31 .3 Investments 

Value of lnvestffM'nts 

I} Grn,;s V.-iluf' of lnvC"slmC"nt<; 

(al In lnd1,1 

11) Prov111on, for l)('prcu,1t1on 

(d) In lndrn 

lul Nt!I V.-ilul' of lnvl'1tm1:111, 

(a) In India 

fb) Outside India 

Pardculars 

Movement of proviskins held towards depreciation on inve,tmcnts 

•I Opcnmt1 BJLmcc 
It) Add. Provu,1ons madr dunnc tht' yr.1r 

m) lrH' W11tC"•Off / Wnurn back nf OCC'.\S prOVISIOOS du, ine thl' Vt'lU 

rv) C1011nr. balantt' 

3/.4 Ocrivativt's 

lhc Cornp.1nsy ha.1, not entNed mto Jny {)(-uvctt1vc tran~ct1ons. 

I orw;ud Rutc A{lrN•mcnt (I R/1) / lnt~rcu Rate Swa1> (IRS): Nil 

t ,r,(J1Jnge l1Jdcd lnt<'rt'!.t Ho1te (IR) DcnvJl!vc: Nil 

Olsckaure~ u,1 K"k t ICPO~urc in U1mv,1t1V1,>§: Not apo1u::iblr 

\)~\ & C 
OJ 0 

* FRN: 004283S * 
\ 
() Chennai 2 
i 600 018 ,k 
~ ~~ 

redAcCO 

As.it 

~,ch 31, 7025 

R1.inlakh1 

Asat 

March 31, 1024 



Aptus Finance India Private Limited 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Disclosure relating to Securitisation Pursuant to Reserve Bank of India Notification RBI/DOR/2021-22/85 
37

•
5 

DOR.STR.REC.53/21.04.177 /2021-22 dated 24th September 2021 for Non-STC Securitisation Transactions. 

S.No Particulars 

1 No of SPEs holdinfl assets for securitisation t ransactions orieinated by the orieinator 

(only the SPVs relating to outstanding securitisation exposures to be reported here) 

2 Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPEs 

3 Total amount of exposures retained by the originator to comply with MRR as on the 
date of balance sheet 

a) Off-balance sheet expsoures 
• First Loss 
• Others (second Loss) 

b) On-balance sheet exposures 

• First Loss - Cash Collateral 

• Others (Investment in equity tranche PTCs) 

• Others - over collateral 

4 /\mount of exposures to sccuritisation transactions other than MRR 

a) Off-balance sheet expsoures 

5 

6 

7 

i) Exposure to own sccuritisations 

• First Loss 

• Others 
ii) Exposure to third party securitisations 

• First Loss 

• Others 

b) On-balance sheet exposures 

i) Exposure to own securitisations 

• First Loss 

• Others - over collateral 

i i) Exposure to third party securitisalions 

• First Loss 

• Others 

Sale consideration received for the securitised assets and gain/loss on sale on account 

of securitisation durinll the year. 

Form and quantum (outstanding value) of services provided by way of, liquidity 

support, post-securitisation asset servicing, etc. 

Cash Collateral ( Fixed Deposit) 

Performance of facility provided. Credit enhancement, liquidity support, servicine aflent 

etc. 
cash Collateral (Fixed Deposit) 

(a) /\mount paid 

(b) Repayment received 

(c) Outstandinr, amount 

Credit Enhancement 

(a) /\mount paid 

(b) Repayment received 

(c) Outstanding amount 

8 /\verafle default rate of portfolios observed in the past. 

9 /\mount and number of additional/top up loan given on same underlyinfl asset. 

(a) /\mount 

(b) Number 

10 Investor complaints 

(a) Directly/Indirectly received 

(b) Complaints outstandinfl 

As at 

March 31, 2025 

11 

68,165.59 

4,951.92 
2,150.29 

318.40 

4,716.35 

2,096.19 

51,729.67 

318.40 

318.40 

9,198.41 

0.06% 

Nil 

Nil 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

6 

33,657.96 

2,365.43 
598.40 

511.57 

1,612.57 

3,190.83 

37,048.03 

511.57 

511.57 

6,154.66 

0.39% 

Nil 

Nil 



Aptus Finance India Private limited 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Note Particulars 

37.6 Asset Liabili ty Management 

Maturity Pattern of certain items of Assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2025: 

Rs. in lakhs 

15 days to 
Over one 

Over 2 months up Over 3 months up Over 6 months to 1 Over 1 year to 3 Over 3 years to 5 
Particulars 1 day to 7 days 8 to 14 days month to 2 Over 5 years Total 

30/31 days 
months 

to 3 months to 6 months year years years 

liabilities 

Borrowings from 

Bank 3,936.05 2,513.96 12,694.16 15,106.13 30,275.21 1,02,078.50 30,982.88 19,026.23 2, 16,613.10 

Market Borrowings 33.03 297.06 922.78 1,207.33 2,424.28 9,812.56 4,507.44 19,204.49 
Assets 

Advances 3,057.89 2,661.67 1,706.21 1,793.49 1,822.80 5,644.58 12,066.58 55,684.43 66,382.45 1,39,665.46 2,90,485.56 

Maturity Pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities as at March 31, 2024: 

Rs. in lakhs 

15 days to 
Over one 

Over 2 months up Over 3 months up Over 6 months to 1 Over l year to 3 
Particulars 1 day to 7 days S to 14 days month 102 

Over 3 years to 5 
Over S years Total 

30/31 days 
months 

to 3 months to 6 months year years years 

Liabilities 

Borrowings from 

Bank 
91.07 3,035.52 3,667.61 6,065.58 10,608.82 21,108.71 66,071.77 26,567.40 11,478.56 1,48,695.04 

Market Borrowings 
Assets 

Advances 1,566.64 740.71 1,085.97 1,181.39 1,203.54 4,383.53 8,119.18 39,369.65 43,523.07 90,194.40 1,91,368.08 

In case of loans, where the loan is not completely disbursed and i t is in Pre-EMI stage, the Company has estimated the EMI commencement date based on the technical evaluation and other informat ion available as on date 
Accordingly, the maturity pattern for such loans has been considered based on the estimated EM! commencement date. 

Note: The Company does not have any foreign currency assets and liabilities in books as at the end of the current year. 

,~c-E llv(j, ·~a~' ,_ , 
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Aptus Finance India Private Limited 

Notes forming part of the f in~ncial statcm<!nts for the year ended M arch 31, 2025 

Note Particulars 

37.7 A. Exposure to Real EstiltC Sector 

Rs. in lakhs 

Particulars 
As at Asat 

March 31, 2025 M arch 31,2024 

Direct Exposure 

(i) Residential Mortgages 

lend ing fully secured by mortgages on residentit1I propcrtv that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented. Exposure 
2,89,498.46 1,89,231.61 

would also Include non-fund based (NFB) limits. 

(ii} Commercl.11 Rc.1I Estate 

Lending fullv secured bV mortgages on commercial rct1I estates. (office buildincs,rc1o11il space, multi-purpose commercial premises, 3.514.59 3.661.56 
multi-family res ident iill buildlncs, mult i-tenanted commcrc:ial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, 

development and construction, etc.). Exposure shall also include non-fund based (NFS} limits 

(iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securit ies (MBS) and other sccurlt iscd exposures 

a. Residential 

b. Commercial Real I state 

a. Exposure to Capit al M arket: Nil 

C. Details of financing of Parent Company producu: Nil 

D. Details of Single Borrower Lim it (SGl)/ Group Borrower Limit (GBl} exceeded by the applicable NBFC: 

The Company has not exceeded Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) during the financfal year. 

E. Unsecured Advances: Nil 

37.8 Other Regulator Registrations 

--- --
1--- - ~gulator Re&istration No. 

1. Ministry pf Company Affairs ON: U74900TN2015PTC102252 

Certificate Registration No. N-07.00824 dated 
2. Reserve Bank of India 

December 16, 2016 

37.9 Disclosure of Penalties imposed bv RBI ,md other regulators 

During the year ended M arch 31, 2025 and March 31, 2014, 

0) the Company was imposed Rs. 3.10 lakhs as penalty by RBI vide Its order d.ated J.inuary 31,2025 for not obtaining prior written permission from RBI in appointment of a Non-

executive director which resulted in change in more than 30-At of its d irectors. 

(il) the Compilny has not received any c>dvcrsc comments in wrltinc by RBI or other Regulators on regulatory compliances, with a specific communication to disclose the same to the 

pubhc. 

37.10 R~lated party Trc>nsactions 
Det..ills of the rclJted portias, nature of the relationship with whom Company has entered transactions, remuneration of directors and balances in related partv account at the year 

end, arc r.ivcn in Note no. 78, 

<This space is intent ionally left blank> 



Aptus Finance India Private Limited 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Note Particulars 

37.11 Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies : 

The credit rating details of the Company as at 31 March 2025 are as follows: 

Rating Agency Term Type Rating 

CARI- Ratings ltd Long term NCD CARE AA- (Stable) 

CAH~ Ratings ltd Long term Fund based term loan CAR~ AA- (Stable) 

The credit rating details of the Company as at 31 March 2024 are as follows: 

Rating Agency Term Type Rating 

ICRA Ltd Long term Fund based term loan ICRA AA- (Stable) 
CAR[ Ratings ltd Long term Fund based term loan CARf AA- (Stable) 

37.12 Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies 

During the year, 
(a) no prior period items occurred which has impact on Statement of Profit and loss, 

(b) no change in Accounting policy, 

(c) t here is no withdrawal from reserve fund. 

37.13 Revenue Recognition 

There arc no circumstances in which revenue recognition has been postponed by the Company pending the resolution of significant 
uncertainties. 

<This space is intentionally left blank> 
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Aptus finance India Private Limited 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31. 2025 

Note Pilrticulars 

37.14 Provisions and Contingencies (Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in Statement of Profit and Loss Account) 

Rs. In lakhs 

Particulars 
For the ye.ar ended For the ycir ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

1. Provisions for dcprcclat1on on Investment 

1. Prov1s1on tow,1rd\ NP/\ 4/5.04 89.14 

3. Provmon m:'ldf' toward,; currl'nt income t.1xcs 6,1?9.9~ 4,601.08 

4. l'rovfs,on for st,mdJrd .isscts /18.~2 !,03.11 

37.15 Draw Down from Reserves 
Dunne thC' financial yC'ar f'ndcd March 3 1. JO:>~ and March 31, ]074, there were no draw down from RcservC's. 

37.16 Concentration of Lo,ms & Advances 

Rs. In lakhs -- --- -
Particulars 

As at Asat 
M;1rch 31, 2025 MilTCh 31, 2024 

lolal loons & Advanrrs to twenty largest borrowNS 11n.~o 390.40 

Percentage of loJns & Advant.cs to twenty largc5t borrowc1:i. to lotal J\dvilnces of the NBfC 0.14% 0.20% 

37.17 Concentrat ion of Exposures (including off-balance: sheet exposure) 
Rs. In lakhs - --- -- ------

Particulars 
As., Asat 

March 31, 202S March 31, 2024 

lo1al ! xposurc lo lwrnty l.irg(',st borrowcrs/custon,r.r.s 1128.!,'} 390.40 

Pcu;cnlJt!C of I xpo'>urcs to twenty larecst bouowcrs / c.u5tomcrs to lotal I xposure of thr? NU! Con borrowers/ customers 0.1!.1% 0.]0% 

37.18 Concentration of NPAs 
Rs. in lakhs - -- - - - ------~-

Particulars 
As., As at 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

lotal f icposurc to top four NPA accounts 6?./4 ~3.74 

37.19 Sector-wise NPAs 
Perc.enugc of NPAs to Total Advances fn that Sector ----- -

As at As •• 
sector 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

1. Ai:nc.ulturc & .tlhl"d .ict1111t1cs 

J.M~MI 

3 Corporate borrowN~ 

4. Scrvu::c-o: 

~. Uru.ecurcd personal loans 

6. Auto loans 

I . Other loans Secured 1.7-1% 1.03% -- -
Asat 

March 31, 2025 

Sectors Total E,cposure (includes Pcrcentace of Gross NPAs 

on balance sheet and off 
Gross NPAS 

to total exposure in that 
balance sheet exposure) sector 

1. Ar.ru-·u11urr ,:ind J\lllc-d J\rt~,; ____ 

J. lndu>try 

3. Scnoccs 

11. Personal lo;1ns 

5. Othc,s 

I oan .ac.iinst property & Other pcrsonJI lo.ins (~ecurcd) 
7,93,013.0!J 3,<,46.11 1.24~~ 

T~l2f_Oth~ - 2,93,013.0S 3,646.71 1.24% 



Aptus Finance India Privat e limited 

Not es forminP nart of the financial statcmeots for the vear ended March 31 2025 
As at 

March 31, 2024 

Sectors Iota I Exposure (includes Percentage of Gross NPAs 

on balance sheet and off 
Gross NPAs 

to total exposure In that 
balance sheet exposure) sector 

l~r.ncult~nd Allirrl i\ctiv1t1~\ . 
'J. lndusl (V 
1, Scrv1rcs 

11. l'crwnJI I o,rn\: - - --- - - -- - - -
S OthN\ 

lo.tn agJtm,t µ,opc,ty & Other pCf)On.il loan:. (sf.!uucd) 
1,97.893.l/ 1,98~.~, 1.03% 

To1al of Others 1,92,893.17 1,985.57 1.03% 
>--- - -

37.20 Movement of NPAs (Stage 3 assets) (Credit imp3lred .:1SScts) 
Rs. in lakhs 

Parti culars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

(I) Net NPAs to NctJ\dv.incc){%) 0.97% 0.11% 

(U} Muvcincnt of Nl'J\!1 ((Huss) 

a} Oprmnr. bJIJnCC' 1.985.5/ 1.638.74 

b) f\dd,tion.s dunnr. tht' year 3,388.41 1.325.0S 

c) Rc:duct!ons du11nf. the ycJr (1.177.78) (977. /7) 

di ClosInr. balanc(' 3,646./1 1,985.5/ 

(Ill) Movement of Net NPAs 

a) Opening bal,1ncc 1,489 18 1.131.09 

b) /\dd itlons dunn~ the year 7,496.(13 980.0S 

c) Reduct ion\ durmr. th!' year (1.310.53) (771.96) 

d) Clu~•nc bdl~nLC J,G!S.,a 1,489.18 

(IV) Movcm<'nt of prov1sIons for NPJ\'i (c,ccludmc prov1.slons on standard assets) 

a) Opcmnc b,1IJn<.c 496.39 '107. l !t 

bl Provl'i1on\ madr dunnc the y<'ar 891.18 311S.OO 

c..) Wrtl~ off of lo.m~/wutc back of excess provmons (416./4) (2,5.76) 

d) Clo1;1nc bJl.incP 9/1.43 496.] 9 

. - - - ---

37.21 Oversc3s Asset s - Not applicable 

37.22 Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored (which arc required t o be consolidated as per .1ccounting Norms} - Nil 

37.23 Customer Complaints 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

a) No. of compl.unh pcndinr. at t he brcinmnc of the yc:u 

b) No. of compl.:i lnts rL'Cc1vcd du11ne the year G9 /1 

c) No. of compl.i1nh rC'd,<."s~d dunnc the year 69 71 

di No nf complaint,; p<>ndmP. ,1\ thr rnd of the yc-ar 
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Aptus Finance India Private limited 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Note Particulars 

37.24 Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman 

S.No Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

1 
Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC 

1 8 
from Office of Ombudsman 

1.1 
Of 1, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NIJrC 

1 8 
by Office of Ombudsman 

Of 1, number of complaints resolved through 

1.2 conciliation/mediation/advisories issued by Office of . . 
Ombudsman 

1.3 
Of 1, number of complaints resolved aher passing of Awards 

0 0 
by Office of Ombudsman against the NBFC 

2 
Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated . 
time (other than those appealed) 

37.25 Top five grounds of complaints received by the NBFCs from customers 

Grounds of 
Number of 

Number of 
% increase/ decrease 

Number of 
complaints in the number of Of 5, number of 

complaints, (i.e. 
pending at the 

complaints 
complaints received 

complaints pending 
complaints pending 

complaints relating 
beginning of the 

received during 
over the previous 

at the end of the 
beyond 30 days 

to) 
year 

the year 
year 

year 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 

loan closure/ waiver 
related/Refund of . 43 0% . 
I xcess collection 

Loan collection related 
7 (46%) 

Moratorium related . 2 100% . 
Status of New 

~ (11%) 
I oan/ROI Related 

I evy of charges 0 0% 
CLSS Eligibility 0 0% . 

lCS /NACII Related 3 100% 

Clllll Issues 6 0% . 

Property legal 
ownership related 3 100% 

/DS/1 
Total . 69 (3%) . 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

loan closure/ waiver 

related/llefund of 43 23% . 
I xcess collection 

I oan collection related 
13 (28%) . 

Moratorium related 0 (100%) . . 
Status of New 

6 20% 
Loan/ROI Related 

. 

I evy of charges . 0 (1Cl0%) 
CLSS [ ligibility . 0 (100%) 

I CS /NACII Related . 0 (100%) 

Clllll Issues 6 100% . . 

Property legal 
ownership related 3 100% 

/DS/\ 
Total . 71 (9%) . 



Aptus Finance India Private limited 

Notes forming p:,rt of the fln.;inclal statements for the year ended Marc.h 31, 2025 

Not e Particulars 

37.26 Disclosure on liquidit y Risk Managem ent 

(a) Funding concentration based on signific;;, nt countcrparty• (both deposits and borrowings): 
Rs. m 1akns 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31. 2025 M ar ch 31, 2024 ---
Number of Significant Countcrparties• 28 20 
Balance as at year end 2.33,465.25 1,47,691.45 
% of TotJI dl!posits 0.00% 0.00% 

"of Total llabilities 98.67% 98.96,. 

• sitniflcant coontcrparty is .. defined in RBI Circular RBl/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) cc. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 da ted November 4, 2019 on 

Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non•Banklng Finandal Companies and Core Investment Companies, since lt is not spocif1cally mentioned In Master 

Direction - RRI (Non•Aanklng Financial Company- Scale aased Regulation) Directions. 20,3. 

(b) Top 20 large deposits: 

Not applicable. The Company being a Systemically Important Non•Deposit taking Non•Bankmg Financial Company registered with Reserve Bank of India does not 

accept public depo sit s. 

(c) Tot.JI of t op 10 borrowings 
Rs. ,n l.tkhs 

Particulars 
As at As at 

M arch 31, 2025 M arch 31, 2024 

Total oftop 10 borrowings 1,33.156.68 1.09,308.72 

¾ of I otal Borrowings 56.47% 73.51% 

(d) Funding concent ration based o n significant instrument/ product': 
Rs. In l ilkhs - - --

As at As at 
Part iculars 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Term lo,.ms 1,43,458.34 1,12,542.31 

Sccur1t1sation loans 68.165.59 33,657.96 

Non-Convertible Debentures 19,204.49 

Workine C.ipit.:il loam; 4.989.17 ,,119/'i.77 

% of lotal 1 labllllic:s 99.67% 99.63% --
n S1gnlf1cant instrument/products as defined in RBI Circular RBl/2019· 20/88 DOR.NBf-C {PO) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019·20 dated November 4, 2019 on liquidity 

Risk Manaecmcnt Framework for Non•Banklne Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies, .since It is not specifically mentioned in Master Direction- RBI 

(Non•Banking f inanclal Company -Scale Based Regulationl Directions, 2023. 

(cl Stock Ratio1 

Asal As at 
Part icular s 

Ma rch 31, 202S March 31, 2024 - -
(1) Comm(!rdal pap(!rs as a% of total public funds, total liabilities and tot.al assets 

{ii) Non convertible debentures (original m.iturity of less than one year) as a % of total public funds, total liabillt1cs 

and tolJI J))et) 

(ill} Other short•term llabihtics, if any as a % of tot~l liabilitics 27.60% 30.23% 

(1v) Othl.'!r short term liabilit ies, if any as a¾ of total assets 21.36% V.47% 

{f) l nstitutionc1I set•up for liquidit y risk m anagement 

fhc Board of Directors of /\ptus Finance India Private Ud ("the Comp:.any") have adopted a Risk Management Policy, The Board ndopt cd policy contains the 

framework and cuidclincs for Risk manaecmcnt. The changes brought in the Liquidity Risk Management Framework vide its Circular No. RBl/2019-70/88 OOR.NBFC 

(PD) CC. No.10,/03.10.0011'019•20 Novembi:ir 04, ]019 arc also beinG covered as part of the Rfsk Management Polley which wtll be reviewed by t he Board 
pNiodicaUy for compliance and implementation as stated In Master Direction RBI (Non-Banking financial Company- Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023. 

The Board shall have the oven,11 respons1bil1ty for management of liquidity r isk by reviewing th(! Implementation of the Risk. Management Polley. 

The Company has also constituted Risk. Manaeement Committee and Asset-Liability Management Committee (ALCO) to carry o ut the funct fons as listed out In the 

said circulou. 

37.27 I he Company h.is not accepted deposits within the meaning of 'Public Deposits' as defined In the prudential norms issued by the RO!. The board of directors of the 

CompJny huvc passed a resolution by circul;;1tion dated April 24,202.3. 

37.28 Disclosure on frauds pursuant to Master Direct ion - Monitoring of Frauds in NBFCs (Rcs:crvc Bank) Directions, 2016 

Thcrr were no instances of fraud reported durine the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024. 

37.29 Pcrccntar,e of o utstanding loans grant ed agains t the collateral of gold jewellery to their outstanding tot al a~sets • Nil {March 31, 2024: Nil) 

38 Corpor.ite Governance report containing composit ion and category of directors, shareholding of non-ellecutivc directors, et c 

lhc corpornte governance report containing composition .ind category of directors. shareholding of non-executive directors is part of the annual report for the 

f1n,mcic1f ycJr cndi::,d March 31, 202S. 



Aptus Value Housinc rlnance lndl, limited 
Notes forming part ol the ,tandalone financ:lal statements: for the yur ended M.ln::h 31, 1025 

39 Share-based payments 

Employee share option plan 

39.1 Details of the employee share option plan 

{al In the Hoard MC!Ctlng held on I cbruary 11, 7011, the Board of the Uo!dint! Company approved the issue of up to 1,00,00,000options under the Scheme titled "/\ptus Lmployccs Stock 
Option St.heme 7071" (hc1cinafter 1cfcrrcd to ..is /\ptus r~s. ]0]]) to the c-mployccs of both the Comp,my & the Hokfing Company. 

I he SchrmM ~llow the 1swc of op11ons to <'mployces of the Comp.1ny. I ach option comprises one underly inc equity share. 

/\s per the Scheme, the Nom1nat1<>n and Rcmuncratkm Committee l"I he Comm1ttcc•) of the lioldinc Company gr.-:,nts the options to the employees deemed cht:iblc and also governs 
the opcrJt1on ol the scheme. 

1 he d1fforence bctw('rn the fair prn:c of the t he options granted on the date of c,rant of optk>n and the exercise price of the option rcpresf"ntmr. Stock compensation expense is 
expensed over the vesting period. 

(b) t mployt.:e stock option, detail, as on tho ba~ncc ihcct datt.:: 

--

DU('ofGrant 

O,Ht' or Bo.11d approv.11 

O,n{' or !,h,ucholdcn i!pprov~I 

Numbrr of option1.1r antrd 

Mt'lhod or srulcmr-nt 

VMol tn~ JX'r'°d 

M,nnt'I of v<:Umg 

t,c,rdsc price prr option 

Particulars 

Puce of Undcrtvinl!_!_h;ir!_at ~•m~of the Op~n G~t 

39.2 Fair value of share options granted 

Aptus (SOS 2021 

M;iiy04, }0'1 

r cbrua,y 11, JO} 1 

MdyOG, ,Oil 

30,/5,000 

lqu,tv 
04.05,}074 to 

03 O!l.7021 

Jan l8, }014 

February 1 J, }071 

Mlv06. 7071 
3,S},!JOO 

lqu1ty 
1801 ,o,a to 

11.01.10}8 

In a ended manner over• 4 yrar period with }5% 

ol lhe rants VMtlnv 111 rach ear 

1hc hi1r v.-ilut• of option~ ha~ been c\t1m-.tcd on the date o f the grant uslnt: IY.ic:k Scholes model by an external firm of r~lstercd merchant bankcr. lhc key ;n,sumpbons Uicd In the modef for cak:1.llatine 

l o11t value arc ;n bctow 

AHumptlons D:.tc of r;rant 

k l\k I ,C'I! kltcrc~t Rate 

t 1<pc-Ct<"d I lfl' (m yr,m,) 

lltpcctcd U1v1dl'nd Yield 

Pnce o f Und('rtylng jhar<" .iit thr: timr of the Opl1on Grant 
rarr Value or the Option !Rs.) 

hlSt.>cc 

}nd St;agc-

lrd Slill:<' 

4th Slilf~ 

M -May-23 18-Jan-14 

7 .0 1% to I 09,C, 

l . '>104.!I 

,19 18" to J6.CM" 

uo" 
2ss ~s 

.31.99 
52,}0 

14.04 

8}08 

/.t4% to ,.1s,­

L!t104 !, 

1l.5Hi to 2:,./6'1: 
088" 

36100 

◄6.09 

68.08 

811.01 

114 l.9 

39.3 Exp<?nse arising from share based payment transaction recognized in profi1 or loss statement .JS employee benefit e,cpensc arc as follows : 

Particulars For the year ended For the yl'.!ar cndl'.!d 
March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024 

l mployel'.' brncflt~xpcmsc _ __ _ J ___ ...2_B.01?L___ o.~ 

CE IN() 

~ 
-,J 

ENNAI < 
-~ 

" *"°' 



Aptus Finance India J>rivate Limited 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Note Particulars 

Disclosure J>ursuant to Reserve Bank of India Circular DOR.NO.BJ> .BC/3/ 21.04.048/2020-21 dated 6 August 2020 

pertaining to resolution framework for COVID-19 - related stress read with RBl/2021-22/31 

40 
DOR.STR.REC.11/21.04.048/2021-22 dated May 5, 2021 J>ursuant to Resolution Framework 2.0 - Resolution of COVID 

19 related stress of Micro, Small And Medium Enterprises (MSMEs) and Disclosure pursuant to Reserve Bank of India 

Circular RBl/2021-22/31 OOR.STR.REC.11/21.04.048/2021-22 dated May 05, 2021 pertaining to resolution framework 

- 2.0: Resolution of COVID-19 related stress of Individuals and Small Business. 

{Rs. in Lakhs) 

Exposure to Exposure to 

accounts classified accounts 

as standard classified as 

consequent to Of(A), aggregate Of(A), amount Of{A), amount standard 

implementation of debt that slipped written of during paid by the consequent t o 

Type of Borrow er resolut ion plan - into NJ>A during the half year borrowers during implementat ion 
position as at the the half year end ended March 31, the half year end of resolution plan 

end of the March 31, 2025 2025 M arch 31, 2025 - position as at 

previous half year the end of this 

i.e. September 30, half year i.e. 

2024 March 31, 2025* 

(A) (BJ (CJ (OJ 

Personal Loans - - - - -

Corporate persons - - -
of which MSMrs - - - -

Others 266.55 5.30 - 27.36 233.89 

Total 266.55 5.30 27.36 233.89 

41 The Company has adopted all t he norms issued under 'Prudential norms on Income recognition, Asset classification, 

and provisioning pertaining to advances - clarifications' issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) vide circular 

no.OOR.STR.Rl:C.68/21.01\.048/2021-22 dated November 12, 2021. Such alignment has resulted in the transition of sub 

90 DPD assets as additional non-per forming assets as of March 31, 2025, and provided as per norms. 

42 The date on which the Code on Social Security. 2020 (the "Code') relating to employee benefits shall become effective 

is yet to be notified and the related rules are yet to be finalized. The Company will evaluate t he code and its rules, 

assess the impact, if any, and account for the same when they become effective. 

43 Disclosure pursuant to RBI notif icat ion dated September 24, 2021 on "Transfer of Loan Exposures" are given below: 

(a) The Company has not transferred or acquired, any loans not in default during the year ended March 31, 2025. 

(b) The Company has not transferred or acquired, any stressed loans during the year ended March 31, 2025. 



Aptus Finance India Private Limited 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Note Particulars 

44 The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or other kind of funds) to 

or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity ("intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 

the intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company ("Ultimate Acneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

45 

a) 

b) 

C) 

d) 

e) 

f) 

g) 

h) 

i) 

j) 

h) 

l he Company has not received any funds (which arc material either individually or in the aggregate) from any person or entity, including foreign 

entity ("I unding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide 

any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

Additional Regulatory Information as required by Schedule Ill 

The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtu,;1I currency durine the finilnCii!I year. 
l he Company docs not hold any Bena mi Property and there arc no proceeding have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any 

bcnami property under the Bena mi l ransactions (Prohibition) /let 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

fhe Company borrows funds from various banks and financial institutions for the purpose of onward lending to end customers as per the terms of 
such borrowings. The transactions are part of the Company's normal lending activities, which is conducted after exercising proper due diligence 

includine adherence to the terms of credit policies and other rclvant guidelines. 

Other than the nature of transactions described above. 
(i) No funds (which arc material either individually or in the aegrcgate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 

share premium or any other sources or kind of fund in any other person(s) or entity(ics), including foreign ent ities ("'fntcrmediaries"), with the 

undcrstandine, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 

behalf of the ultimate Beneficiaries. 
(ii) No funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received from any other pcrson(s) or cntity(ies), including foreign 
entities ("funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly lend or 

invest in persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 
P11~rnntf"'r. <"if"'ruritv nr thr likP on hPh~lf. 
The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement. 

1111 charges or satisfaction are registered with ROC for the f inancial years ended March 31,2025 and March 31,2024. No charges or satisfactions are 

yet to be registered with ROC. 

rherc arc no transactions which arc not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in 

the tnx assessments under the Income Tax /let, 1961. 

lhe Company has no transactions with Companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies /let, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 

1956. 

fhe Company has no immovable properties and accordingly no disclosure has been made with regard to title deeds of immovable property not held 

in the name of the company. 
No Loans or /ldvanccs in the nature of loans arc granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related part ies (as defined under the companies 

l\c,2013), either severally or jointly with any other person and accordingly no disclosures have been made on account of such loans or advances. 

I he company has compiled with the number of layers prescribed under clause(87) of section 2 of the /let read with companies (Restriction on 
number of layers) Rules, 2017 for the financial years ended March 31,2025 and March 31,2024. 



Aptus Finance India Private Limited 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Note Particulars 

46 Previous Year's Figures 
Previous year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year1s classification / disclosure. 

47 Events after Reporting Date 

There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 

For M/s Suri & Co., 

Place: Chennai 

Date : May 5, 2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Aptus Finance India Private limited 
CIN • U74900TN201SPTC102252 

Place : Chennai 
Date : May 5, 2025 

P Balaji 

Whole-time Director 

DIN: 07904681 


